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ASSEMBLYMAN NICHOLAS - J. LaROCCA (Chaifman)ﬁ Good morning.
We are pretty much organized, and this is 'justi a preliminary
statement. - We are going' to try to accommodate evefyooe tihe—wise;
v We are Waiting'for‘the'CommissiOner of Banklng, or her,designee, to
-appear. . That -is why we are having this little lull for a few minutes.
Commissioner Parell has assured staff that she is on her way.

I trust that everyone has signed in. We have a list here so
that‘statf will know who wishes‘to-testify. We are trying to arrange a
vprlorlty schedule of who is to speak and at what time. | ‘
" I would now llke to call this hearing to order. This is a
hearing being held pursuant to Assembly Resolution 89 ‘which was duly
adopted by the Assembly to hold hearlngs on this particular. subJect 1
will go into that - in a mlnute. - In the meantlme, I would like to
lntroduce ‘the staff and the others on. thlS Subcommittee. I am -
‘Assemblyman Nicholas J. LaRocca. I ‘have been appointed Chairman of :
this Subcommittee; The Vice Chairman is AsSemblyman‘Louis Kosco, and
‘the other member is Assemblyman Ralph Loveys. We alSo‘haye'with us
today Dr.- Paul' Nadler, Who is Professor of Economics at Rutgers
Unlver81ty - Newark I think most of you know the'rest of the staff.

We JUSt received a call that the Commissioner of Banking is
on her way. N

| In my opinion, this is one of the most important subjects of

oor'times.‘ I have never read or heard so many disputes and so many
' different,ohilosophies as to what is good for the publio.r'l am - just
going to hit some of the highlights to show you the oonflicts in
philosophies, the conflicts in thinking between the various industries,
the effect of deregulation, and then, more importantly -- or just as
vimportant - the‘poblic sector down the line. I know everyone here is:‘
a lobbyist; everyone here repfesents a certain viewpoint, and that ‘is
good. That'is our system; however, my colleagues on the Subcommittee
are here to represent the publlc We want to see what is good for the
publlc, and what 1mpact it will have on them. | »

This does have a fancy title. It is a "study of depos1tory
institutions' bregulation and - deregulation." That is quite a big

subject. The purpose of this and subsequent hearings is to gather-



‘ background information on depository inStitutions' regulation and
,deregulatlon  with  respect to interstate - rbanking,‘ product v
dlver31flcatlon, and'related issues.  The subjecthmatters to be taken
‘up are not necessarily 1n -any order, because this is the first
hearing More hearlngs will be held throughout the State where the‘
agenda may be a- little bit more spec1flc v

The focus of these hearlngs, and how they affect New Jersey,

‘will be the recent trends in the f1nanc1al services industry, their

’ '1mpact on the dep081tory 1nst1tutlons, and the trend toward greater

_market -“concentration and  service dlver31flcatlon by dep031tory
institutions. = Then there are the problems of llqu1d1ty and assets
‘_crlses of 'depository - 1nst1tut10ns ‘and the response to these problems
both on the Federal level and on the State level. There are also the
~effects of all of these developments on the tradltlonal two-tier system
we have. You»have the - Federal regulators in Washington, and you have
the State regulators. As you'can’see,vtherevis mhat I'WOuld‘call a
clash. This goes back to the days Whenil was in college 50 years ago,
states' iriohts versus Federal' rights. The continual battle there
through all of these vears has - been between’the'federalistsband the
' antivfederalists' This is what these hearings are all about to see
how this affects the publlo '
3 We will also consider alternatlve strategles which have been
adopted by other states in response to the developments 1 have
dlscussed We have no speclfic bill lnvmind. This lsvnot the type of

hearing where there is proposed legislation and we listen to testimony

'vin'favor of the bill,»against the bill,:or possibly amend the bill. We

have no such bill in mind. At the conclusion of all of these hearings,
after a report is made, it may be that we will have some legislative.
proposal to cure some of these problems. » '

From the public sector, there is also one other item that is
important; that is, the excessive ‘holding periods- on deposits of
‘oheeks.’ That is something that all of us:on the Subcommittee have been
receiving a lot of mail about. There has also been testimony before,

“other committees. That too, w1ll have its proper place.



‘ - As you can see, the subJect is very broad -Today, we are
going to try to. llsten to the: v1ewp01nts of the -many. contradlctory
phllOSOphleS, and we will be more specific later on
Now, breaking away from the prepared scrlpt, 1 thlnk everyone-

‘has read about these problems and, reducing it to plaln Engllsh-—
After pract1c1ng law for 48 years, it is kind of hard to get down to ,
 plain English. I have learned all of the Engllsh common-law methods
‘and all the Latin. But, this is very: 1mportant at least for the
oublic sector. rWe‘have these problems Now you can go into K-Mart,
and‘you Canngo lnto‘Sears Roebuck to buy 1nsuranoe.‘ ‘You can ‘get a
: mortgage application and' process "your ) mortgage in. a K-Mart
supermarket. I don't know. Is that good for . the 1ndustry and for the

people of the State? Is 1t bad for the 1ndustry and for the people of
the State’l That is .the purpose of these hearings.

Then, there are a lot of big deflnltlons What is a bank?

: 1 In my day it was very "easy  to define a bank f I don't have to ‘

elaborate, a bank .was a bank.  You know, it was on the corner; it
~serviced the - oommunity.uv‘l_,would go in and I ‘was able to cash my

checks. They knew everybody, and everybody knew everybody' else.

“Today, I 'can't even cash a check in my bank because they will ask me, -

"What is your number?" I don't know what the heck my number is there,
and they obange'tellers everyday. Well, with that loophole in the
»f definitionwof a bank, you can see all the problemsQ I don't have to
| tell you what everyone has been d01ng Everyone has jompedvin.f Now
“you have non-banks. -Who has jumped in? All the big banks in New York
: anvaennsylvan;a.,-Tbey have all jumped the.gun.l'll don?t have to
belabor the fact that there is that loophole. I suppose that is the
game.b I have learned it in the practice of law. All I have said is,
‘"Well, go in. File thebapplication." The Federal;Reserve people in
Washington have been entertaining a lot of applicatione. The New York
Banking Commissioner has ‘entertained applications from New Jereey

banks, and vica yersa. Is that good? I don't  know. What about the
impact of,interstate'banking? The Chase has over 22 consumer lending
offices in 10 states. ‘Manufaoturers Hanover bas 650 consumer lending

offices in 43 states. - Citicorp has only 91 loan offices, as they call



them.  0Of" course, in Washlngton you . have the team of Garn St. Germaln, o
‘and . they have their ideas on ‘the subJect.‘ Lord forbid that they make

it retroactlve I thlnk there is going to be a lot of consternatlon'

"yregardlng all of these appllcatlons

I thlnk these banks use the strategy of, '"Well, 1et's file,,
~ and then let's see what happens. We'll worry, later." ' That is
‘something that bothers me;v it bothers -511 ~of my colleagues' on the

Subcommittee. I think it also bothers the Department of Insurance and -

the‘Department‘of Banking, as it is their province, also,hto regulate ..

" these things. Brokerage houses are ‘buying banks. ~Maybe it is good;
'maybe”ittis bad. 'After disoossing this with my colieagues,'we‘really
do not know. We have no set -opinion, exeept maybe our own personal
philosophies; however, thosevnill not enter into it. We are here to
* hear all viewpoints. | o . |
k v What makes thls difficult is that a lot of 1t is already
rfhere; ‘There are brokerage houses which own banks rlght now. They may.
be nonebank banks . Sometlmes I don't know what that is, but ‘there is a
vlegai‘ definition for it.‘ ~ Should you' go into the‘ secur;tles‘
' underwriting‘ bUsiness?'i I don't know. 1 see my friends “here fron‘

Prudential. They’ have ‘already gone into that. They bought Bache
Should the banks . go into underwriting securities? Again, I don 't
 know. Should the banks sell life 1nsurance, and v1ce versa, should the
ilnsurance companies go into the. banklng business? |
I see our CommlSSloner of Banking has arrlved so I will

conclude now. -1 know,one of her pet subjects is-- Maybe regional
' banklng is something to be_consioered. I don't know. All'I:am saying
is, thisbiS'the‘forom for all of these problems. Of course, there are-
also different viewpoints from the New Jersey Savings League, the New
Jersey Bankers Association, and the’Mortgage,Bankers Association,e They
all have different viewpoints. This also comes back to a lot of
‘friends of mine, and>friends of yours in the industry. There are those
who favor State regulatlon 1 think they call themselves the "hungry
bankers." Then you have the Flrst Natlonal State, Bob Ferguson, and

the others They are interested in nationwide.



My last'comment is this:- It could very well be, looklng into
‘ the'future, that every banklng bus1ness and every insurance business
' may soon be controlled by -a board -- a super, super board - Chlcago,

Callfornla, and- New York vwhere they would make all of the decisions

regardlng banking because it is 901ng to be Federal , lhe states may‘ -

not - have anythlng to -8ay about it. Agaln, is that good for the
publlc” Is that good for the 01tlzens of New Jersey? - That is the‘
purpose of ‘this hearing. , ‘

Before I ask the first speaker, who will be the Comm1531oner
of Banking, to come ,forward,v I would like to ask the other two
Assemblymen on the Suboommittee if they wish to say a few words. Are
there any'comments? ' | A o
( ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO:  No, I came to. listen. ,

|  ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  The first witness will be . the
Commissioner of Banking, Mary Little Parell. | ' '
'COMMISSIONER 'MARY LITTLE PARELL: Good morning, Chairman LaRocca,
' Assemblyman Kosco, Assemblyman Loveys, all members of the panel, and/
‘all members of the publlc who have come to hear the testlmony at this
openlng hearing thls morning. _ v

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Everything will be reoorded; that is’
‘the purpose of the microphone. Those who have written statements, as
usual, *will'vsubmit them to the members of the vSubcommittee kfor
incorporation ‘into the transcript that will be forthcoming at the
conclu51on of all of the hearings. k ' - ‘ _

' COMMISSIONER PARELL: It is a pleasure to . appear before you
. today ‘to discuss the outlook for New Jersey s financial services
:industry; It is an honor to be invited to present the opening remarks
for the work of this Subcommittee. I commend you for the.impressive’
‘list of speakers whom you have invited for this hearing. I think it
bodes well for the progress of this Subcommittee that you have invited
those most - knowledgeable lnr this industry in this State to appear .
‘before you as your_hearingsfprogress. I know that you will also take“
vyouriosse to the consumers of this State through this series of public

hearings. ‘For'that, of oourse, you are also to be commended.



_ Thie-Subcomnittee and;the Legislatufe haVe exercised great
rforeeight -in conveningv thie’ task force to identify"the effects of
industryxderegulation on'NeweJerSey’s,banking and thrift institutions,
and, most imoortantly;‘on New Jersey‘s consumers;’

‘ The banking: industry‘dia* indeed undergoing considerable
change: Muchtof'our»exiating fundamental banking law was passed half a
‘century ago. Back»then,-banks were’effectively confined within state
~ boundaries, commercial;banking and inVestmentfbanking were separated,
and price' ceilings wereh imposed‘*onk what - banks ‘could‘ pay their
‘ depositors and charge their customera. Given~the circumstances of the

early 19303; 'the' pressures to closely reqgulate the industry were

understandable ‘ ‘
But thls same structure of regulatlon - bu1lt durlng times
of - confu31on, abuse, and 1nsecur1ty -- ‘has . proven 1nadequate and too

antiquated to adapt to today's flnanc1al ‘world. I think a quote taken

from an artlcle in The “Bankers Maga21ne appropriately summarizes

today's struggle with our outdated regulatory system, " and thia is the
quote: o | . o .
o MErected - in the erat of the handwritten ledger ‘book, . the
atrueture of fegulation‘Was not intendedrto reoulate a world in which
the ledger is a  floppy dlsk and ‘the information in it can be
" transmitted anywhere around ‘the world at the speed. of llght The
electronic ‘age 'is rendering state borders, ‘national boundaries, and
even distance itself meanlngless in the transfer ofb money and
information about money." | v A

The current regulatory structure is obviously out of touch
- with the tlmes and. needs to be substantlally modernized. The United

"States banklng 1ndustry is heading toward increased competltlon in
‘every sector, competltlon which - cannot be sustalned w1thout the
- flexibility afforded it by deregulatlon

v _ A bank, as 'you know, is no longer just an institution that
-serves its depositors,by providing loans and returning interest for the
use of their money. Banks have changed' their operations, their
out 1ook, and thelr way of doing bus1nesa substantlally. They are’now'

open 24 hours a day via automated teller machines. They have expanded



their‘services‘so thatdavconsumer.can buy stocks,'bonds, certifioates‘
- of deposit, and money market funds all at one.stop,’their bank. . Bank
loan services have expanded into a vast range ofﬂflexibleboptions'for
the consumer. v ‘ o ‘ »ﬂ ‘
‘ o At the same: time, competition for -banking customers is
fierce, both' within the “traditional banking world and from »other
quarters such as commercial retailers, securities, ‘real estate,' and
_insurance firms. | The flnanclal world: as we know it is in a revolutlon,
a revolutlon which I belleve can be benef1c1al to New Jersey s economy,
Jits banklng industry, and its consumers.

k 1 But; as legislators and regulators, we have been called upon
‘to mon1tor and gu1de these developments because we know that ‘as a less |
vregulated 1ndustry wifolds into new. enterprlses, yesterday S solutlons
will not be able to answer tomorrow s questions. ‘
‘ How has deregulation beneflted New Jersey‘s banking system?‘
1 was pleased to report_to Governor Kean recently thatvthefbanking
:indUStry in 1984 grew to its healthiest point in the past five years,
_-an achievement made possible, at least inlpart,;as‘a result of the.
 deregulated marketplace. ‘Statistics complled by 0ur‘Department proye
the polnt Derequlation helped to boost totalrassets for commercial
banks chartered by .our Department from $13 0 bllllon in 1983 to a
progected $13.8 bllllon by the end of 1984, a solid 6 increase in
~assets. State-chartered savings banks had over $11.5 bllllon in assets
as of mid-1984, almost a 3% increase in growth. ~And, the insored
Hsavings and loan associations_chartered.by our Department grew by 11.2%
" to more than»$20-billion in assets. I believe that if you check the
,'statistics for the Federally chartered‘ commercial banks and thrifts,
~you will find a similar. pattern of growth in our State. _ :

The‘ overriding reason for these outstandlng results is

'simple: NeW- Jersey boasts an extraordinarily healthy economy and
banking system.. -,Unfettered by bad agricultural, foreign, orb energy
loans, New Jersey's banking industry has mirrored‘ the ‘e*traordinary
- growth of 'the State's' economy. It could not’have-beenfaccomplisned;f'

however,‘without deregulation.
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Deregulation has also done much to foster the development of
new consumer products The climate for the consumer lending market has
~significantly brightened because of the many changes in the: financial
serv1ces industry due to loosened regulatory restrlctions.; Moreover,
Tso that consumers may - always be benefited by an active 1banking
community, ‘the Department has pledged‘ to continue to serve New
“Jerseyans by . ceaselessly promoting the orderly development of New
,:Jersey as  a financial center oA healthy, competitive finan01al
| 1ndustry lS essential if we are to continue in the ong01ng development
of our State as an economic force in the region. .~ , v |

I will now detail, for the benefit  of all here, the major
steps in the deregulation process ‘These steps are well-known to those
of “you who have been working in the banking’field.' The first major
step in 'deregulating‘»the> financial services industry took lplace in
1980, when, to: ease the money crunch, Congress passed. the Depos1tory
Institutions Deregulation and Monetary Control Act, DIDMCA for short.
The ' ~New ~Jersey Legislature followed suit by p3881ng legislation
which eventually, became P.L. 1981, c. 103, to eliminate commerc1al
USury ‘ceilings in ‘the State. Eliminating the rate restriction has
~proven that, by giving the‘market»the abilty to set interest rates
based on money availability and competition, the consumer has been.
afforded higher earning rates and greater borrow1ng opportunities |

’ The second step in deregulating financ1al products in New
'Jersey'was-the 1ntroductlon of  the money market,dep081t accounts»and
the super—NDW accounts- as,‘enabledv by the passage ‘of the Federal
Garn-St. Germain Depository Institutions Act of 1982(1'Both of :those
financial‘ instruments have proVen to be effective tools for the
‘1nst1tutions to attract new depos1ts because consumers are able to earn
market rates of 1nterest ‘on their savings. , ' _

On the lending side, deregulation has taken the form of new
consumer loan products. . One example is the variable rate loan which
has been proposed and is pending before thlS Legislature.' Another
example is the resoundlngly successful revolv1ng home equ1ty loan
extended to consumersv who own -homes,- for _home- 1mprovements, Further

“education,  and other personal projects. Given.”their, increasing



vpopularlty with lenders and borrowers allke, it is easy to see why home
' equ1ty loans are touted as the consumer loans of the. future.
' A further deregulatory measure was the 1ntroduct10n of.

adJustable rate mortgages which has helped many achleve that perennlal

“American dream of home- ownershlp AdJustable rate mortgages last year -

"accounted for about two-thlrds of all new mortgages 1ssued nat10nw1de,'

and they are credlted as well with hav1ng sheltered the hous1ng market = -

. from higher market 1nterest rates ,
- » v Where are we.901ng?- What does the future hold7‘ I know these
. are »questions “you~ have asked yourselves as leglslators vand as.
- consumers. These are questions whlch the Governor has also asked me. -
’ ~In the coming year, some of the dlfflcult banklng issues we
will face involve -- as your Chairman has just pointed out --
interstate banking, and the related question of non-bank banks. - The.
major - banking trends evident this past year related to deregulatlon
"~ will be stronger thlS year . and will probably provide more challenges:
for New Jersey s flnan01al 1nst1tutlons |
I see one major trend emerging  in 1985 -1 believe ‘that
market pressure ‘for expanded interstate mergers and QCQUiSitionsi’oF
‘banks, thrifts, and other financial institutions will continue in this’
region, 'as elsewhere around the .country. As _you'_know, one"trade
‘ association, is preparing a legiSlative;'proposal~ which jwould allow
;interstate banking on a restricted basis among several central Atlantic
 states. This regional‘approach is a cautious one aimed at - ensuring
.that'New Jersey»will'retain control over the growth and“deyelopment of
its commercial banks, the same banks that respond to - the State's
economic‘needs, until.such time as national interstate‘bankingbbecomes[
a reality. ’ - v | B
-1 “think it is 1mportant to note to the members of this
Subcommlttee that New York and the other large money center states are
not included in . the proposed region, but would be included in the
eventual nationwide reciprocity which is env131oned in the banker's
proposal The exclusion of those states from the 1n1tlal reglon is -
de31gned to. glve our 1nst1tutlons, and others in the proposed reglon, »
tlme to grow in size and strength so that they will be better able to-



. meet the icompetitive “and takeover initiatives ‘which 'will'predicta’bly '
.,occur when the money center bank holdlng companles are permltted to

enter our marketplace in the future.

Whlle contemplatlng the 1nterstate' questlon, one must

‘ remember that banklng does - not functlon 1n a vacuum "It is not
1ndependent of ‘domestlc 1and 1nternatlonal » economlc : trends,_’
1nter 1ndustry' trends, nor is it independent of the needs of the

' Amerlcan public. - New Jerseyans are on the move. AmericanS'are on the:

o move. Our economy is’ bloomlng due to lower 1nterest rates, increased

“credit availability, and low unemployment. These factors are expected

to continue,throughoutr1985 and the.financial‘community must be ready
to respond. p,That ls why“ 1 believev,that‘ interstate banking is an
undeniable part of the banking future,,andbwe must therefore take a

careful look at this concept to see how it,may best'suit“all of our

. financial 1nst1tut10ns and our consumers.c Thus,-Without‘being undulyi

. provincial, we must seek to preserve some measure of State control over
‘,the shape . of interstate banklng to come. ‘ e S

If we do not arrive at a consensus on the State»level with
"regard to the ;future of interstate banking, it. is - certain ‘that
'f1nan01al entltles which already have the ability to compete interstate :
will continue to make inroads into'the'New Jersey banking marketplace;,
through numerous avenues. ‘Moreover, given enough of a head start, they
: could' preempt ‘much of  the market for ' a wide variety. of financial>
services delivered without geographic'restrictions, and the issue of
vgeographlc deregulatlon of .banks could become moot . | ‘

One 1mmed1ately pre531ng example of this- trend is the series
of" s0- called non- bank bank appllcatlons which have been filed with the .
Comptroller, of the Currency and the Federal Reserve Board by
out-of-state money‘center bank holding‘companies. I have personally
traveled to WaShington on ‘two voccasions to meet with both of ’these
vregUlatdrs to specifically'reqUestithatlthose‘applications be denied;v
or atwleast:tabledtwhile our Legislature considers such a development{-

I object'to'grantlng out-of-state bank_holding companies a
charter to operate these near-bank entities in New Jersey at this time -

because‘they are banking competitors whose size dwarfs even our largest

10



banks. To emphasize this fact, permit me to share some figures with
you. The largest bank holding company in this State ,has' assets of
aporoximately $10 billion, compared to Citicorp -f.the nation'a'largestbf
bank holding comoany -~ at $135 billion. 'In»point of fact,'the-New
York-based Citicorp asset size is greater than all of our New Jersey
~commercial - and savings banks combined at .aporoximately >$80 billion.
Some of the other brethren out-of- state bank ‘holding comoanies are at
. 51m11ar size dlsparlty with .our New Jersey- -grown institutions. )

If the . v131on of 1nterstate banklng indeed becomes a fact,
then 1 submlt that it should be 1ntroduced through leglslatlve action,"
and ‘not - through loopholes in existing law. For this reason, our
Banking Department .supported' the non-bank bank moratorium lbill,.
.récently passed,by this Legislature and signed by Governor Kean, wnich
prohibits new non-banks from being establiehed in New Jersey for one
year. It is clear that the Legislature;'and the New Jersey public
needs time to determine how, and who, will be affected by the seemlngly
unpluggable ‘non-bank loophole in the regulatory dike. 1 have alerted
the Federal Reserve Board in Washington of  your actlons in Trenton, and ..
have asked that they,  without hesitation, ,e1therr deny or hold the
appllcatlons before - them until _the expiration of this moratorium
legislation. | o

It is clear that ‘the time has come for State-level
decision-makers to participate in resolving the complex iesues inyolvedf
in the ongoing process of = deregulating the United States banking
'system. We can no longer wait for action by our Federal counterparts.

to come op with answers that we must 1live by. Historically,~ the
Federal . government‘ has accorded tremendous latitude and power to

‘ 1nd1v1dual states when it comes to determining the ultimate shape of

:» thelr ' reSpectlve .banking systems.‘ In effect, ~ State-level

', decision-makers have the power to do something about this situation.
The market pressures and immediate circumstances confronting' us,
| coupled perhaps with a reluctance to trust the matter entlrely to
'Federal reqgulators or legislators, have compelled you to act.

- The dual banking system -- the system of State and Federal

charters -- is unique in financial institution history and has been

11



,wideiy' acclalmed for fostering innoyation"and gexperimentation “in
_‘banklng vfor keeplng ‘bank reguiation from becomlng unduly
' oppre331ve.( You all know the v1rtues of thlS system, and I believe
" that its concept has cont1nu1ng valldlty in the modern day of banklng.
' Therefore, I would cautlon you : that in your dellberatlons in this d
Subcommlttee you keep 1n mind that regulations you may seek to enact
‘should not unduly preJudlce State chartered institutions. '

My phllosophy in governlng our State banklng system is simple
and stralghtforward. I believe that the State Department of Banklng
’-hhas the responsibillty to prov1de leadershlp, guidance, . and  new
opportunltles to-all: members of the 1ndustry. I believe that the
: 1ndustry must be given greater ability .to compete and that the
Department, simultaneously, has in hand‘the.supervisoryvtoo;s necessary
to ensure that our institutions are "playing by the rules" established
by your legislation and by our Department. And'finally, I believe that
~the structure of banking must change at all levels in order to meet the
“social, financial, and economic chal lenges of the future. o

~ When 1 took office in July, 1 was entrusted with the
respon31b111ty to ensure that the safety and soundness, the health, and
_the stability of our financial ;nst;tutlons were safeguarded. I am
happy to. report that New Jersey's banking,industry'is booming and is
being encouraged to pursue new opportunities 'rising .inv the futurei
through industry initiatives and Department efforts. It is through the
strength. of ourv banking institutions and their ;CUStomers -= the
. businesses and consumers of this State - that,all of - them will'attain
their economic goals.- |

-1 am: pleased . that I w111 be JOlned by you, the leglslators,
"1ndustry offlclals, and representatlves of the public in:this effort to
stimulate future industry growth at all levels, to enhance new product
development and new»investment;opportunities, and to guarantee that New
Jersey consumers Willrcontinue'to enjoy a constant and viable financial
services network. The financial industry uill‘ continue = to be
deregulated, and 'we should, therefore, . take spec1al note of a deft

observatlon reported 1n a recent Time Maga21ne
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) “A.bank‘slmost important:asset is not the cash:in its'vaults,'
but its. oustomers‘ confidence..  In the past few hectlc months, some
‘ bankers have made heavy w1thdrawals from their confldence accounts.
;‘:Flnanc1al leaders must now - show that they can’ ‘use their Freedom from»h
“regulatlon to rebu1ld a strong and stable banklng system. "
1 thank you for this -opportunity to appear before you - today.

I want you to. know that my entlre staff and I are ‘available to answer

S any questions or concerns arlslng from these hearlngs, and we will be

.eager to help ‘design the leglslatlve ‘blueprints whlch w1ll be the
'produot of this Subcommlttee Please do not he31tate, as well, to call-
upon . my Leglslatlve Liaison Ufflcer, Miss Najnigier, whom I have asked"
to remain present throughout the hearlng for your oonvenlenoe We arey
: all‘here ready to serve your efforts in this Suboommlttee. Werlook o
forward to dynamio and»construotive orogress through your work. Thank
,you.- | . . . ‘» , o . s |
v | | ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA Comm1581oner; I am very happy that you‘f
jappeared before us to give us your v1ewp01nts On behalf of this
"?Subcomm;ttee and ‘the Legislature, I can . say that we are all on the
same wayelength’- We are Very much 1nterested 1n the same thlngs that
‘the Department is. 1nterested 1n,,and that you are 1nterested in. ‘TZI
assure you that thlS Subcommittee w1ll taKe serlous note of what you
have said. ‘
| 1 also want to comment ‘about your trlps to Washlngton to urge
'them that these pending appllcatlons either be denled or tabled.  As
you said, this should not depend on ‘loopholes. ,Thls ~is such' an |
important‘item, it should not bebregulated through the‘method?of a
loophole in the law.  As you know, ‘there has been cooperation between
the ’Legislature, your Department-‘ and the Executive‘ Branch on bthis
‘particular;pointt Through the Leglslature and the Governor s offlce'.
the moratorium was signed, with qu1ck action. That ties in with these
‘ hearings.andyuith'the'samegthinking that_the.Executlve.Branch has, as
: well'as the Legislative Branéhl At ‘least it will give”us some time‘tor
:see_ what the effects:vare. | It should be ydone‘ by 1legislation or

‘regulation,'not by loopholes.

§m %ﬁfmm* @
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» o1 agree ‘with ‘your comment that the State should also be
‘vigilant as to the problem with the two-tiered regulations I am VETY
happy to report that we have rapport between the two departments.

_ Members of the Subcommlttee, do you have any questions?
ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO Yes, 1 would like to ask some questlons

'ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Assemblyman Kosca.
ASSEMBL YMAN KOSCO: = I have a report here, which you also.

have, from the American Banker.g It is a_ report'on interstate banking -

and Florida public interest} One of the- arguments contalned therein is
- -against certain things:’that have, to: do with state banking and
geographical restrictions. I'm wondering if you/mlght have an answer.
It says, '"Regional reciprooity ~and regional reciprocity not coupled
with a,trigger:-vPermitted nationwideyreoiprocity on a subsequent date
may be illegalv"' Do you think that is a true statement?

COMMISSIUNER PARELL: Assemblyman, that very issue is now

pendlng before the Unlted States Supreme Court, in a case testing the -

New England Regional InterstatevBanklng Compact, which does not contain
‘a trigger.  Last wesk 1 conversed with the general counsel :tor the
Federal Reserve about this point. 1 pointed out to him that the
proposed legislation for‘New‘JerSey-does oontain a national trigger. I
| said that if NeW'England had such a trigger, wouldntt the case pending
before the Supreme Court be moot, -and ‘he - sald he thought S0, yes
So, the  proposal Wthh ‘the New Jersey bankers have agreed

'upon, and seek to air before this Subcommittee before the- year is out,
will not, in my oplnlon, suffer from those constitutional deficiencies.

o ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: It doesn't really matter what the time
would be? It could be ‘three years, five.years, or ten years, as long
as there 1s a trlgger ‘ ‘ ,g . , o

CDMMISSIONER PARELL I’woold say it should be reasonable,
yes. o , R : |
‘ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Do you - thlnk it is fair to say that if
interstate banking does take place, whether it be on a regional
. basis or whatever, the consumer would stand to benefit because of the

open competition 1t would provide?
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. COMMISSIONER PARELL: = I think that this SubcommitteefShould
‘address itself to that question throughoUt its deliberations. I do not
claim ‘to have the last word on that. No one'can'really predict with
assurance how these developments will'affect the consumer. However,
the experience,,at least in the regionsbwhich have deVeloped across
‘state lines in banking; is' that the 'consumerifin ‘a defeguiated
marketplace talks with his ‘dollar. If the service‘ is not being‘
provided to him at his bank, he now has a range of dptions to ehobse',
from. He can take his business elsewhere.  So, even though perhaps
banks will be becomlng larger and control will be more centrallzed in.
the banklng industry, the bankers themselves_recognlze, very clearly,
that service and conpetitive prices must be provided in the marketplace
or they are not going to succeed, big or small.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: I think one ofsthe biggest fears is that
'the small bank will go away. Most of the people we discuss it with
back in our leglslatlve dlStrlCtS are concerned that the small banks
‘wlll qo away. The report I read in the bankers magazine claims that
that is not true, that the small banks are not on the verge of going
away; they will not have a trend of going away, because the costs seem
to- stay stabilized, accordlng to the percentage of business they are
doing.: The banks which are properly managed will not have a negative
effect on 1nterstate banking, even though a larger bank may come in and
buy out some of. the smaller banks.  -The surv1val of small banks is
still possible Do you think that is a.true statement7

COMMISSIONER PARELL: That is a very good question, and I
think - one that ‘this Subcommittee should also focus on throughout its
hearings, that ‘is, with larger and _larger geographlcal scope for
banks, will the small banks go away? I agree that ‘it appears the
answer isv"no."‘ I think New Jersey needs both big banks and small
" banks in order to serve the vast variety of banking eustomers which we
are fortunate to have in this State. You need a small local personal
bank for some uses, and you need great big banks to finance great big
achievements in this State. You need both." ' | |

The dual system of banking offers a great opportunity for

small banks to spring into existence; to become stable, and to serve
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: their:communities.’ We”aretseeing:an increasing trend toward a'desire
' to»start'up:new banks, and -so as some of. the, perhaps, weaker sisters
are merged ' out of ex1stence, 1Stronger new banks are . comlng ~into-
existence. , LT |
ASSEMBLYMAN = KOSCO: -'From the standpoint . of" the consumer,

again, a smaller bank with‘ "X" amount of dollars availaole"would
A‘USUally setvaside 5-hand l'm guessing‘because I am not a banker ---a
'certain'percentage'of that money which_it would earmark for high risk
nloans.'»vlf‘agbank had a larger amOunt of dollars available, wouldn't
that number become higher, thereby~allowing for- more high risk loans in
a certain area?‘ Maybe thefc0nsumer‘would be helped a littlevbit‘that.
way, uhere SOmeone who really didn't have topnotch ‘number‘one credit
would have an opportunlty to get. a loan- to get his credit. back on
track 3 : o Lo B .
_COMMISSIONER PARELL: Certainly one of the best aspects about
a communityemanaged banklis that it looks'beyond just the black’and
white numbers on the page of someone's  financial statement. They can
~tell through thelr knowledge of ‘the person's existence in the community
whether thls is a good loan rlsk or not. . That would be somethrng the
community bank : should contlnue to address and  serve. On the other
hand, the maJor challenge fac1ng banks, large and small, these days is
to make sure “that thelr assets and their liabilities are properly
matched, so that they,remaln sound and strong.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Thank you.
COMMISSIONER PARELL: Thank you.

. ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: | ~Commiss10ner, I have allseries‘ of
questions‘to ask, but I think what I would rather do is wait until I
hear some of'-the° testimony from the experts in the audience today
before I ask those questions. However, I would like to personally
thank you for . your appearance here today, and I thank you for the input
you have glven us on the subject matter.

COMMISSIONER PARELL: Thank you, Assemblyman Loveys. As the
-~ work of this Subcommittee'develops,il would hope to be 1nv1tedjback,
Mr. Cha1rman7 o o | |
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: A few facts have come to my mind. In

your opinion, how has deregulation boosted some of the total assets?
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COMMISSIONER PARELL: Well' the main problem whlch brought
about the movement toward deregulation of 1nterest rates was that the
" money market account was 1nvented, not within the banklng industry, but

without the banklng 1ndustry, and people, reallzlng that they could now o

get market rates of interest on their sav1ngs,‘were not puttlng thelrr'

bmoney in the banks in such great numbers Banks 31mp1y had to become

- competitive to reattract the deposits whlch, after all, are their stock

1n trade. So,. but for- deregulatlon of interest rates,.you would have

»seen a Further erosion of the banks ability to serve their customers.
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: ThlS reminds me of occ381onal trips

to the c1ty with my wife. 1 have seen. elderly people, little old

. ladies with a shopping bag, going to one bank. and taking'their money

7 out, gettlng a $20 00 certificate or a fan, and Jumplng from one bank>
to another.' 1 have ‘wound up at the Port Authority Bus Termlnal whereh
~ .everyone had a. full shopping bag. I think I succumbed to somethlng-
" like that too, becauseamy wife said—- All right, 1 thihk that is what
'you are driving at. - _ _" ' o
| co_MMIssioNER PARELL:  Well, it is a'facetiobs point, Mr.
Chairman,»but it is also a very,'very strong point. Banks are the only
ones ;which insure depositors' money through the ,Federal deposit
insurance system So, I believe there is a long-term future fer

banks.  There is a great need for people to understand that if they
want to be sure their money is safe and sound, that money should be put

in a bank. _ : v v
ASSEMBLYMAN ~ LaROCCA: I don t mean to go into the.
nitty- -gritty of it, but I wonder if you have some offhand conclu31ons
as to hqw New Jersey can preserve control over the shape.of 1nterstate
bankihg.' As yoqasaid, it 'is here.  We see it. It is in a loophole
condition and all that but I am just WOndering if you have any-
prOJectlons as to how the State -- between the Legislature and your -
Department -- can do somethlng about that
COMMISSIONER PARELL: Yes, 1 have conclus1ons in several
areas. Regianal interstate banking would be a major accompllshment by
bthe State in terms of shaping the future of its own'banking industry-.

If iegislatiOH‘were'passed,’New Jersey would be saying to the rest of
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" the country, "We recognize that interstatepbanking as a market force is -
coming, and ln many forms is here. We are not isolationists,-but-we'
are g01ng to gu1de when -and how thls is 901ng to come." = That is one

“example. , ‘ - B ,

, Another example is, w1th1n ‘this admlttedly complex Federal
and State regulatory scheme, the states do have a certaln amount of
latitude to determlne_whlch powers their flnanc1al institutions will be
permitted to,exeroiseﬁ So, as this Subcommlttee gets further into the
QUestion. of3hnew p0wers, or.. ‘expanded powers »for the f1nanc1al
instltotions5' then we guide, or you gu1de, the development - of our
1nst1tut10ns as competltlve forces 1n the market .

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO One more thought JUSt came to me. ' About
bthree”or'four years ago -- I m not sure when it was -- when it started..
>I was Vlce Chairman, of a commission . whlch was establlshed to study
banklng,rules and regulatlons. We tried -- from that time up untll the
present -- tovconsolidate and maybe prov1de a little parity between the
_dlfferent types of lendlng institutions in the State. Do you see this
“happening? Suppose we go into a regional type of banking and we join
_ with'uother states, wouldn t that lead to the- states having to get
together to set up some type of regional banking plan, as far as rules
andvregulatlons are concerned, because right now each state has its own
regulations? If we recognize a bank From another state, it may not
meet the same standards and the same regulatlons that we requ1re, and‘
vice versa. : v . _ - ,
v CUMMISSIONER PARELL: That - is another very telling point,
Assemblyman Kosco The klnd of interstate banking we are talking about
~ today will not require that. 4 The kind‘of interstate banking that we
‘get tomorrow mlght require some effort. The today issue in interstate
',banklng is not the branchlng of Pennsylvania or Maryland banks into Newv
- Jersey.. It is the acqu131t10n.or merger of banks which are- located in
~one state to be owned by holding companies in other states. In other
words, under ‘the 'regional ~interstate banking proposal, a  New
Jersey-based bank holding company could»acquire'a Pennsylvania bank.
- Now, that bank in Pennsylvania would continuei to ibe' regulated in
Pennsylvanla. , | _ ,

ASSEMBLYMAN KDSCO But, if we went on tohthe next’ stage?
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_ COMMISSIONER PARELL: - Branching would raise the question of
— ‘hétching regulations across state lines. '

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: . Thank you o .
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: 1 don't have a questlon, but as long as

~ this dialogue is cont1nu1ng, I feel that if we achieve maybe a goal of

interstate banklng and we have consolidation reglonally, you are 901ng
to flnd, very definitely, that the larger banks -- and, I'm happy to
hear that New York is not even being considered in this regional
‘ setup-- o , RN _ .?‘ B ' '
- COMMISSIONER PARELL: (interrupting) Not in the first phase.
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Yes, the first phase, but I feel that
the lérgEr banks will defintiely control  the prices, and‘maybe to the
detriment of the‘consumerf i_would like to heérvsomeone prove, or tfy
‘to prove, that this would not take place. I Feel, also, that with
consolidation it might.lead to an excessive concentration of economic
power in one~poiitical hand, if you wili, or one banking hand. These
‘ are avenues that I am much concerned about. v ‘

, » There is one other aspect of this whole 1nterstate banking
thing; I know a lot of communities are really satisfied and happy with
‘the'service attitudes and activitiesithat the local banksvgive‘to the
communities. I would hdpe, because,of'interstaté'bénking, that the
\comMUnities would not,lose_this flavor. I think that is very important
to our‘smallvmunicipalities where we have lending institutions which

- take very active roles in municipal activities. Again, I am cautious.
' COMMISSIONER PARELL: They are a great treasure to the State.
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: That is something I would never like to

hsee the Staté'lose. I have some questions in this area. Again, the
questions are not for you, Commissioner. They are juét SOmé,thoughts I

have on interstate banking itself. S v
" ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  Are there any = further questions?
- (negative response) Thank you, Commissionér.‘ The cooperation between
both departménts will continue. ' _ ‘ o
COMMISSIDNER PARELL: Thank ydu very much. »

: ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  The next witness is from the Department

of 1nsurance, the designee of the Commissidnervof Insurance, Verice

Mason.
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FVERICE M;’MASON' Good mornlng, Assemblyman LaRocca, Assemblyman Kosco,
| and Assemblyman Loveys. My name is. Verlce Masonj I am Dlrector of the
Division of Leglslatlve and Regulatory ‘Affairs. 1Atrmy left is Thomas
~ Hooper, Spec1al Assistant to the CommlsSloner We are both appearing :
today on behalf of Jasper J. Jackson, Actlng Comm1381oner of Insurance.

Unfortunately,‘we have very little to report to you today
: because we are studylng the 1ssuas currently under study by thlS
v:Subcommlttee._ We have establlshed our own task force on banklng and
1nsurance matters.. Thls task force was‘establlshed late last year; it
 met early in January;fand, we are expecting'recommendatiOns to be made
on similar issues as are -under study by this Subcommittee, on or before
May 1 of this year. At that time, our Department will take those
recommendations;- study themy and issue a ‘final report on what our
recommendatlons are concernlng the issues under study at thlS time.

As I sald they have JUSt begun working. They have broken-
~ down into subcommittees, and we do expect - a report. eMr, Hooper is our
liaison w1th1n the Department. who is working with this partiCular task
force. The'task'force consists oF'13imembers, industry individuals;.
. who are very knowledgeable in this area and who are expected to-give us
good recommendations. - We mlght ‘say that our timetable, as I have A

Stated,’should permit”us to get some 1nformatlon back to you, possibly
| in June. At this time, we are offerlng our expertlse and any help. that
'we may prov1de to- thlS Subcommlttee durlng your ong01ng studles of
'these issues. ’ ,
| 1 bhave- nothlng more to say at thlS time. "lf you -have any
v'partlcular questions about the current work of our task force, Mr.
',Hooper stands ready to answer those questlons :

" ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: I am pleased to hear that we will have
a good rapport with the Department of Insurance, and we will continue
along those lines. - You understand that this is the first hearing and
everyone 1is. getting his or her feet wet, so to speak, by listenlng to
all of the issues.  Are there any‘guestions from my colleagues7

_ - ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Do we have one person. in the Department
of Insurance who is a contact person ‘for ‘us? ~ If this Subcommittee

wants to contact your task force, whom do we speak to7

20



©MS. MASON:' It-could.either be me,fAssemblymah Kosco, ormMr.
‘Hooper. v ‘ .‘ , _ _v R B | |
R 'ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO:  Why don't we have one person so that we
can-- R e
- MS. MASON: '(interrupting) It can be Mr. Hooper because he
~1s ‘our Departmental liaison with the. task force.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: . If we can have dlrect contact- with Mr
E Hooper, we will know whom we have to -speak to,'and vice versa.

You have established your - task force _You have 13 people
from the 1ndustry, but which 1ndustry, the 1nsurance 1ndue.try'7

MS MASON:" Yes, that is my understandlng

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: -~ And, you are g01ng to be  studying
»'1nsurance companles being in the banking business, and banks belng in
~the insurance business? » o o - .

MS. MASON: Yes. We have given them a‘lieting:of 16 areas we
would like them to study Mr. Hooper-might want‘to;elaborateton}thet,~
or you mlght like a copy of,a letter we sentfthem asking them to study
certain issues. . _ o S ‘. o .‘_,"

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: 1 would like a copy of that letter, and 1
elso wonder, do- you have any members of the banklng 1ndustry, or a
liaison from the Banklng Department on your task force? If you only
have insurance people on the task force, you are certalnly golng to get
a one -sided report. I could probably write. that report for you rlght’

now, and could probably parallel the one you are 901ng to get from your
committee.

THIMAS J. HOOPER: Well, I think the thrust of the task force's study
“is to v1ew the problem of banks versus 1neurance in the perspectlve of
'fthe insurance 1ndustry.v The task force-- , N :
'ASSEMBLYMAN: KOSCO:  (interrupting) - Excuse me. Is it to
_ review the problems, or is -it to review the p0531b111ty ‘of 1t7 It may"
,.not be a problem, or it may be a problem. If we start now with the
understandlng that it is a problem, we are going to end up with theti
I'm sure. 1 am JUSt trying to put it into the same perspective as we
‘have put'this Subcommittee. We are trying to get ‘pros and cons; we

want to get both sides of the story so we can sit down and make a real
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'judgment.baeed'on the real needs of the consumers of the State of New
Jersey. That's first. Seoondly; we want to make a,judgment-based on
the needs of thehindustry; ‘But, how it is going to affectithe‘oonsumer »
'is a very important part of our hearings,_' I think it should beaan
important part' to you, also. If you only have 13 members of the

‘industry, and no one from the Public Advocate's office, no one to

represent the consumer, and no one to present the facts, you mlght get

a llttle bit of a one-sided answer. e : :
. MR. HOOPER: Well, the task force was given a great deal of

~autonomy when»lt was formed by Comm1331oner Merin last November. He
told the task force: that it was free tovsolicit'statements from the
Public Advocate,lfrom consumers' groups, from banks, and from any area
1t found 1t might receive useful information. ;
' : Admlttedly, though the perspectlve is that of the insurance
1ndustry, and I don't--. v : . v

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: (1nterrupt1ng) See, ‘that report would be
benef1c1al to us, but only if we had another report that came from JUSt
‘the banklng 1ndustry, and if we had another report that .came from just
the Public Advocate' s office. Then we could take the three of them
and-- ' ; e ‘ ,
MR.- HOOPER:  (interrupting) I understand that Conmiseloner
Parell has a 31m11ar committee ‘working on the same problem, viewing it
~ from the banks' perspectlve. So, hopefully you w1ll get two views, one .
from the perspective of each 1ndustry |

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Okay. I would suspect that--

MR. HOOPER: (interrupting) - And, that would put the burden
;on you of-=- '
_ ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO (1n+errupt1ng) Yes. I am just trying to
look for all the information I can get from as many people as I can get
it;i Then, I w1ll have to sit down, 51ft 1t, ‘and de01de on a plece of .
- legislation. 1 say I, but we have to approve of that legislation.
 This is a very, very important thing. It is going to set the
foondations for what is going to happen in the State.  As the
Conmissioner said'before; we are dealing with laws and rules right now

. that were not written for the elethonic age, and we have to be‘Very
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concerned' about that. We need all the .information' we can get from »
every department. : ' v l l
MR. HOOPER: Assemblyman Kosco, are you familiar with the
DeWind Comm1831on Report, the leglslatlve study ‘that - was made in New
York7 ' '
» ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: No, I am not
| MR. HOOPER: All right, I will be happy. to send you a copy ofv
it. I think it will prove useful to you.
» ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: That would be good. Maybe you could send .~
Sit to all of us. ‘ ) _— | |
'MR. HOOPER: Yes, I'll do that.
ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Okay, thank you. N .
'ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: 1 just have one question. I wonder if
‘your Department has any feeling about banks selling insurance.
. MS. MASON: Well, qulte frankly, Assemblyman‘LaRocca,,we feel
uncomfortable about making any determinations'at this time'without—- v
| ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: = (interrupting) That is one of the big
thingsb Later on, after more testimonyland after more hearings, I‘hope
there will be some “input along the llnes of whether banks should sell -
insurance. That would be your Department. Maybe it's good, maybe it's
bad._ I reallze this may be a llttle snowball which occurred, but I
didn't mean it that way. o - B |
MS. MASON:  Well, we will be cognizant of the need to provide
some - input to you on that issue. As I said, please contact Mr. Hooper
-at any t1me and we will try to prov1de you with whatever information
you need. ’ _ ,
ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: On the issue that Assemblyman LaRocca
just brought up about banks selling insurance, do you think we may get
btwo feelings ffon”the“industry, one feeling from the: . companies which -
.say; "We do not'pafticularly care who sells our product, ae long as our
hproduet,is sold," and another one from the agent, who says, "I am the
agent and I want to be the one who sells the product." For example;
YOu know I own an automobile dealership, and I donft really care. who
sells my cars, whether a mechanic sells my cars, whether my salesmen

sell my cars, or whether my office manager sells my. ears, But, my
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salesmen care whO”sells my cars. So, if I have a mechanic doing the
job of a salesman, I am gcing to hear a'different story. But, from a
company standpoint, I don' t really care who ‘sells them.

MS;'MASDN, We have agents who sit on this partlcular task
force. . ’

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: You have agents and company neople?

MS. ‘MASON: Yes, we do.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO:  Great.

- MS. MASON: So, we w1ll try to balance that out
" ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Okay. | o

MS. MASON: All right? Thank you very much. , |

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: I am going to try to accommodate
everyone time-wise. The next witness will beiMr. Richard Jones'from
| tHe Natibnal Conference of State Legislatures. Mr.'Jones has come all
the way from Denver, and I hope he will give us an overview of what is
'happenlng nationally on this llttle parochlal problem, which is now a
national problem. Mr. Jones? , ‘ ,
o RICHARD JDNES:" Thank =~ you. . Mr. Chairman, Assemblyman Kosco,
Assemblyman,Loveys: Thank you very much for inviting me and for giving
. me an opportnnity to come here with the National Conference of State
Legislatures. One of the areas and 1ssues I happen to deal with there
vis the banking question. Over the ‘course -of the last several years, -
this has been a very hot topic in a lot of states, including New
Jersey. We have held several sessions at our annual meeting,’and’at
other meetings on the topic. = In October, we held sa conference in the

Midwestern states, specifically looking at regional banking in  those

states.” We are planning a seminar this May -- most likely in
-Washington -- for the Eastern and Mid-Atlantic states, as well as_sOme
 others, to look at the issqe of interstate’ banking. - So, this is

- something we have‘been interested in. We have talked tola lot of the
legislators about it. v

' Mr. Chairman, I have a couple of reports I will leave with
your staff.’ One is a summary of  what. the states have done on
~interstate banking. This was done in June of last year; The other is

a transcript of the meeting we held in October on regional interstate
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banklng Thls was held in conJunctlon w1th the WlSCOﬂSln Leglslature,
" and there are a lot of different v1ewp01nts from 1ndependent bankers,,»
“as well as larger banks, on the toplc. v . |
In my presentatlon here, 1 -am Just 901ng to try to
.concentrate on brlnglng you up to date, and lettlng you know what the‘

Leglslatures have -done around- ‘the country relative to 1nterstate

banking.  In 1983, there were approximately 81 bills 'dealing‘ with,:‘u

geographlc expan81on within the state Legislatures. . In 1984, 33
"Leglslatures looked at 1nteretate banklng. A number of them passed
legislation. Right now, there are. approximately 20 states -- as of the,i'
end of 1984 -- that prov1de for some form of 1nterstate banklng 1
will go through some of the approaches we have looked at and have been
- able to 1dent1fy
_ One is full open interstate banklng --a bank from any state,‘
“no re01proc1ty. Another  is reclprocal 1nterstate banking, generally
based on a reglonti The‘third is to set up a limited purpose office to
allow banks to come into your:state to do a specificvthing.v Generally,
certain requirements are placed on the* bank before it can conme into a
state to do that. The fourth is emergency aoguisitions, and the fifth
would provide for_ some"grandfather provisions ‘for banks whlch had ‘
interState'operatiOnsbpriOr to the amendments‘ These banks would be
allowed to continue to operate their 1nterstate banks

Let me go through these in a little more detail and p01nt out
:ethe states Full open interstate banking: Two “states, Alaska and
» Maine, allow for full open interstate banking right now. Generally,
thoserstates passed this.legislation as a means of trying to attract
capltal into,their states; Maine is a relatively small state; Alaska
is bigger but; also, I think they are a bit off the beaten path and
-they want. to ‘get' capital into. their state. Maine initially' enacted
legislation that provided,for reoiprocity.: In 1984, they removed that
reciprocity requirement. One of 'the reasons was that they had a
difficult time determining whether their law and 'Massachusetts"_law
were, in faot, reciprocal, whether, in fact they were the same. Maine
also establlshed a prov181on called a "net new funds prov131on," which

required, before the banking regulators could approve an acquisition or
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the ‘operatiOn of a new “bank’ in ,the"staté, that « the  bank had to

o demonstratehthat it would result in new net funds coming into Maine,

—-and they would have to ‘report” that annually to the banking regulators

The equivalent of the1r banklng comm18310ner made a presentation at the

“'Mldwestern Conference that they had been able to attract $30 million to

- $40 million in new capital in 1984, as a result of a change in their

‘»'flaw.v They . feel there that the banking 1ndustry is very competitive now
in the State of Maine. ‘ L

~The second approach is rec1pr0cal banking i Clearly, this is
the most popular approach that . the states are looking at, the one that
is gettlng most of the attention Principally, it is on a regionaly
"ba31s States in the same region w1ll allow banks from other states in
that region to either set up new offices or to acqu1re banks in their
state, providing their banks can do the same in the other states.‘ Ten
‘states allow reciprocity;‘ New York ' allows reciprocity"with all 50
states.  Florida, Georgia, North Carolina; and South Carolina allow
_ re01pr0c1ty with the other Southeastern states, and they extend as far~'
north as the District of Columbia

Kentucky allows re01pr001ty w1th contlguous states. Some of',
those would be 31milar states to - those 1nvolved -in the Southeastern
region, but it would also.mean some states in the Midwest, such as
Indiana and Illinois. vMassachusetts;'Rhodg.Island; and Connecticut,
the region in New England, allow reciprocity 'between their states.
Utah will allow reciprocity with 11 Western states.j'NotiCeably absent
- from the Utah blll is the State of California , '
| Clearly, the states have approached regional rec1procal laws
w1th the idea of excluding some of the states which have large money(
“center ‘banks. In the New England approach, they did not want New York
as- part of their'regionf. 1 think Utah and some of the Western states
would bei concerned' about not 'haying' California as part of theirA
region; rThe‘Midwest had somesinitial'concern about the Chicago banks;
’however, the legislation I have seen, and from talking to people in the
:Midwest, Illinois_iS’now included as part of that region. Apparently
Continental Illinois problems have resulted in the other states in

that region becoming less fearful of the Illln01s banks.
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The 'next .approach was one that vwas aimed at setting up,
. again, limited-purpose\offices. The states have done this with the
‘idea that Sit owill stimulate‘ economic develooment ~and provide. jobs.
They allow banks to come into their states forvaVSpecial poroose; for
~example, to set up a credit card operation.  They haVe'done this by
proyiding them with various incentives, either removing usury limits,
for example, on what the banks could charge on the credlt cards, ort
proViding other tax incentives. I see thlS, probably, as ‘a trend that =~
will not- continue too much further. The states that have passed
bleglslatlon that would provide for this would be Delaware, South Dakota

~the two most notable -- Nebraska, Maryland and- Nevada., Nevada
passed legislation in 1984 to allow Citicorp to set up a credit caro
operation out81de of Las Vegas ‘

The next approach was an emergency acqu181t10ns policy to

deal with potentlal fallures in the financial services. area, 1in terms
of dealing with bank fallures, as well as S&L failures. There, they
~have generally set out. a hierarchy for laying out who is to acquire
what type of-institution and .who has preference. Then they have 5130'
dealt with »the'vbranching after vacguisition. - -Oregon, Virginia,b
Washington, and Utah are examples of states which have passed that type
of legislation recently. o

_ -Again, the last part would be the grandfather states,  where
they allow the banks to continue their interstate activities which were
underway prior to:the"Bank Holding Company Act and its amendments.
. What”is-pending now and- where? Again, regional reciproeal
continues to be the hottest thing the states are looking at. = Indiana
hae a bill pending that would allow regional reciprocal banking with‘
contiguous states. Ohio -- contiguous states as  well. They would
gogto‘ full-interstate. They have a national trigger. ‘,The banking
eommissioner:wasvtalkingiabout this trigger. Ohiovwould allow it two
years after enactment. It is my understanding that-this is similar to
the = Kentucky = statute. - Maryland is also looking at * regional
reciprocal. Wisconsin has a bill before its Legislative Council which
is llkely to be introduced. They have had a special committee studylng
the issues thls last year, also reglonal re01procal Oregon 1is looklng

at reglonal r801procal



Two - states are looking at legislation that would provide for
full interstate'bahking.’ Washington has two bills. One would allow
reCiproéity with ‘all of the states; much like New York. The other
would provide interstate banking' withdut reciprqcify, much like the

"Alaska and Maine prov131ons Arizdna has legislation that is looking

at,‘agaln, wide-open full 1nterstate banking. Other states where I do
not have»as,many details are Virginia and Tennessee. 1 undérstand they
are looking at’legislétion, again 1 think, on a regional basis. |

In Mlchlgan they had legislation that was. enacted at the end’
of last year which would provide for intrastate branchlng, as well as
regional interstate branching, -which ‘was vetoed by the Governor in
Decémber. After contécts,with the Michigah Legislature last week, 1
understand they do- not have legislétion ihtroduced as yet, but it is
pretty likely thevaill_introducé,another bill. .

Il1linois'  regional v‘recipndcal‘ bill is likely to be
introduced. Thé big 1banksi and little banks apparently have been
meeting and discussing legislationvthat théy both can live with. It is
expected ‘that that will be 1ntroduced there. .

- Pennsylvania, because of its being a neighboring. state-- We
have talked to some people there, and they do not have any bills which
'have been 1ntroduced as yet However, more than llkely, the 1issue 1is
alive there and will be discussed. v , ,

I will mention some other- issues  concerning -interstate

bénking; and then I will stop. Most 'of what 1 have said here ‘is

included in the report which I have provided to the Committee.

Assemblyman'Kosco, you mentioned a question about the‘constitutiOnality
of the vrégional"approach. As the Commissioner stated, it is now
pending before the United States Supreme Court.  The Second Circuit‘
Court of Appeals, in August, ruled that the MQSSachusétts and
Connecticut laws--' There ére basically two major points: One, they
did violate the commerce clause  of the Constitution by prohibiting
banks from outside of the New Englénd region to acquire; and two, it
was not a violatioﬁ‘bf the compact clause of thedenstitQtion. ‘The
banks said-that the:only way thé states could oVerride, éssentially,

the ‘commerce clause was to enter. into an interstate compact.  An
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~interstate compact has to be ratified by the Congress; this was not
ratified by the Congress. - The courts decided this was  nbt én
interstate  compact, but_'basically‘~parallelled legislation, and they
found»that it was perfectly legal. It is my underétahding'-—'and it
comes just-'from thel'press -- -that the court is expecfed to hear
afguments on that case in April, and will render a decision sometime
this_yéar; .‘ o _
_ The second major area of activity is_in,the‘Congress. The
last Congress had  two pieces of'legiélation, one in the Senate that
‘was passed in the'Senate,vand a House measure that was hot'passed in
the House. =~ They were: kind of different ébproaches,\but essentially
| would,look at product deregulation —-‘principally on the Senate side --
~and would also talk about some geographic expansion. I think the major
factors in the legislation‘from the last Congress likely td be involved
in the -legislation, and this. Congress, which will affect the states
principallykare: IOne, a closure of the non-bank bank loophole; two, a
specific -'approval, or a specific statement in the legislation that
Congress would approve -and allow the regional reciprocal approaéh that
the-states-have enacted; énd, three, a move to prohibit the export of
certain products. One of the things that South Dakota did in 1984 was
allow - banks  to set up insurance operatidns where they could sell
ihsurance,' but they could only sell .it outside the State of South
Dakota. The Congress, at least in the legislation last year, would
havé prohibited them from . just exporting that. It wouldn't be able tp
allow the banks to sell it oﬁtside df South Dakota. The major question
with the Congfess is when, and will they act. If so, what will the
final result be? | | |
I guess the third major issue that I will leave you with is
the question of non—bahk banks, which apparently you folks have already
.dealt with in ‘your moratorium. As I understand it, four states have
enactéd legislation aimed specifically at preventing bank holding
companies = and othér banking ~ institutions from éetting _up non-bank
: bénks} The Colorado Legislature, for instance, aéted already  this
year, .and the aét was signed by the Governor about a week ago. This

was acting very quickly for them, since they have only been in session,
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roughly, for about a month. Cohnecticut North Carolina, and Florida
'reportedly also have adopted similar legislation. |

In c1031ng; 1 would again like to thank the Subcommittee for
Haffording me the opportunity to speak to you. I have some reports for

vyou; I have copies of _many of the statutes I have referred to, and 1 .

can provide them to your staff. We are more than Wllllng to work with

you as best we can throughout your study period. ' Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Mr. Jones, just one minor p01nt " Would
you please repeat the scenario 'in South Dakota regarding selling
~ insurance? ‘ ' ‘ o _
: MR. JONES: Sure. Basically what they did was, they allowed
state-chartered banks to‘set»up an operation to sell ihsuraHCe, but
they prohibited them  from selling that insurance within the State of
South Dakota. o ' »
, ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: = So, conversely, North Dakota could sell
insurance in South Dakota; ‘ v

MR. JONES: Well, if North Dakota acted.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: If they acted7 :

- MR. JONES: VYes, but North- Dakota did not aot yet 1t was
not a re01procal kind of a deal : '
, ASSEMBLYMAN LUVEYS Again, what was the main reasoning

" behind that? S | o o |

MR. JONES: I think the main reason was that it would provide
a benefit to the banking institution which would set'up the insurance
subsidiary to sell it. brv o : v

© ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Who were they protecting?

MR. JONES: I think Citicorp was one of the banks which got a
-state charter and did set up a subsidiary to sell insuranoe. They
would Just sell it by mail into some other states. But, specifically‘
the Legislature said they would not be able to do it w1thin the State
of South Dakota. : o

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO Did that happen?

MR. JQNES. Yes, the legislation was enacted. In terms of
the status of the operation,’lyam not sure whether they are actually

sellingrthe insurance or whether they backed off on it. The provision,
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as I understand it in the Congressional legislation last year, would
have‘prohibited states from allowing that to occur.

ASSEMBL YMAN LaROCCA:i I gather that this subject matter is a
national one. Does your organization have any model blll, or model
act, that you recommend or suggest?

MR. JONES: Mr. Chairman, we have worked very hard at not
getting into the model legislation business, and I think for good
reason. What ‘I would suggest you do -- and there are citations
provided to the other states' legislation in this report, and as 1
said, I can proQide copies of it to you -- is look at what the other
‘states haQe done. For the most part, ‘it has been relatively very
similar. You know, you read one of the bills and it is.pretty much the
same as another. There have been some variations. Obviously, a major
question would be: Do you want to do some sort of trigger mechanism to
open it up to full interstate down the road? Another option would be
to allow banks to come into the State, or just limit it to acquiring a
couple of states, extending the privilege out to other types of
1nst1tut10ns beyond banks. | .

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA Professor Nadler, ‘do byou have a

question you would like to ask?
_ DR. NADLER: I was just wondering if the various - states
looking into interstate banking are talking about full branching,
letting a bank actually set up a branch, or is it strictly a holding
company operation?

MR. JONES: For the most part, what they have done is allow
the acquiring institution, when it has come "into a state, the same
privileges as an existing institution within the state. So, as 1
understand it, if the Neﬁ Jersey banks could branch statewide and a
Pennsylvania bank bought one of your banks, then they would have the
same privilege. ' '

DR.»NADLER: Have there been any cases yet where a state has
allowed another state fo_come in and aetually branch, instead of going
in as a holding company operation?

~MR. JONES: I'm not sure. 1 wouldn't be able to answer that.
ASSEMBLYMAN  LaROCCA: All" right. Are there any other

comments from .the Subcommittee?
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- ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: I have a comment. For the people in the
vaudienoe here, the organization that this gentleman repreSents is a
Very, very well- respected organization ‘New Jersey'happens tobbe'very
fortunate, because although it is- one of the smallest states in the
Unlon,'we have two representatlves in an offlclal capac1ty We have

Assemblyman Wlllle Brown ‘and - Assemblyman Chuck Hardw1ck serving asv

'offlcers of - that organlzatlon - So, New Jersey vis very well,p
represented. e o c
MR. - JONES | We appre01ate your partlclpatlon in_  the .

,organlzatlon, and the serv1ces of those gentlemen to it. .
ASSEMBLYMAN LUVEYS er, Jones, are you staylng 1n New York

Clty or Atlantlc City? o ' S . :
MR; JONES Actually, ‘neither. I am staylng out of state.

You are not gettlng much of a tax benefit out of me. I grew up in

‘Phlladelphla, and my’parents stlll live down there. So, not only is it
- 'a good opportunlty to speak to “you . about banklng, but lt is a. good
opportunlty to get home as well. '

' ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Do you know of any reason why everyone
wants to stay away from New York7 \

_ 7 MR. JONES: 1 think it is pretty much as the Comm1331oner
'explained to you. 1 think many. of the arguments that have been made
: for'the'regional approach‘are to allow the,bankslwithin the,statesv—¥,
the‘smaller‘banks -- to combine, to merge;'and to grow in assets. 1
think everyone'who has talked-about this issue or written about this
issue expects full open interstate at some point, so that those banks
could be large enough t0‘take.0n the money center banks One oflyour
questlons earlier was, "Will the small banks be able to compete7" Some"'
of the evidence that people point to.is New York, where they moved, in
approx1mately 1974, to intrastate banking. A lot of the money center
" banks, the big New York'banks, went upstate. As the Assembly Banking
Chairman from‘the State of New‘York indicated, they got their heads
handed to them. The cmaller banks in that region were able to compete
with them, and. compete very well.

_ I think it is clearly that the banks in some of these other
regions are ‘concerned - about having to take on a Citicorp or

Manufacturers Hanover, or some of the other money center banks.
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CASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: But, Citicorp itself has not expanded
' beyond New York State, has 1t7' . .': N ST .
4 - MR. JONES: I am not sure whether they have or not ‘i‘think
they tried. - SR , ' ' ' ’
' ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS “1'm not so sure they even trled.
ASSEMBLYMAN LaRDCCA “All rlght thank you
MR. JONES: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. o -
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA For a change in pace and a change 1n_
tphllosophy, we will now hear from a former Comm1331oner of Banklng who
“was on the inside durlng two previous admlnlstratlons. -1 am happy to
have as our next speaker, Mr. Richard Schaub We welcome you here,
Mr. Schaub. Please let us know what ~you have to say on this big
- subject matter,, whlch 1s a national one. o
RICHARD F. SCHAUB: Thank.you, Chairman LaRocca and members of the
Subcommittee It is a pleasure to be back in Trenton again today; 1
do mlss it from time to t1me, there are other tlmes when I don' t I am
pleased to have the opportunlty to speak to you today. o

I am Rlchard F. Schaub, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the First Fldellty Bank in West Jersey, a $420 mllllon affiliate of
the $10.6 billion- asset First National State Bank Corporatlon Holdlng
Company, New Jersey s largest banklng organlzatlon

1 have held my present p031tlon since 19763 prior to that I
served first ‘as Deputy CommlsSloner and then as Commissioner of the New
"Jersey Department of Banking. I was a- Cablnet member in Governor -
William Cahlll s and Governor Brendan Byrne s admlnlstratlons |

In 1983 and 1984, 1 held the office of Chalrman-of the New

Jersey Bankers Association, and I presently serve as a member of that
organization's executive commlttee, and as Chairman- of 1ts Interstate
‘Banking Task Force. ' .

' My remarks today wlll deal, generaliy, with the eVolution of'a
New Jersey s banklng structure, one of the most modern and efficient in
the natlon, as well as the competitive factors that have helped to
build that structure. i | R

Prior to 1968, New Jersey's financial institutions only -

Operated withinvcounty lines; that was a few short years ago. By that
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-1 mean}that.banks couid not branch~outside'df their home counties. In
' addition, banks could ,nqt branch into municipaiitiesb within their
counties in Which the.homé‘offigefof andthef bank was located,_or Whére
éthranch'oftice of another hank was iocated,\unless'the popuiation of
that‘mUnicipaiity exceeded 7,500. | S | '
‘County line - barriers,. home, office protectlon, ahd branch

~office protection, stifled competltlon and inhibited the growth of our

flnanc1al 1ndustry. We were a ‘second- class 1ndustry, unable to compete 1>

”w1th the New York and Phlladelphla glants to our east and west.‘_
_ In 1968 “two major pleces of banking leglslatlon became law
'and 31gnaled the beglnnlng of the end of an era which, if allowed to
-contlnue, would have guaranteed the perpetuatlon of a“second;class
status for not only our banks,.but for our State and our-people'aé
well. » : | R | b‘ | o

The' first and most important was the Bank Holding Company
Act and;'the second was the creation of three banking distriétsiwithin
‘which banks could branch. —However, the anti-tompetitive home of fice
,prdtectioh téhd ‘branch office protection provisions of the damended
banking law still prevailed in the three districts. o

It ‘wasn't tuhtil 11973, when Gerrnor Cahill ”signed the
statewide branching bill into law,ithat‘thé banking industry ih Newf
Jersey began to come of age ‘ ‘ v

1 would remind the Subcommittee that prior to 1970, there was
no billion dollar bank in New Jersey; nor was that notable mllestone'
first achieved by First National State Bank or the National Newark and
Essex, the predecessor of Midlantic Banks. The Howard Savings Bank was
the first billion dollar bank in New Jersey. '

‘ During the fifst‘.téw years'vafter the introduction of
statewide branéhing, we éxperienced a period of bank expansion that was
'unprecedentedi‘in our history. = Not only were new branches being
established all over’the.State, but new banks were being established as
well. | : | ‘

Local entrepfeneurs eagerly seized the oppdrtunity to seek
new charters in order to establish banks in developing éreasineglected

by existing banks. ‘Never ' before were banking services more

Yo
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‘conveniently available to the people of 0ur~State;‘ More importantly,
never before ‘had bwe' seen such a high degree of competition among
financial 1nstitutions, competition that drove banks to prov1de longer
i hours of service, deyelop new products, reduce loan rates and‘serVice
charges, and raise'rates‘onwsavings deposits. , -
| Theb public: interest was truly served byv the ’competition
’generated through the elimination of barriers to the free movement of .
’ financlal institutions into all areas of our State

One valuable lesson learned durlng this perlod was that
well—managed large, medium- sized, and small holding companies, and
1ndependent banks ‘as well, can operate profltably in the same - markets,

in spite of that: competltion _ _
- This period of rapid expansion _wasf Followed ’by one of

consolidation. Mergers and holding company acquisitions continue at a

fairly rapid pace, as we have learned’ that too many units represent a -

1neff1c1ent use of precious capital ‘For» competitiye, purposes, :
howeyer, we still have an ample number of .units, ensuring that the
public‘interest will continue to be served. '

"In the past few years, as New Jersey has beeri’ completlng its

structural deregulation,. Congress and - Federal regulatory authorlties

- have begun the -deregulation of banks' balance sheets as well.

Beginning with the liability side of the‘balance‘sheet, the interest
rate ceilings on deposit accounts have virtually been eliminated. Bank.
customers now expect, and get, market rates of ‘interest on their
savings and'Other'forms‘of time deposits, such as NOW accounts In
order to be able to pay these higher rates, banks have been forced to
;charge somewhat higher rates on the loans they make with - these
deposits. v _ v | _
In‘addition;vcharges for bank services have been increased to
reflect their true cost. Some services, which were at one'time free,
are now charged for. - Gone are the days when customers who‘kept large
free balances in their checking and three or ~four percent savings
accounts subsidized customers who maintained lower balances
‘ The composition of bank deposits has shifted dramatically
It is not unusual for banks to have 70 to 90 percent of their dBpOSltS .

in 1nterest -bearing accounts of some kind.
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Banks, unlike ‘the post office or a public utility,icannot
'petition a regulatory body - for higher rates when profits decline
" because of 1ncreased costs. ~ We are shareholder-owned companies,
operating in a highly -competitive marketplace which requ1res skillful
managers who can prov1de quality service to customers of" eyery.economic
level, while'-generatingbfsuffiéient profits in order to capitalize
future growth and pay a dividend to our shareholder/owners.

Granted, we operate under charters, awarded by either the
~ State or the Federal government, to serve»the public interest. Ihere‘
is no question about that. But, ‘let there ‘be no ‘mistake, we are
'proflt oriented and profit- driven, without profit, we cannot exist and
we cannot serve the public interest.

Further balance sheet deregulation is required if we are to
survive. Banks must be allowed to enter other financial service
industries. - Insurance companies ‘can own and operate banks, brokerages,
and investment - banking companies. Wall Street investment firms own and
operate banks, and they sell 1nsurance - Banks can do neither

< As our traditional markets are eroded by this invasion of
non-banking entities, profits and, thus, quality of serv1ce must
decline ‘as well. The 14 thousand plus, .commercial banks in this
‘ country, along with their branch network, represent, from the pUbllC s
point of v1ew, the most convenient method. of distributing finan01al
»serv1ces of all types.
. Real estate brokerage and 1nvestment, insurance of all types,
the sale of securities, and the. underwriting of certain issues, are
' products‘and powers that-banks must have if they are to compete in this
~new finan01a1 services arena. '

Interstate banking is the last subject 1 w1ll comment on
today. You are all aware of the regional interstate compacts --'1 am
'sure‘thevCommissioner has mentioned’this‘already, and perhaps other
speakers have as well -- that have either already been established, or
~are in the process of being established throughout the 'country;
Despite: challenges' to .theﬁ constitutionality of such arrangements
between states, one  of 'which is to be heard‘ by the United States
Supreme'Court;in April or May, I submit that interstate banking on,

first, a'regional and, ultimately, a nationwide basis will prevail.



flblnterstate banking ‘legislation will merely“formalizev and
expand the powers of banks that' already operate a vast network of.
vhmortgage ibanking _companies: loan produotion “offices, ‘Edge Act
subsidiaries, second-mortgage loanJCOMpanles, credit oard'operations;'
- consumer banks, and savings and loan associationS5 acquired uhder .
- distress‘ circumstances ;On: an interstate basis. We already have

1nterstate banking.

The' New. Jersey Bankers A33001at10n has drafted a reglonalr-' 3

‘re01procal interstate _banklng bill. I expect that it will be
introduced: ‘1n>’the ;very near future. I would urge your 1mmedlate
Jblpartlsan attentlon .and support of thls measure. v

‘It will grant those bank holdlng companies that ‘want to, an
»opportunlty to achieve the size necessary .to . compete, first, on a
_regional and;then on a nationwide basis. - - The alternatlve, ladies and
gentlemen{ is to do nothing. Let me assUre‘you that this course of
action would make every'lbank and :every bank holding ‘company, in Neu _
Jersey; including the very largest, take-oyer‘candidates, as soon -as
the Congress passes nationwide banking legislation. New'Jersey could
then conceivably end up without a major banking organization
headquartered within our boundarles | _

Rev151t w1th me, for a moment, that period in the early
1970s, when we were trying to finance the Meadowlands Sports Complex
without any help from the large New York City banks or the/Wall Street
community, becaUSe we were stealing their Ciants. it was a New Jersey

‘banker who ralliedkthe New Jersey'financial-community to take the risk

and buy the bonds in order to build that Complex, in which we all'take
" such great 'pride, What: chance would we have hadr in- gaining that
~ support if that 'bank had been headquartered in  San Frahciscoi or
Chlcago, or, worse yet New York? Virtually none. | |

To. 1gnore the momentum that is leadlng us to full nationwide

interstate banking would be to return to those earlier days of stifling
laws that raised artiticial barriers to freedomlof m0vement and healthy
‘growth, We w0uld again become a second-class banklng 1ndustry, unable
to oompete, and, therefore, unable to serve the best 1nterest of the

people of our great State.
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- Mr. Chairman, 1 appreciate heving'bhed ‘the -opportunity to
speak to you and to the the members of your Subcommittee. I would be-
- happy to answer any queStions you mey_havel . |
" ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  Thank you, Mr. Schaub. - I am going to
- excuse myself for a minute. ThevVice Chairman will carry»oh for a few
mlnutes o T | o '
‘ ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Yes."1 have a question, Mr. Schaub. - You
indicated that you feel that down the ‘road. -- -or maybe sooner -- you
L owill have ‘a reglonal compact-type arrangement for interstate banklng
Did you ‘also say it is inevitable that we will have nationwide banklng7

MR. SCHAUB: I honestly feel that way, yes. ‘ o

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO:  You feel that if this were a ten-,
fifteen-, or'twenty—year program,. that the banks in New Jersey, if they
were 'in a regionai compact -- excluding New York City -- could in that
period of time buildgup assets so that they would not be in a position
for a takeover once we went nationwide7b‘ . :

MR. SCHAUBv Within the. boundarles of New Jersey alone7

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO Yes. I am Jjust talking about New Jersey.

MR. SCHAUB: ' Not a chance. While other states have made
compacts and established regions, and they are building,vgrowihg; and
expanding Qithin those regions, there is absolutely no way that New
Jersey banks'coUld achieve the -size necessary, if they were operating
only in New Jersey without a reglonal compact, to be able to compete
with those other larger units once the nationwide barriers go down.

- ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCD. When' 'the nationwide barriers went down,
will'not the largerrlending institutions, or banks, inhNew Jersey be
’ gobbled up by the New York City banks? | '

- - MR, SCHAUB: Well, that may be the case 1f nothing happens
‘in-between. You must understand that there are flve-— ‘Perhaps someone -
has already pointed this out today: . Any one of the five largest banks
in New York City have assets, right now, that exceed all the banklng
assets. in the State of New Jersey. So, obv1ously, that is the reason
New York was not included in our bill 1n1tlally.

'ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO:  So, what you are saying to us is, you

need‘time to get a little larger so they can't, in fact, buy you out.



» MR. SCHAUB: That's right That may happen yet. . Thatvcould
happen‘ I mean, shareholders ‘make the flnal determlnatlon as to what
‘happens to their shares of stock.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO:  But, do you th1nk the stockholders of the
lendlng institutions. in New Jersey -- whether they be large or small --
would like to be purchased? :

| MR. SCHAUB: Yes, some w0uld.‘,0bviOUSly, SOmebwould not -like
to be purchased because they haven t sold yet. We do not have one bank
in New Jersey we have a healthy mix of large, medium-sized, and veryi
small communlty banks in New Jersey . o

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: 1 gather from what you are saying that
you are in favor of a reglonal compact, excludlng New York Clty, or
New York State? N
| MR. SCHAUB: NeW‘York State. |

ASSEMBL YMAN KOSCO:  But, eventually, you see nationwide
action taking place, so New Jersey banks should be given the 1at1tude
~ and the time to become stronger, is that correct?

MR. SCHAUB: As other states are d01ng, yes; that is a fair
assessment of my position.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: -Again, I have a statement here from a
report that’l have been looking at. | It says: "The evidence clearly'
1nd1cates" - and, agaln, this is out of Florlda -- "that large banks
have no scale or cost advantages vis-a-vis small banks. In fact, small
banks ‘have out-performed large banks in recent years, in ‘terms of
_.standard Finaheial measures.  Acquisition of large banks within the
market has resulted in declining market shares 'in entered ’markets,
rather than their dominance." o

- Do yau think that same_trend would happen in our- State?

MR.  SCHAUB: Ii am not familiar with that report,
Assemblyman, ls that a-- 7 N v
,  ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO:  (interrupting) Thisvis a report from
Florida. _ . : |
MR. SCHAUB: But, does it speak only to Florida?
- ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Yes, this speaks to Florida.
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'MR. SCHAUB: As I pointed‘out earlier, New Jersey has perhaps
the most modern banking structure of any state in the country. It has’
evolved From county lines -- two or three. dlStrlCtS -- to statew1de
| branchlng and holdlng company acqulsltlons, statew1de ~We have
| operated in thls very hlghly competltlve market since the beglnnlng of
' el978, and statewide since 1973. So, we have a mature bankrng market in
New Jersey. Our little banks,"our medium sized banks, and our larger

holding companies all- compete - They are ‘all competlng fairly "and

B rprofltably, side by side, in the same marketplace.-

~ My own market area 1s a mlcrocosm, perhaps, of what is g01ng
on in the State of New Jersey. - We have my ‘own affiliate, which is a
part of the very largest in the'State; we have the Town'and Country
HBank7 which is part of the Summit Bank Corporation Holding Company, a
medium-sized holdlng company, :and,’ we have the Flemington National
v Bank wthhE‘lS a small home- town bank,yNOperating in the ‘Hunterdon
County marketplace Flemlngton Natlonal the .smallest' bank in . the
~ ‘market, ' just had thelr most - profltable year.' They earned a-million -
dollars for the first time in the1r hlstory 4
Now, I make that p01nt only to dlfferentlate New Jersey from
Florida. Florlda has been a non- branchlng state. They" have developed
their banklng system through the establlshment of .new banks by holding
‘companies and their afflllates So, really, for the most part, they‘
are all pretty large banking organ12at1ons down there. ,
1 don't thlnk you. ‘can make Just a- blanket comparlson between

Florida and New Jersey, and talk about allocatlons, market shares, and"

;_’thlngs of that sort.‘ I think it is a different market here.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO ~The point I am making is that one of the'
' blggest concerns we have -- and 1 do not belleve you were here before
when we- were speaklng_to the Commissioner -- is that the 'small bank
would be negativelyraffected. I am just trying to establlsh in my mind
that this would not happen, provided, of course, the small bank was
properly managed and operated. v |

“MR. SCHAUB: Those were the same fears that were expressed
first in 1968 ~and then 'in, 1973 when statewide branchlng ‘came

through. You may recall. that we phased in statew1de ‘branching by
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population levels. ~Again, by giving those banks that wanted it the
time to do whatever they wanted to do -- to hire new management, to

" become more competltlve, to merge, to JOln a holding company, or to do
"whatever" -- those worst fears were never realized in New.Jersey. The

big banks didn't come in and cut loan rates or raise rates on savings

and drive small banks out oi business. That just didn't happen.

We have found, as I pointed out in my remarks, that the big,
the medium-sized;"and the small 'can - all compete in  the same
marketplace. Small banks have found their niche. They provide good
service to a sector of the community, and they will survive. Thefe'
will always be room for small community banks; as there has been in New
Jersey. We have had 12 years of statewide branching. ~We have had 12
years of statewide banking in New Jersey. As a matter of fact, the
community bankers of NeW‘Jefsey were éll for éllowing New York into our
region 1mmedlately, because they have learned there is nothlng to fear
from size; they can operate and operate profltably

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: How far do you recommend we go on product
deregultion? _
' MR. SCHAUB: As far as yoﬁ want to, as far as 1 ém concerned.

- ASSEMBLYMAN ~ KOSCO: No, 1 am saying what would your
recommendatlon be -- basically? | : _

MR. SCHAUB: Well, it is a tired expr8381on, but for a change
I would’like to see a level playing field. I would like to be able to
do the same things that companies which are coming into New Jersey --
charter loophole banks, consumer banks, or whatevér_you want to call
them -- are doing; they are also able to sell and underwrite
securitieé We would like to have the same privileges and abilities to
dellver financial services as those folks have.

We don't kid ourselves. We don't feel -- and I am speaklng,
I think, for the entire New Jersey Bankers A88001at10n -- that there
are any‘instant profits or magic in the insurance business, investment
banking, brokerage,‘the underwriting business, real estate investment,
orv joint venturing. We don't think they are a panacea to vast
“profits. We know that they afe very complicated and very technical

businesses, in éndvof themselves, and it is going to take a long time
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~ for them to get good_at'what we do, and for us‘to get good at what they
do.  So, it will be a slow process of evolution. ‘
I think we have seen a blending of financial institutions in
New Jersey; eeople seldom make a differentiation anymore between a -
'asavings bank, a savings and loan,fand a commercial bank. They are all
banks in the eyes of the public.- We have seen that distinction‘
blurred. We will see a blurring of distihction between the traditional
dellverers of financial services also, but that will be an evolutlonary
»process, it is not going to happen overnlght '
- ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: You don't .envision that in the long run

~ -- this is a statement I made earlier -- we are v901ng to see an

excessivevamount of concentrated power in the banking industry?

, MR. SCHAUB:  In the banking industry? That's a good
question. That troubles me too. I ‘hope we have built-in safeguards to
prevent that. We have a Justlce Department that, I would hope, could
,‘prevent that on a national level. , )

I th;nk the best thing we could do would be to ,pass
legislation that would ensure we maintain ‘a healthy spirit = of
competition among financial 1nst1tut10ns of all: kinds in the State.

That competitive spirit is what has best served New Jersey.

» There is another key.‘ We operate in this‘country, and we
have for a ,lohg, long time, wunder what is called a dual banking
system. Banks that are chartered in'Washihgton are national'banks;v
and, banks that are commissioned by eur;Commissioner,of Banking - are
 State banks. As long as we have freedom of entry, that is, as long as
there is an option to either charter-- If we don't like what the
- Commissioner in New Jersey is-doing,‘if he is allowing too heavy a
.coneolidation and communities aren't being served, as long as we have
freedom of entry and igreups of local entrepreneurs who can get
.together, raise capital, and start a bank, the public interest will be
served. The pubiic will not put up with poor or shoddy serVice. If
the large units foul it up, new small units -- as' long as we have
freedom of entry -- will sprlng up to pr0v1de that serv1ce

ASSEMBLYMAN LUVEYS May I have a copy of your,statement?
MR. SCHAUB: Sure. ' '
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’ASSEMBLYMAN‘LaRDCCA: Are there any other gquestions? (no

response)ﬁ Thank you, Mr. Schaub. k S ‘ R

) _ In the interest of time and fairness,’because_lrsee it - is
just a little after 12: UD, we will adjourn ‘at 12:30. We'will'resume at
- 1:30. In ‘the meantime, 1 thlnk we can hear from two more w1tnesses,‘
‘and the rest can be guided accordlngly

For a change, we are going to listen to a representatlve from

'the New Jersey Council of Sav1ngs Institutions. I have then prOJected d

that we will: hear. From Al Griffith, from the New Jersey ‘Bankers
- Association. Does that fit in time-wise? 1 know a lot of you
personaily, and I-am trying to- accommodate everyone “We will take
" those two witnesses and then there w1ll be . an adJournment We will
- then resume at 1:30. o |
| Mr. Kevin Crowe, New Jersey Counc1l of Sav1ngs Institutions.
KEVINVACRDHE. . Mr. Chairman, 1 thank you and the members of the
Subcommlttee for the opportunity to be here today -1 have a brief
yerbal-statement that I would like to present. I would also like to
leave you with a copy of -my written statementL YI, will answer any
questlons you might have after my presentatlon. '

As has already been stated, flnanc1al institutions are
undergoing a tremendous periOd»of'change. This is also true for the
savings banks I 1represent here today on behalf of the New 'Jersey
" Council of Savings Institutions, whose membership consists of 15 State—'
‘chartered sav1ngs banks and three Federally-chartered sav1ngs banks.

“This process -of change is best -described by the term
_"deregulation," which we have heard’a lot about today 1 would like to
'brlefly mention three aspects of deregulatlon and how savings banks
- have been affected by those aspects.

The first is interest rate deregulatlon, which is prlmarlly

the llftlng of 1nterest ceilings on rates paid to depositors and

charged to borrowers, Therells reqgulation on the Federal level and
there used to_he ceilings on the State level. Savings'banks and other

institutions have found the lifting of these interest rate ceilingsito
be necessary for them to remain competitive with'oot-ot—state lendingt'

institutions and non-bank competitors, such as the money market funds
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the Comm1351oner of Banking referred to earller. Essentially, the
result of this 1s that the rates charged and given to bank customers
are establlshed by market conditions, competltlon, and the general
‘economlc _situation. Agaln, we found this to be helpful to our:
competltlve posture. | | |
~ The second form of deregulatlon 1s product deregulatlon
This is essentially‘_the offerlng of -new products by ,flnanc1al'
‘institutions, Other than the trad;tlonal banking services.‘ For thrift
savings banks thisvmeahs'an addition to their  home mortgage lending:
consumer loans; auto loans; commercial loans; real estate‘development'r
and other such products ‘We found these products to be very necessary
in order to stay competltlve and to remain profltable, particularly in
the last few years of hlgh interest rates, such as 1981 and 1982. We
needed addltlonal powers in order to add to our balance sheet proflts.
The third form of deregulatlon 1s geographic deregulatlon,
otherwiSe “known  as ;nterstate banking. Of late, I guess the most
notorious of this type of banking is the non-bahk bank, oriloophole
‘bank. . As you know, the State of New Jersey has recently passed a bill
imposing a moratorium on,non-bank banks - in order to give the State and
Congress time to formulate a coherent policy on this topic. This is
something that we approve of, and we‘support you in this effort.
| _ - In closing, 1 would[just like to‘say, on behalf of the New
Jersey Council of Savings Institutions, that we are eager -to assist you
in'ahy waybwe:can.- I would be happy to ‘answer any questions you may
have for me today. ‘ '
. ASSEMBLYMAN  LaROCCA: Do - any of the‘ members of the
Subcommlttee have any questlons‘7 ' ‘ ’ -
ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Do you have any situations that mlght be
unique to your institutions, but which may not_apply,to a regular bank?
MR CROWE : 'I guess, primarily, that would be in the product
'deregulatlon area. “ Thrift institutions have historically been
concentrated in the home lendlng ‘market and, as a consequence, they
have long-term leed assets on thelr books, and it is necessary for the
thrift industry to‘branch out by offering different products, such as

commercial lending, etc. .This has been recognized by the Congress, as
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" was mentioned eerlier, ‘through the 'Garn;St. Germainv Act and cher"s
regulatory initiatives by the Federal thritt fegulators.‘“So our main
“area of concern'would-be'product“deregulatien, in order to allov us to
engage in serVices other than tradltional banking services. ’ '
S ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: So you eventually see no 51gn1flcant
| difference between what we call a bank, a thrift, or -an S & L? You see
just one bank, where everyone has the same -duties and respon81b111tleSﬁ
because: there will be no need for individual de31gnat10ns7

MR. CROWE Well, as was . mentloned, in “the eyes of the

pUbllC, they are all just banks right now. In terms of legallty or_"

bu31ness, we feel it should be left : up to the individual institutions

to choose how they want to gear their shop So, 1f‘an 1nst1tut10n.vy

wants to stay{in ‘the role of a thrift lender and deal primsrily,with
mortgege lending, that will be up to'them., If they'wentbto gear .more
- towards cemmereiel lending, thet will be'up‘to them. I guess what I am
Saying is, it may not”necesserily be a homegeneous playing field, but
1t should be up to the institutions to choose where they want to go.
It may not result in  homogenization, but it might. oIt is hard to-
ﬁ ~predict that type of thing. , o | | R
o ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Have the savings banks been hurt by
~deregulation? I remember a time when ’they were one - of- the most
protected benks. In fact, if you were a savings institution, you were
a stock holding. Have your banks been. hurt by deregulatlon'7

MR. CRDWE. Not at»all. In fact, to the contrary; it has
been very‘helpful.»‘We-have fecaptured deposits, as the Commissioner of
Banking mentioned earlier, of: money market funds, located primarily
-oUt,of state, in New York and in the ‘investment companies;

We have engaged in profitable real estste‘ activities, and
othepfsuch[activities,vwhiCh‘have enabled~ss to survive the problemsvof
1981 end 1982,; when there. were serious and very -high, short-term
interest retes"Which impacted on the bottom “line of savings
institutions infgenersi._:So, deregulation has been very helpful to US,
vefy definitely. : , R

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: ‘Are there any othef'duestions? :
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_ DR.voNADLER:v I have a‘equestion.-" Do you worry about
‘interstate competition due to. the New YorhVSavings banks‘coming in and
compet1ng7 Or, do you agree w1th Mr. Schaub that in a couple of years

you will be able to- hold your own? ' ‘ :
| MR. CRGWE' Our p081t10n in- the past has been that We are not
v_1n Favor of 1nterstate banklng, prlmarily because of the threat of the
jNew York and Phlladelphla money center banks. - R .
| 7 ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: I want- to- thank you, Mr. Crowe.
: Our next w1tness w1ll be AL Griffith, New ,Jersey ‘Bankers
‘Association. & , ‘ ; - _
ALFRED H. GRIFFITH:  Good norning,' Mr. Chairman, members of the
- Subcommittee, and Dr. Nadler.‘flt”is'a pleasure to be here onAbehalF of
'the> New Jersey Bankers' Association to present our views on the
subjects before this Subcommittee, which are very, very appropriate at
‘nthie particular time and juncture in the banking industry.‘ | |
Prior to moving to some‘of myfconments, I would like to say
‘collaterally that I am working as a student'at the‘Stonier Gfaduate
School_of.Banking. I am in my last.year,'and‘my thesis.dissertationris
the deregulation of the banking industry. The:general feeling is that
.banking is deregulated,.and it . is not - not'entirely. What I would
like to try to do is point to f0ur’areaa of banking deregulation, and
perhaps this might serve as a focal point throughout the Subcommlttee s
‘con31derat10n of this issue. S
There are four ‘ways of looking at banking deregulation:
Number one 1is pricei deregulation In the past, we were
’llmlted as to what we could offer to dep081tors and what we could
‘ charge on loans. That is an 1mportant aspect of our operatlon. v

_ The second area: of deregulatlon is product deregulation,‘the R
types of serv1ces and products we can offer to our 1nst1tut10ns and to
“our customers. We have not had as much deregulation in that area as we
have had intthe price area. Weyare behind, in fact, on that'patticular
point, from a defegulatorjfpoint of view, and I don't think we can;say
we are truly deregulated‘in the prOduct and serviCegafea.’ Hopefully,

we are moving toward it.
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» The third area of deregulation is geographic deregulation,:
which has been talked about this morning -- the ability of banks to.
‘branch not only within their own states but outside of their states,
and vice versa. We have not -yet had full'deregulatin in ‘that area;
however, there have been numerous back-door aoproaches. From what has
~been mentioned this morning, a-non-bank bank is one approach.. Reglonal
developments’ in various states is another aporoaon. " However, there
have been, over the years, a number of ways by which banks have_been
able to enter into othervstates'through.various means, whether they be
electronic, whether they be through Edge Act‘corporations, or whether
it be'through a‘decision, made in 1982, to allow an out-of-state entity
to acquire ‘a -failing entity‘ in~ another state '~ under certain
circumstances. | _ ‘ o

0f the three areas, thlS is one of the areas where the. State
'has had ‘the greatest v01ce and say over the ‘years. The Douglas
Amendment, in 1956, was designed to permit states, if they so deeired,
to allow the banks in their state to merge’with the -required banks in
another~state,‘if the state was desifouseof doing so. In‘doing that,
Congress told the states that they had authority ln that area, and much
of what we heard this morning from Mr. Jones indicates that the
" initiatives in the regional area are state initiatives.

The fourth area is what I would call a proceduralk area:
safety and soundness; consumer protection; and capital adequacy kinds
of requirements that the State and Federal regulatory bodies look at as
they look at the banks. they charter. We have not seen too much
deregulation'in that area, and I am guessing that the more freedom we
get in price, product, and geographic area, the more regulation we are
going to see in the procedural phase. The more occasion for sin, and
'vperhaps the more undue risk may cause regolators to look’even harder at
the day—to-day‘operations of the banks that they oversee.

“So, 1in looking at deregulation, perhaps one way one ‘would
look at it would be  to look at it through those four faces,»and in
'looklng at it, the deregulatlon of each of those varies with speed.
Projecting into the future may vary as well, as far as speed is

~concerned.
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1 would like to say at ‘the outset that the comments I make

may not be truly representatlve of every 31ngle commercial bank. in New

Jersey. We represent every 31ngle bank in New Jersey, however, our
banksvlook ‘at things dlfferently,_ They look at these four areas of
deregulatiOn differently. They look at them perhaps because they have
a national chartel‘versus a State charter, or they may look at them
because they are a North Jersey bank as opposed to a South Jersey bank,
or they may look at them because they are a Fed member or they are notu
- Fed member, or they may: look at them because they  are part of a
holding company,»as opposed ' to belng an 1ndependently-operated bank

free of a holdlng company; or they may look at’ them because their
perspectlve is such that they have assets of- over $1 bllllon , Another!
bank may- look at ‘these =~ four - areas,  and deregulatlon, _dlfferently
because they may have assets of under $100 mllllon.. 'S0, there is some
'dlver31ty of thinking about these four areas in the commerc1al banklng
' commun1ty because of the dlfferlng features of the banks, as- we have
them in New Jersey. , o : N ‘ -

' Most 1mportantly, at the outset, I want to say that our
Assoc1at10n deeply appre01ates the con31derat10n this Leglslature has
.given to the concerns we have. We were almost ‘up agalnst the wall when
Congress fdecided: -- rightfully so —= to deregulate the ceilings on
‘savings deposlts. We-faced_the serious difficulty of being able to
take lthatj exoensive money and layi'it off in a way that would _be
profitable‘ifor our stockholders, if - the traditional‘.ceilings on

mortgage 1loans and consumer loans had remained in place at the State

level. : , _ ' .

7 , Fortunately, as was mentioned earlier, and in tribute to the
R Leglslature, around the same time there was a w1lllngness -- in the
~early part of 1980 -- on the part of the Leglslature to more or less

“deregulate the loan celllngs in New Jersey, 'S0 we were able to put the
1ncrea31ngly expen31ve money to work. ' L , _

~ The ,flnanc1al services 1ndustry ‘has changed dramatically
since the early‘“70st Banks and thrift institutions were subJect then,
-and: continue today to be somewhat SUbJECt to depre331on period Federal

llmltat;onsvgovernlng the cost oflour products, the types of products
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- we can of fer our customers, the locatioos in which'he cen-offer them;
‘and our internal procedures | | |

At ‘that tlme, and cont1nu1ng to- a lesser degree today, banks
were limited  in the way they - could Serve CONSUMETS and operatek
‘internally.  Limitations, placed ‘on the interest rates banks could pay
depositors, put banks at a competitive disadvantage in the l970§:and:

the early 19805,'and depositors, trying to cope with high inflation and

o very volatlle interest rates, sought the maximum return on their funds.

New money market tools,' attractive to even the‘ smallest
saver, with check -type wrltlng pr1v1leges, were establlshed by lesseri
regulated» non-banks- durlng, the perlod,v and‘ created Serious
disintermediation in banks and thrifts which were limited by Regulation
Q. ~Money market ‘mutual funds, run by brokerages, gained substantlally,
at the expense of banks at that partlcular time.

Our- Assoc1at10n, at the time, tried to decide how. we could
cope with the particular ‘issue " of having another industry, lesser
- regulated . than us, .and without Regulation‘Q limitations, sﬁealing our
customers eway.'iln_evaloating it, the majority of toe bankers who were
represented on our policy-making committee decided at that‘time, and
they‘teod'today[to continue‘to‘believe, that we don't have a problem.'
- with our competitors being able to offer customerlseryices. We did not
object then, even though we were unhappy about it;‘ We went back to
Congress and said, "If it is good for the money market mutual funds,
then it should be good'for us." We continue to take'toat position
-anytime we look eflcompetitors who have en'edge on us wheo we are
dealing in the same marketolace. ' i ,

Again, I might say there are some bankers -- 1 would say‘theyi
are in the minority -- who would disegree with that. If they had their
druthers, they would prefer to have regulators ano legislatore pull our
{competitioo beck;to the level ‘we were at, and they wereiat, at the
time. That is very difficuit to do legislatively when; in effect,'you
are takingfbenefits fhe consumers now have away from them, even if they-
weren't offered by a bank,: | ' _ | |

A rew significant related trend in the finencial services

industry developed when insurance companies, travel and entertainment
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companies, retail'stores,_and others, acquired or;establishedbnot only
_securities entities, but also;real estate comoanies;‘banks; thrifts,
and non- banks " Such combinations increasingly expanded their
banking-type services, and established one- stop financial centers. As
‘an example, a customer’can now. enter Sears and have banking, insurance,
securities, and real estate needs met in ione place, the ultimate
consumer convenience. ' o ‘ N '

While securities,‘vinsurance; and retail companies have
entered banking and'presently expand‘their'custOmer and service base,
 banks cannot do the\same.;»The'longer this'disparity takes place, the
:‘longer the threat to the future existence of banks will remain, as
future customers are lost. | ‘ ' |

Some have suggested that FinanCial conglomerates in diverse
fields should divest, but consumers will not~allow the benefits they>
offer to be eliminated. ‘ |

_Fortunately, Congress has Finally allowed banks to compete
‘for depositor funds. Bank costs have substantially fincreased as a
result. 'Depositors‘are no longer subsidizing borrowers. Fortunately,
the New Jersey ‘Legislature deregulated most loan rates in order to
allow us to ‘be competitive. '

Unfortunately, Jloan demand‘ may - slack during tight money
situations, as rates reach a point where borrowers cannot lock

themselves in. As a result, it is imperative that banks have'other;
'ways to use the more costly depositor funds to remain sound and
maintain their stockholder  confidence, Since they are privately owned.

What can banks .do when there is insufficient loan demand to
offset the cost of increased funds?

Dne, the banks could reprice the services they offer so they
are not economic losers. Services, once free: ‘because the banks' funds
- funds- costs were cheaper, must be repriced or eliminated, and banks are
encouraged to seek increased fee and charge income. There has been
opposition‘to-bank repricing fdr‘a number of reasons. We have heard
~ these reasons, we haue discussed them; and;perhaps we will again.

Two, they can reduce staff, service,.and/or expand the use of

~computer technology to offset costs.
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‘: Three, theyb’can‘ close unprOFitable branches or . substitute
‘them»with electronic technology as a way of saving money to offset the
increased cost of funds.

R Or, four - which is perhaps the best alternatlve == they ‘can
diversify their line of consumer serv1ces‘to brlng in the funds thatf
~ 'will offset costs. Services, such as securities”and insurance sales
~and, pOSSibly, underwriting andv brokerage could be ‘offered to -
~ consumers. The new services would help to retain bank employees and
"offices, and'it'would perhaps reduce fees andrcharges,:as well as loan
rates, if they were are properly run. | ' o o

DbViously, banks . would " have to ‘be ‘subject to consumer
'protection limltatlons when offering | Services,t if" they - were
i»statutorily permitted. ‘ |

' 1 would like to move on because I know time is of the
eSsence, and 1 have pretty well  heard testimony on some of the otherf
subjects I have in my written statement Perhaps I will approach the

‘near end of my comments. ' , ) -

‘ At this point, Federal regulators = have been, and  are,
petitioning Congress, along with the banking'oommunity, to allow banks
rto diversify’the aotivities they may engage.in, in’order to offset the
costs. | ‘ - i . | ' '
| Some - of the  Federal regulators have been advocates, of.
‘national banks ?andl are pressing to allow banks to have asset

deregulation in order to offset the liability deregulation imposed 1nj'
the early 1980s. At the same time, they are also expandlng capital
»requirements for banks and public eiposure, along with their normal:
"superv1sory procedures, to ensure that the public is protected.

The state banks have also sought similar relief from state
banking departments and state ‘lEgislatures, ‘with varying success
nationwide.:’Some-comments;were made”this'morning regarding that. In
states such.aS'Delaware, South Dakota, and several others “they havek.
liberalized‘ not only ’their interest: rate ceilings but. the types of
~products that can be- offered as a means of bringing financial

'institutions into those states.
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The state banking department regulation has been successful

in most states,»including New Jersey. Our banks are'healthy, as‘is our

o State s economy.

Regardlng the banklng structure,,our Assoc1at10n would VETy
much prefer the malntenance of a dual banking system. We feel it
allows for increased'innovation,‘the‘maintenance of the State's desire
~to see at least what its State banks can do, and it avoids the
,poseibilityvof'a central regulatory‘aothority,that might,not carerabout
New Jersey s needs. o
‘ In looking at 1t however -- and thlS is gettlng away from my -
written comments -- by supportlng the dual banklng system, we are also
concerned that at times a competltlve disadvantage can. be granted
elther to state chartered banks or to national banks, in the absence of
authority by the leglslature of the 1nst1tut10n that is dlsadvantaged
in that competltlve posture.

As an example, a bill has moved through the Assembly and is
over in the Senate now, which would severely restrict serv1ce charging
by banks on savings accounts. Should it he enacted, it would‘only
apply to state chartered banks, aince'the Comptroller of Currency has
indicated that natlonal banks can reasonably service- charge varlous
accounts v’ » ,

Not looking at, nor discussing the merit or the lack of merit
of the bill, the key isv that this 'action, and perhaps. any similar
action on the Federal level, Vcould create a disadvantage to a
partlcular segment of banks. , | :

 We feel, in. summary, that a decision has to be made soon at-
- the State and/or Federal level regardlng what ‘banks and their direct
competitore can do. Right now, the»rules are not fair. Either banks
“should be allowed to offer;consumers,vincluding their own depositors,
the same wide range of services their competitors have, subject' to
rules and regulationsv that are equitable; competitively, or, their
.competltors should be forced .to return to" the specific authorlty, or
product line, they offered before they entered the bankers‘ tent, with
everyone playlng by the same rules.
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Again, 1 indicate that our Association has generally taken_
“the attitide that the latter position is,probably not“necessarily,the
public' interest position, because consumers -would be denied the
‘ addltlonal opportunity of having a greater degree of competltlon for
partlcular serv1ces ‘

| The ultlmate dec131on belongs to elected officials. The
decision isn't easy because each side brings reams of. self—serv1ng‘
arguments to justify why thelr competltor shouldn't be in the tent
The challenge is to sort out what is true, and more 1mportantly, how
lthe residents of the State can best benefit. It is not easy, but the
prime goal is one‘offered frequently by Chairman Adubato, and that is
“one of equ1ty - ' :

In conclu51on, clearly the legislative mandate is to, within
the aura of safety,. soundness, and fairness, allow consumers the
max1mum benefit they can enjoy The feellng of our Assoc1at10n is that -
at thls particular point our organizations are not able to do that. As
an example, we feel that when product deregulatlon, and then the less
geographic deregulatlon become a reality, we will be ‘able to better
serve customers. Hopefull there will be more competltlon,'vlower’
prlces, and, the best pUbllC interest will be served in the end. ’

I would like to thank you very much - for - your con81deratlon'
of my comments this morning. v , : o :

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA Mr.[ Griffith, I note ffromv the many
comments that have‘been made, and from what I have read, that there is
‘a model bill. Do you know what that is? R

" MR. GRIFFITH: A model bill on interstate?

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Right. | |

MR. GRIFFITH: Our Association has been working for about a
year and a'half on a bill‘draft. I hate to use the word model; I am
:not»sure it is.

v ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: = Maybe 1t is the .wrong word. v
MR. GRIFFITH: But, I know what you mean. We have a bill
draft, a regional interstate banking bill ,draft; that we have been
worklng on 1nternally ~ There has been about a year and a half of

d18cus51on and compromlse within our community on this draft. The bill
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draft is de81gned to permlt, if it is. leglslatlvely approved banks in
New Jersey to acquire, or to be acqu1red by banks in what we have
termed the Central Atlantic States. The states that have been
considered as possibilities in  our draft would be- nelghborlng
Pennsylvania; Delaware;vOhio;uMaryland, Vifginia,'West‘Virginia, and
the District of Columbia. Obviously, as mehtioned before, New York
- City is not -included.  '.> o

‘, ‘ The thought was that we wouldbbe‘able to branch into those
" states, and banks in those states would be able to branch into New
| Jersey, unless, or untll, a ‘so-called trlgger took place, and the bill

draft trigger is either one of two thlngs If two cher states, other

~ 'than New Jersey, in this region agree to have a regional reciprocal

arrangement with New Jersey, then three . years efter that an additional
‘state -- or; in effeet, a third state -- entered, New Jersey would‘then
-~ be eligible to,engagebin full’nstionwide interstate banking..
- Anofhep‘»trigger in the ’proposed sbill‘,wouid ‘be that if a
quarter of the statesK -- in veffect, 13. states -- were to pass
legislation providing for full ihterstate banking, when that 13th state -
~ signed dﬁ, then New Jersey would also be inya'positioh"to compete on a
‘nationwide basis. | ‘

There was a lot of disagreement, at least ihitially, in our
organization about the so-called trigger. The feellng was that

regional reciprocal leglslatlon is designed to allow banks to gear up
in a given area in ‘order to become large  enough to be competitive.
This is.nOt seen as the final‘answer in any way, shape, or form., It is
_ done with the understandlng that interstate banking is 1nev1table The
questlon is when? That: is. a questlon nobody really seems to know the -
~answer to for sure. Perhaps the'decision may be somewhat affected by
the SupremeeC0urt’s decision on the Massachusetts biil, which is now
before the Coﬁrt. -~ Or, pe;haps it may become moot. If non-banks
continue to go into other states -- non-bank banks -- without states
protecting themselves, as  New Jersey has, we may have ' back-door
“interstate bahking that might make the McFedden;Douglas Act virtualiy

meaningless.
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So, - at this point' we ~are kind. of in’:a‘ real state of
) transition and confusion."The regional approach'we have talked about
- was done prev1ous to the- Supreme Court ‘decision to. hear the case, and
xnlt was also done prev1ous to the de0131on of the Comptroller to allow

non-banks into other states

We are, and have been, dlscuss1ng the bill draft with- the -

Banklng Department and the Governor s office. ‘We;have tried to take
"lthe position that we want. a bill to be in ‘a position ‘to be signed by
~the Governor before we decide to try to move the . blll on a legislative
basis. .So, we don't' have anything yet. We don't have a flnal ‘decision
by the Admlnlstratlon as to whether or not that is the way they would
tllke to go. ‘But, that is essentially where that stands, Assemblyman.
ASSEMBLYMANVLaRDCCA. You mentioned some of the otherpstates,:*

New Jeraey, Pennsylvania,. DelaWare; etc., and onel thought that goes
‘through myhmino is, I am wondering what position you take and whether

. thisj'particular type of operation has hurt the New Jersey banks.

B I,am talking.about,the growth of these loan production of fices that the‘ v

~New York 'banks‘ have established and are trylng to push quiteh
'seri0usly; They are called loan productlon offices. .b ‘ .

‘ MR. GRIFFITH: . That is a perfect example, Aesemblyman, of
’-why, in a way, we have a whole lot more interstate banking -than anybody
thinks. We do have loan production offices by out-of- state banks 1n‘
New Jersey, competlng with us, head on, day in ‘and day out. _

For some reason, the presence of these 'loan production
offices has not reached thedpointlwhere anybody is pinehing the staff
members'at'NJBA to do something legislatively._'My'assumption is that
at ’this particular . point most of our banks don't‘ have a problem
» competlng with these loan productlon offlces -- at- least not at- thlsvp'
‘particular time. | ' . v
| I thlnk probably the bigger pinch, and the biggest plnch in
the whole 1nterstate scheme, is when we engage in deposit- taklng. 1t
is not so much the loan making that seems to p1nch, it is the deposit-
\taklng that really is, and has been,fthe bottom llne Dep081t taklng
‘has been ‘the one thlng, when you talk about 1nterstate banklng, that::

, really is "1t"
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ASSEMBLYMAN LaRDCCA 'Isn t a lot of thls done through the
credit card system? All you need for a ' loan production office is to
get a credlt card and you are in “the banklng bu31ness.

MR. GRIFFITH: = Even though you are not aupposed to take
dep081ts in ‘a given state, a serious question is ralsed when a credlt
’_card comes into New Jersey from Delaware by way of ‘an institution from
another state that moved to Delaware. As to whether or not the
transaction that takes place with that card is, in effect, taklng a
| .dep031t--’ I guess we really start'gettrng 1nto.spl1tt1ng hairs with
terminology, but ’effectiyely a loan-:is made in New Jersey with the
credit card. ~Perhaps, more specifically, itris not necessarily the
credit = card but the vShared ATM card which might be even more
approprlate, where you: can .use your ATM card. across state lines. That
has become an- accepted practice and a convenlence that seems to satisfy:
consumers and even bankers who weren’ t particularly happy about shared
ATM's a couple of years ago. They are now beginning to come around
because, in a way, it helps them to hold onto their customers when they
cross state lines.

As far as I understand 1t, at this point the ATM card cannot
be used for deposit- taking purposes either. But, one has to raise this
question: . When there is a transfer of funds between checklng and
savings, as an example, and a card is used, are ‘you or are . you. not
‘engaging in the deposit- taking area?

Some people have said that deposit-taking is not, and may not
be, a 31gn1f1cant issue in the future, and they base that on the claim
that deposits were once cheap. ' When you had three percent passbooks,
large'dollars, and checking that bore no interest, you had cheap money
and a dep031t in that area was pretty good. But, wevnow have more of ‘a
national money market. If a bank needs money, itp can buy it
nationally. We have alsd‘seen a tremendous increase ‘in the'cost of
deposits- as we have deregulated that area, to the point that there is a
- question as to whether deposits in other states are 901ng to ‘be as
‘attractlve now as they were before the deregulat1on of pr1c1ng because'
~those deposits aren't cheap anymore. ,
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: My colleagues in the legal profession
“will have a lot of fun with that. |
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Colleagues on the Subcommlttee, do you have any questlons'7 »-v,

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: State-chartered banks, right now -- since
1975 -~ ‘under the Leeway powers can sell insurance and get 1nvolved 1n,'
:real estate, correct? ‘ S , S - :\

MR. GRIFFITH:  The banks can't. _Savings banks andvsavings
_ and‘loahs cannot. They Can't, The 1975 Leeway Bill was for savingsx
banks only, and sav1ngs and loans can invest in anything sav1ngs banks
can. 1nvest in, so they are able to engage in that as well. o

That = authority, in 1975, as 1 understand it, ‘has been.
principally used for real estate -equity part1c1pat10n act1v1t1es
>Inv01vement by the thrift institutions in the securities and insurance -
area is an authority they were granted by the Federal Home Loan Bank

Board as an allowable authorlty.
| ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: ~ Have they exerc1sed that rlght'7 Have
. they used it? Have they sold insurance? .

MR. GRIFFITH: 1 understand they have, but I can 't really
say, Spe01flcally, the degree to which they have, or anythlng of that
sort, because we don't represent them. - :

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: Do we have an- 1nd1cat10n of any problems
- or any situations that have come up?. ‘ ‘
MR. GRIFFITH: = Our Assoc1ation has never been aware of‘any!
_particular problems with the thrift institutions utilizing that
authofity through their service cdre,mechanism, Again, we have been’
/hopeful, but- we have not been. suecessful in being, abie to move

legislation at the Federal level which ‘would 'allow our bank

~ subsidiaries to have the same type of authorlty the service cores. have.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: It seems that one-stop- shopplng for
'flnan01al services appears to be the‘"ln" thlng, whether one goes to K
Mart or Sears, or wherever. Do you think that every dep081tory
1nst1tut10n should have to serve every customer and prov1de every need,
and 1f they do, don't you thlnk this would be stretchlng thelr
resources a little bit? ‘ '_

MR. GRIFFITH: Well, there are two different schools of
thought -on that, Assemblyman. One school of thought is, the only way a

bank is going to be successfut in the future is tp be a full-service



supermarket offerlng all serrices;“ such "as. Sears is offering,
‘]nat10nw1de, as Sears is doing. When you really look at the practieal,
_ Mreallty of thls, very few banks are large enough to be able to do that
V on a nationwide basis. ‘ : »
From all my readlng, and from hearing what I am hearing, I
.thlnk banks may do any one of perhaps three things:
Some of the largest banks, perhaps the Cltlcorps of . the
: world may get into something like Sears and K Mart, where they have
“such diversity they can expand nationwide in order to do it where it
makes Sense,vfihancially, to»provide allvthose services direetly.‘ | |
The other extreme is the cemmunity*bank, which I know you are
concerned about, and we are too. We feel that the community bank has,
and will continue to have, an importaht,role to play in this country.
. 00r~cohmunity bankers wereimore uptight fdurfyears ago about interstate
banking than they are now. As Dick Sharp said before, we have had a

number of smallerpbanks recommend that New York be put .in our regional

- . reciprocal bill.

The smaller banks kind of parallel the big shopping mallsr’
. that come in. The Feeling is: that the big shopping mall is going te ‘
. knock out every'Specialty store around' We have come to find that is
not the case. VYes, the mall has been bullt, and, yes, some stores have
gone by the ‘way81de, but, there have also been a number of retail
‘stores -- individual stores ---both in the mall and outside the mall in =
downtown areas, that have contlnued “to. operate successfully and
profitablyvvbecause, as a communlty store, they were able to meet a
~ community need on a personal,iup—front basis.v So, using the idea of
having a mall; on the one'hand; and being in that business, and, on the
other hand, perhaps being a boutique -- I hate to use that word, but
‘maybe that is the right "in" word -- perhaps the'community-bank will be
~the boutique,‘it will be the 7 Eleven of the future, and perhapseit
will still provide those services, but itb will probably do se in
‘conjunctioh with some other institution. In other words, you will be
able to go into a commuhity bank and' have your‘financial needs, or your
-securities'needs, or your insurahce needs. met, but‘perhaps that local .

‘institution will be a funnel. Those services will not be of fered
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~directly in that local institution, but if it doesn't offer those
services, and if ‘they are serviées the customers want, it may have a
hard time retaining their customers. _

,SQ; yes, even the smaller banks will’havevto do it, but they
won't do it directly. Just as ydu have the shared use of the treasurer
with the ATM card, which comes out of First Fidelity, you have a number
of banks that want to make that service available. However, they
are not big enough to offer the treasurer, so they agree to become part
of the treasurer network in order for their customers to continue to
enjoy that benefit. That is probably what theicommunity bank will do
in order to provide these other kinds of needs and services if their
customers want them. v ’ |

Then there are the regional banks, in the middle of the two
extremes, that will probably be doing a little bit of everything.
Maybe they will be‘doing what they do best, whether that best be trust
services, or whatever, and perhaps they will franchise out other
activities. So, it appears as. thoUgh -- and whd knows -- the
one-stop-shopping thing is going to be necessary, but doing it directly
as opposed to doing it through someone else will probébly vary by bank
size and comenity needs. | ' \

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: 1 have just one more‘comment. In your
experience on behalf of the Bankers Association, how do you,feél -- or
what is vyour opinion -- about banks. complying with thé Federal
Community Reinvestment Law? .

| MR. GRIFFITH: Well, the banks have had a very good record,

as I understand it, with the CRA Act. We are not aware of any major
problems with our institutioné in New Jersey where. there has been
non-compliance - with that particular act. = Probably the Community
Reinvestment Act will be the same type of act that legislatures will
need to ensure -- as an ekample, when and if interstate banking takes
place -- that the communities' interests are protectéd. The ‘CRA will
probably have an additional value at that particular time.

' Interestingly enough, we have come to find in some of the
research we have done, that while the consumer groups came forward and

- wanted the Community Reinvestment Act enacted at the Federal level,
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~ most of the time it is being used against a bank, it is being used by
another bank that desires to move into 1ts terrltory. In perhaps 70
percent of the cases it is used that way. ' '

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: 1 am looking at the clock. .

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: I have just one more questlon. I don't
really know how to. phrase thls, ‘but it seems to me that you now have
smaller- banks and there is a possibility of larger banks coming in
soheday. Couldn't we set up some kind ‘of a contlngency liability for
these smaller banks that enter into contracts which says, yes, they
will sell out to a larger bank if and when somethlng takes place7 I am
concerned about the "if and when" contracts that will probably take
place, and that have already taken place. v

MR. GRIFFITH There are probably some already; Assemblymah,

where you have out-of-state banks buying 4.9 percent of the stock.
| . ASSEMBL YMAN KOSCO Doesn't that sort.of dilute the resources
that are available and set up a8 contingency llablllty for a bank that
mlght be coming .in? AR : : »

MR. GRIFFITH: Yes. I guess as'lohg as the Federal statutes
' permlt 4.9 percent of the stock to be- purchased by a bank from

out of-state you will have that. Yes, it is the out of- state bank
de81r1ng to come in and gain a foothold '

I guess one key thing a legislator has to bear in mind in
this whole plcture is, "whether or not," "who comes in," and "how much
stock - they buy." Capital adequacy standards are probably going to
continue to be essential in situations like that.  That is why I don't
' ‘think procedural deregulation, or regulatory regulation is going to go
away. I think we will probably see more of it as we see more freedom
‘forvbanks to dperate, and it is probablyvin the public ihterest if that
is the'case,falthOUgh nottall bankers wpuid4agree with the commentbl
just made.. » » .

ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: The gentleman who was here before made a
comment abOut the:main banks that set up a program, where they have new
funds which would have to be put into a bank that comes into the State
~of Maine. They would then havevto prpvide a yearly‘report as ‘to what
they ‘were doing with those funds. ‘Does that make sense? '
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MR. GRIFFITH: Well, a major question is -- and 1 know this
tis a ’concern ‘the Banking DepartmEnt has as we have talked abbut . a
regional reciprocal bill -- the ability .of the State and the Banking>
‘Department of the State to have some influence ever an out;of—state
’entity,if it is here, in order to make sure it is not taking an uhdue
amount of deposits out of our State. We have to be sure that
any out-of-state bankﬁwﬁich comes in here complies. with the community
réinvestmentvneeds that exist in our statutes, and so forth.

So, I would say, as we really begin to see interstate banking
and - out;of-state‘ entities eaming in, that, clearly, “the Legislature
will_haVe to be mindful of various limitations in order to makebsure
that depositor needs, loan needs, and so forth, are being met by that
institution, no matter where it is f:om. Not to do that Qoald really
be a default vsituation, which is something I do hot -thinkv any.
legislature wants to see happen. : ' '

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: In the interest of procedure, as 1 have
said before, we will adjourn until 1:30. '

(LUNCH'REQESS)

 AFTER RECESS

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  The hearlng will now come to order.

Uur Vice Chairman, Assemblyman Kosco, will be here shortly; however, in
the meantime, we will proceed

The next witness will be John Lee. ; : v

"JOHN LEE: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, Assemblyman Loveys,k and‘ Dr.

Nadler: My name is John Lee, and I am representing the Deposit Taking

and Lending Division of the Dean Witter Financial Services Group, a
Sears, Roebuck and Co affiliate.

- Sears is proud of its contlnu1ng commltment to the State of

New Jefsey.  Some of the highlights of Sears' role in New Jersey

economy in‘1983‘are as follows: Sears' employees, 14,126; State and

61



local taxes paid by Sears, over $51 million, Sears' inVestments.in

. State and local municipal bonds, approximately $168 million, Sears'

purchases from merchandise sources, $571 million; merchandise sources
in the State, total ‘about 500; Sears' facilities, 1nclud1ng Sears
stores and other sites, over 200, Sears' shares owned oy residents,
approximately $6 million; and, residents who onn Sears shares, 22,622.

- I was honored when Lois Dinsmore, . Pre81dent of the New Jersey
'Retail Merchants A33001at10n, asked me to present testimony respecting
Sears' plans for consumer banks. ‘ ' ‘

' We have always competed on price- and quality, winning the
confidence.of consumers by»offering them new choices. That' is the way
“.competition works. It gives:customers a choice,vand it assures that
“the company that finds a better way to serve its customers will v
" pTOSpEer. Competition is ‘good for consumers, for companies, and for our
country. I think we can all :agree on that ~even though we know that
the’competitive marketplace is difficult and challenging. There are
losers in the game. The\marketplace is not aigentle playing field, but
it should be level, neuertheless, for banks and other types of
financialv service providers.  Those who ignore‘ change and play by
yesterday's rules will vlose. bCompanies that will not respond to.
customer needsbcan‘disappear,' But,bthe price of thwarting . competition
is even greater. Over-regulation creates;finefficiencies, reduces
| choice, and often reduces the quality of products and services.
Financial service is a consumer business. .  Sometimes we
forget that;} Creating capital,»lending money, and providing investment
opportunity are not restricted to big business. - Small busineSS'people
and consumers must be well-served ’by‘ our financial system, but
traditionally, ‘the Flnanc1al services 1ndustry has ‘tended to ignore
some basic consumer needs. ' |
One thing is certain: The financial services marketplace‘hasv
been‘invigorated by competition. It is'responding‘to the consumer as
never before, offering choices and ootions never beforevavailable. Any -
~ opportunity driven by chanoes in consumer needs appeals to Sears. That
is how we built our business, and that is  how we’ will ~improve our
business. | - S | o
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- Many people are, 1nterested in learning about what Sears plans
to do in the field of banking services. In general terms, Sears plansv”
to. continue, and -to expand ‘the - same kinds of consumer financial -
serv1ces that it has - been prov1ding for. a very long time.

' ‘Before 1. ‘elaborate on this general answer, Iywant to note

that I welcome the opportunity to address this toplc in terms of Sears'
plans and 1ntent10no, because 1t will permit me, I‘hope,ito dispel some
misconceptions about Sears that have resulted from stories “in the
financial and general‘media. There is great fear and concern expressed
~in some - quarters about - Sears entering what 1s supposedly. a "new"
field. In a very 1mportant sense, it is not new to Sears at all.
‘Sears' recent commitment to expand into consumer financial services is
actually a continuation and broadening of services it has provided to
~the Amerlcan mass consumer for a very long time. ' ' '

A brief review ~of Sears' experlence in this field should,’
demonstrate*that no lawmaker or regulator should be concerned about
| Searsl»intentions or’seek/to restrict its plans. Sears' involvement‘in
| this.fieldgstarted as early as 1911,rwhen,it:began.offering"credit
‘arrangements to its merchandise customers. ‘Many. of these customers

would have been unable to receive credit from the traditional source of

~ credit in those days, the banking industry. At that time, the banking |

industry was primarily catering to farms and businesses, and -had little
interest in‘ the -mass -consumer who was, and is, the basic  Sears
customer. v | | . v
, Sears expanded further into financial services in 1931, when

it started the Allstate Insurance‘ Company - to provide lower-cost
~automobile insurance for its customers than was 0therw1se available to
consumers at that time. ‘ v

Sears' next maJor expansion into finanCial services came in
'-1958, when it acqu1red a California sav1ngs and loan. After mergers.
and growth, that 1nst1tution -- now called the Sears Savings Bank --
has assets‘of-$5.5 billion. So, Sears has been in the deposit side of
the banking business for over 25 years. k .’ »

For more than 10 years, Sears has operated other CONsumer

lending companies, including Allstate Enterprises, which has a $1
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billion portfolio of éuto and other consumer loans, and Allstate"
Enterpfises_Mortgage Corboration, a residential mortgage banker. |
Finally, three years ago, Sééré. acquired Dean Witter and
Coldwell Bénker, to round out its product offerings of consumer
financial services. L ‘ e |
Looking forward, Sears . is committed to expansion of these
services, but everyone should be clear about what Sears does and does
) not intend to do. Sears does intend to become a major provider of
- consumer . loans, consumer  deposit services,k and consumer transaction
sefvices; Transaction services include such things as checking, bill
paying, and credit card and debit card operationé. The target market
of‘Sears is the so-called "middle hérket,“ that is, households with
~ incomes in the $20,000 to $70,000 - range. We believe this is our
principal market for two reésons: “First, Sears already has ah
important relationship with the customer base. These are the people
most likely to seek the services of Sears. Second, we believe the
- middle-income. group represents a rich market that can be better served
‘by' the non-traditional means of delivery that Sears intends to
‘ exﬁlore. And, it is a group that the traditional providers have not
served particularly well.

Sears intends -to seek new and better ways of bringing these
products to the mass consumer. An example of‘this is the establishment
of the Sears Financial Network Centers that I am sure you are familiar

with. The information coming to us from the operation of these Centers
| so;far, shows that this approach is reaching a group of consuhers not
adequately serviced by ,e*isting.'financial institutions. Sears 1is
offering banking, insurance, and real estate‘and investment services at
places and during hours that»are éonvenient_for the consumer, and the
cbnsumer is responding to this. For example, Dean Witter  has
 discovered that 60% of its new clients in the Center ‘offices are
first-time brokerage accounts, almost all of which are from the
middle-income group. S '
~An important point to note is that Sears does not plan to go
into commercial banking. We.are seeking to expahd only in consumer

banking services. Sears believes that the Federal and state regulatory
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restrictions.imposed on the ownership of banks, and the activity ef
deposit taking, - are ‘based on policy concernsv that should have 'no_"
applicability to consumer banks.  Take, for example, the Federal
- Glass-Steagall 'Act, which enforces a separation of bahking' and
| securities underwriting. If you examine carefully‘the:history.of,that
~act and the dangers'that it sought to address, you will cee that the
real concern was the inVolvement of cqmmercial lending by banks
‘afflllated with securltles underwriters. '

Slmllarly, the Federal Bank Holdlng Company Act .prohibits
‘diversified companies, such as Sears, from owning banks that both
accept demand deposits ~and  make commeréial‘ loans. Under preéenf
Federal law, diversified companies can own banks that make only
consumer loans. We think that is good"policy,:and”that is why Sears
acduired a ‘consumer bank in Greenwood, Delaware;~ - But,  there are
efforts in Congress and in the states to stop companies like Sears from'
owning consumer banks, and we ‘see no sound policy basis for that
pesition. Such leglslatlon would simply restrict free competltlon in
prov1d1ng serv1ces to the consumer.

The Greenwood Bank will not engage in commer01al lending, and
thus is what has been called a "non- bank bank." This term has led to
‘the misunderstanding that these consumer banks -- to use a better term
-- are not regulated as ‘normal banke'are, and thUs‘mayvbe unsafe. This
is completely “untrue. “Non-bank banks, or consumer banks, are
chartered, regulated, and supervised exactly like all ofher banks, and
their deposits are ‘insured by the FDIC. - They can be chartered as

either ‘national banks or state banks. The only difference between
consumer banks and other commercial banks is that consumer banks do not

make commercial ‘loans, or, if fhe banks ' so elect, do not take demand
depoéits. There is nothing unsafe about them. - |

‘ Sears is advocating limited deregulation of banking because
of our belief in and commitment to the free enterprise system. But,
the term "deregulation" has becomeia fuzzy and emotional term. Sears
is not advocating that banks be allowed to ‘engage' directly in
activities unrelated to -banking, nor to lessen the degreeh‘ofi

examination and supervision of banks themselves. What we are
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vadvocatlng 1s a degree of deregulatlon that will allow dlver51f1ed
companies- such as Sears to own dep031t taking 1nst1tut10ns We believe
there is no sound basis for art1f1c1ally restrlctlng the universe of
‘companles that can own deposit takers. »

To fac1lltate the ability of Sears and other companles to
continUe to provide more choice and service to the Amerlcan consumer,
we advocate that New Jersey support this moVement.; You can do this by
repealing the laws that preclude' ownership ;of consumer banks by

'dlver31f1ed companies. T = ' }

The question 1s, “why restraln the competitive spirit emerging
in thls 1ndustry7 Why deny consumers the advantages of new technology,'
new convenlence, and new access to financial markets? - Why continue
leglslatlon that does’ not protect the consumer, but _protects " the
llmlted 1nterests of - some members of the 1ndustry7

Innovatlon does  not threaten well- -managed banks and other
financial 1nst1tut10ns. There is room for all of us.

This concludes my testimony; and I will be happy to answer
any questions that members of the Subcommittee may have. |

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Do I understand your position is that
organiiations like yours should be opened wide on a free competitive
basis, even going so far as to knock out " existing regulations and
existing laws which regulate you? ‘ ’ _

- MR. LEE: No, we wish to compete under those laws and under
that sopervision We belleve that a well managed institution under the

system of regulatlon can compete and can offer consumers a better

ch01ce. R ) ‘ : . : ,

k ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: But, who would regulate you? Who would
protect the public? In my oplnlon - and I am just playing the role of
 the devil's advocate here -- you have indicated that the marketplace

will take care of all of those - things. Competition -- they will take
care of it. Donltfworry about thevregulators. They are the bad guys
+in Washington, and they are the bad guys in Trenton.v I would like you
to elaborate a little bit more on that particular point. It appears to -

be quite an extreme point. That is my gut reaction to what you said.
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MR LEE: On the contrary, in the‘area of cOnsomer banks; We
wish to accept the regulatlons ‘regarding charter, the regulatlons andt,
the superv131on We do not advocate d01ng away with any of that. If
you are talking about the expanded powers of . brokerage act1v1t1es, or
:freal estate activities that ‘are offered in our Sears financial
' networks, we are under supervision, regulation, and llcen81ng. |

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:: By whom? ,

, v MR. LEE: By State regulatory agenc1es at the present tlme,

or Federal, ‘in the case of broker activities. ,Thoseylndustrles arey
, reoulated. We ‘comply with those regulatlons. , ‘ ‘ . o o
| | ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Ralph do you have any quest10ns7}’
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: No. I heard Mr. Lee say what he had to’
... say -quite distinotly._bl thought it was very precise. I do not have

"any'questions at this ‘time. ~ - ' ’ | ‘

| DR. NADLER: May I question Mr. Lee?

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  Sure. ‘ : .

DR, 'NADLER: I just wonder how you av01d the problem of'
conflict of 1nterest, with your banks saylng they will" only lend money
to people who are. 901ng to buy items in Sears. ,There are Federal laws
‘ eagalnst tle 1n relatlonshlps when you are reFerring to antitrust
matters. I am wondering, just what is the phllosophy of the bank7‘

“MR. LEE:  The philosophy of the bank lS to - respond to the‘
,consumer~'market I don't think consumers would long stand for any v
suggested. tie-in w1th any. products. ,

» DR. NADLER: " Then may I ask, when Sears takes over a bank, is
it ~with the idea that this 1s another service to brlng,people into
Sears, or is it as an independent profit-making organization? -

MR. LEE: We intend it to be as an independent proflt—maklng
organlzatlon, assuming that the good management of the bank ean conform
to Sears' expectations. , : :

| DR. NADLER: But, I JUSt wonder why Sears went out and bought

‘a bank instead of buylng something else. Do you feel you are prov1d1ng

- a full service to the customer, whlch will then brlng him 1nto a Sears,

store, where otherwise-- Is it a full service banking approach?
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‘ MR. LEE:"No, we'doanot want a full service bankihg approach,
because traditionally that . has meant commereial banking business also.
So, we do nof want to be a full serv1ce bank.

DR. NADLER. May 1 ask the percentage of accounts in your
" Delaware bank‘ef people who do not live in Delaware? v ’

MR. LEE: At present, I do not know that because we bought
the Delaware bank .as recently as two weeke ago. I don't think those
flgures have been worked up yet '

DR. NADLER: What I am trying to get at is, what is: Sears‘
motive for wanting to have a bank? Banks certainly do not earn as much
vas a department store does, you know, just»throdgh‘the‘use’of capital.
I just wonder what their feeling is. Hew‘does this tie in with the
whole picture of Sears as a financial seryice?

MR. LEE: ~ In my remarks, I referred to varioue -financial
services we intend to -explore, ‘including tranSactions services or
credit card/debit card operatlons. Those are -still in the planning
stages, if that is responsive to your question. That is exactly the
line we intend to pursue.’ | '

~DR. NADLER: I am JUSt trylng to see why Sears would be
different as an bank from anyone else. Is there any way -that the
public would be sort of forced to give more of its business to one
comeany because‘of’that? ‘_I'mean, it is such an unusual ‘thing forlai
retail store to want to own a bahk. |
| MR. LEE: I don't think there is ‘any compunction - about
‘bringing people in. We believe that the consumers are requesting these
services, ‘and we believe thatfby,ewning a bank we can respond»with'
these services. We believe that the future activities of companies
like Sears -- ahd, there are others which own banks; it- is nothing new
‘-- will bear this out. Sears is certalnly not the first retailer.
There are other companles -~ as I am sure you are aware -- which have
followed and which have laid the groundword for it.

~ ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: ifﬁade the statement earlier that this

is one of fhe problems that at least should be considered. All these"
decisions will soon be made by three geographical locations, ‘Wall

Street,' Chicago, and San Franeisco; California.: For Sears, or any :
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other group ;r I doonot~meanyto single out'Sears -- this is just ooihg
“to be an adjunct to selling their products. I don't know whether thlsv
would be good for the public or for the banking industry as. a whole. 1
say the banking 1ndustry, and you say, "Well, there isn't such.a thlng
‘as the banklng 1ndustry " Now we are going to have the Sears Roebuck
indUstry -- and, I do not mean that in a derogatlve way, 1 am- u31ng

- that as a concept -- the same way, tradltlonally, you have always gone

" to a bank for your mortgage. Now you go to K-Mart. I donrt know

whether the publlc llkes that or. not. I think ~that is what the‘
Professor was trylng to brlng out, whether that is putting the horse
before the cart, or vice versa. I don't know whether the people really‘

want that. I think  people like to govto a bank to borrow their money
or get their mortgage, ahd when they want good tools, they will go to
Sears. I don't know; I am perplexed by all thlS I want to hear more
discussion along those lines. L .

DR. NADLER: May I ask-- You 1ndlcated ‘that Sears has an
»opportunlty to fill a void w1th things that customers want Could you
indicate -- and ‘I know that two weeks isn't very much experiente_e—
bwhere Sears saw this void in financial service? What type of account
d1d the public. want that it wasn't able to get'7

- MR, LEE: The banking services which we feel can be met may
vrelate to the availability of hours, and services in a ‘Sears store..
Whether or not that is, in fact, the,caee,is'not khown; we need more
hlstory on it. , | '

DR. NADLER: Well, talki‘ng about hours, let's say you have a

Delaware bank, and I come into a New Jersey store, will 1 be able to ‘'do
my banklng in the Sears store in New Jersey?

MR. LEE: With that Delaware bank?

DR. NADLER: - Yes.

MR. LEE: That hasn't been dec1ded v :

DR. NADLER: I know you can't make dep031ts because that is
agalnst the law, but other than that, will I be able to cash checks,
get a consumer ‘loan, or avail myself of other services from this
Delaware bank? _

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS Not for a year.
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MR. LEE: Nof under‘present law. 1 would like to respond,
~ Mr. Chairman, to your concerns about whether or not there would be
three or four centers where decisions _were :made or policy was
dictated. Even with the phenomenon of regional bankihg coﬁing to the
-forefront, we’belieVe-states stili have a very important role in the
~dual banking system. We ‘do not see that as béingr overcome by
coalescing.in certain geographic centers. -We don't think there is a
reduction‘in’that important responsibility. : ,

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Now, "this is ‘a Subcommittee of the
Assembly Banking and Insurance Committee here,’and I recall a couple of
months ago when an insurance bill was beihg discussed. We had one of
your counsels here -- I think‘hé came from Chicago -- and the same idea
was thrown out to him. Wheh cars get fixéd after an accident and
Allstéte‘ié'the insurer, what is the hook-in with parts? Where do they
buy the parts? The Committée had receiVed a lot of complaints at that
time, that if you wanted to have Sears insure -- if Sears was the
carrier -- you had to get your‘parts from Allstate. That is one of the
thingé that has been brought out. It is really an édjunct‘ to the
~original COncépt’of the SearS‘ﬁerchandising store. 1 am not saying
that is good or bad; I don't kmnow. But, I recall that that was the
same idea which was thrown out at that time. I think he wés a brother
attorney. He sat in your chair and he sduirmed a little bit. But,
don't take that attitude. I'm playing the devil's advocéte here. I
just wanted to bring the point home'so‘we could evaluate it.

MR. LEE: I think that retailers generally feel -- and I
think Lois Dinsmore would agree with us. -- that - consumers -are
requesting certain services. They are expecfing 'éeftain services.
They will not put up with» tieeinv'techniques. © They. will let their
dollars speak for them,vas was mentiohed‘earlier this morning. We are
in favor bf that opportunity, and we would be willing to work with this
Subcommittee and othéf staff members to develop iegislation to that -
effect. , | ‘ ' ,

DR. NADLER: Mr. Chairman, may I ask another question?

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: = Sure.
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DR.‘NADLER . Let's say New Jersey NOW has a moratorlum thatn

restrlots your bank for a year - Let's say I were to walk into 'a
Pennsylvanla Sears store, say w1th1n a month ’ Would there be any way,
.;that 1 could do my banking bu31ness through your: Delaware bank75

' MR. LEE: Within a month, no. 7 R i o
. DR. NADLER: ~ Well then, let's say within Six months. _ln
other _words, how do you env181on‘ thls Delaware ‘bank serv1ng Sears'fv
: customers throughout the nation? o
: MR. LEE: We are mov1ng very carefully and slowly on that_'

because of the Federal leglslatlve cllmate. As you know, Congressman

’St.l Germaln has proposed a spec1flc bill that would cause serlousl"

N problems and serious reconsiderations. . Until  the time that. we
, definitely know what ‘is’ happening at the Federal level, we will
consider our bu31ness plans Very carefully. _ ‘ '
~ 0On the other hand, if Congress does not act on this ‘measure,
- as they have not“acted for the past two years, I_belleve retailers,
ffrom“whatbI’understand,»oan consider thatra ohoioe'also. bNon-aotion is .
a choice. The states'then,;in their efforts“toward regionalism’and:~
their very valid concern over regulatlon of the banklng 1ndustry, have
'a very 1mportant role to play
DR. NADLER: Will the day. come when I can walk 1nto a Sears
store and- it will be my full service banker?
' MR;.LEE Full serv1ce, no, because that 1ncludes commerc1alr‘
'loans,‘ o _ v - |
DR. NADLER: Other than commercial loans? _
. MR.  LEE: Other than oommeroial ‘loans, (that' is a
pOSSlblllty. Will'the day'come?; I can't sit here “and say'that.it
w1ll. | | o o ’ o
~ ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: | Suppos:mg the Garn- St. Germain team
;'makes it retroactlve to June 30, will you have some problems7
' “MR. LEE: If you mean 1983, yes.

_ ASSEMBLYMAN LaRDCCA If there .are others who have not spoken,,
as yet who have comments on this, I would gladly ‘welcome those
comments. Don't get me wrong, Counselor, it is part of my jab to play‘
,the devil's advocate, as 1 said earlier, all in the 1nterest of trylng

~kto get the best p0351ble 1nformatlon
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Do you have any.guestions;hRaloh? y _f

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: No'queStions. S :

- MR, -LEE:, Agaln, I enjoyed appearing before ~the

: Subcommittee. We look forward to working with. the members on new

leglslatlon for 1986. - g : e .
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: We will keep in touch with you; and you

‘keep in touch with us about any. further 1deas you. would like us to

V_,have. We will try to work together and see what the end product 1s

MR. LEE: Thank you. very much. v .

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: ~ Our next w1tness w1ll be Mr Tom_Hart
' from the New Jersey Sav1ngs League. B .
THOMAS HART: Mr. Chalrman, Assemblyman Loveys My name is Tom Hart; 1
am Executive Vice Pres1dent of the New Jersey Savings League, which
represents vlrtually all of the 165 sav1ngs and loans in the State. We

have submitted a statement for the record whlch includes how financial

institutions before deregulatlon -- back in 1960 . -- went through a
period of what then  became very  popular, a 'new term,
"disintermediation."g At that time, the Federal government imposed

_interstate controls on savings accounts, restrictions as’to‘whaticould N
be paid as a ‘maximum That, in: turn, led ‘John -and Mary Doe, the
consumers,. to withdraw thelr ~funds * from flnanc1al 1nst1tut10ns and
place those funds in other places where they . could get a higher
return.  Again, this is before deregulation. What this caused Mr.

: Chairman and . Assemblyman LOveys, was @ cutback 1n mortgage lending
because of a lack of loanable funds. * The funds simply weren't there.

This had a severe 1mpact, not only on hou31ng in New -Jersey, but on.

- housing" nat10nw1de.

In the late 1970s, Congress began remov1ng those 1nterest
_rate restrlctlons and regulatlons as to what could be pald on savings

accounts; the most recent action was another change in the deregulatlon‘
as of January 1 of this‘year; Also, at thatvtime in the late 1970s and
‘early 1980s, we all know me werevgoing through’a high interest rate
period with record'inflation, and we -- the savings and loan_industry,
the thrift industry;,not only in New Jersey, but nationwide -~ were

caught in an earning squeeze. We were able to attract savings because
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we could pay a 'higher rate, but at that time we had limited
opportunltles to invest those moneys ‘to earn 1ncome for profitability.
‘What it came down to, Mr. Chalrman and Assemblyman Loveys,‘

i was. the fact that for a period of time in 1981 ‘and 1982 we were paying

,'dep031tors a rate of 1nterest on thelr sav1ngs accounts which exceededf"

the 1ncome derlved obtalned, or received on the magor asset of awl
sav1ngs and loan, a mortgage loan. Typlcally, this exceeded the return '
from the mortgage loan portfollos. In"1981 and 1982, we know - the -
thrifts had a serious earnlngs problem with the 4% and 5% long-term
 fixed mortgage»loans. “1 had one of them as a matter of fact. " But, the
' deregulation of the financial‘:institutions brought about by --

as Chalrman LaRocca Jjust mentloned - Garn St. Germain back in'1982,

gave the bu31ness a means, a vehicle, -a ‘way to weather future periods -

- of hlgh 1nterest rates, while continuing to support hous1ng through a
wider range. of - prlmarlly hous1ng -related lending serv1ces to the
consumer here- in New Jersey and natlonw1de_--‘as CommlsSloner Parell"
mentloned this mornlng -- adJustable mortgage loans.

-The sav1ngs and loan business is stlll‘dedlcated to- housing.
_,In 1984, mortgage lending achieved a new record here in NeW‘JerSeyy
:through the savings and loans, of close to $9 bllllon, exceeding 1983,
which had been a reeord yearlof a little over $7 billion. We are
~ concerned, however, that if deregUlation goes back to re- regolatlon, it
”w1ll 1mpa1r the 1ndustry s ablllty to withstand the economic shocks we
went through, as I descrlbed before, and will harm the hou31ng -related

‘ flnanc1al services made available to the c1tlzens of New Jersey., e

Presently, the New Jersey .law ‘under whlch the State- chartered o

savinos and loans operate -- the New Jersey Savings and Loan Act --
-'givesv State-chartered associations parity with Federally-chartered
~savings institutions contained within that statute. If that was
curtailed, eliminated, or restricted, it would certainly put -
State-chartered 'Newv Jersey savings ~and loans at  a competitive
_ dlsadvantage w1th the Federally-chartered dep031tor1es .
| We believe the issue related to interstate banking whlch has
“been discussed this morning shouldfbe resolved by Congress as a first

step, before State action is taken. We support the recent aCtiO”,y.
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related to the non-bank bank’statute taken by you and your colleagues
in the Assembly and in the Senate, which was recently signed into law
byrGovernqr Kean. We believe the New Jérsey‘savings institutions now
have the ‘poWer necessary -to serve and prdvide fhe mortgage finance
needs of the citizens of New Jersey, and we aré'meeting those mortgage
finance needs, as demonstrated by the record mortgage lending shown in
1984, S o

What the savings and loan:industry needs now, Mr. Chairman
and Assemblyman LoVeys, is time to recover from the effects of that
long-standing policy of inveéting in fixed—fate, long-term, 10W—yield
mpftgage loans, which many are still holding, so that the industry can
be competitive, can meet the needs of the"éonsumer, and cah serve the
public in all phases of this economic cycle here in New Jersey.

v “In cdnclusibn, we are concerned that deregulétion‘does'not
become re-regulation.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Tom, if I may, I found what you had to
say interesting, but 1 also found there was a little bit of
‘defensiveness on your part, or at least that was what I heard. Do you
feel for one minute that the reason we are having this hearihg is to
maybe institute new regulations in the savings and loané institutions
in this State? | e |

MR. HART: Absolutely not, Assemblyman Loveys. Basically,
what we wanted to present to the Subcommittee was that deregulation has
not only helped savings and loéns and other financial insfitutiohs, but
‘just as important, if not more important, it has helped,to serve the
consumers' needs. If I gave that impression, I apologize.

- ASSEMBLYMAN  LOVEYS: I thought there was a little bit of
defensiVénéss gbingvon, and quite frankly, I would be very disappointed
if anyone on this particular Committee evef started to talk about usury
laws again; or if they didn't realize what goodvhas‘takeh place in this
State because of dereqgulation. I know I wouldn't even consider that
area you are concerned with. . v

MR. HART: I appreciate that very much..

VASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: = How does your industry feel and react -
to the comments made by the previous speaker? Just to carry something

“on, I would like to hear all sides."
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MR. ‘HART: Are you referrlng to Mr. Lee's test1mony7 |
'ASSEMBLYMAN - 'LaROCCA:  Yes. : :

‘ MR. 'HART: ~ I took note, and my response to that, ;Mr.
Chairman, would be that when the New JErsey Bankers Association
initiated the non-bank bank ldophole legislation, we immediately joined
with them in supportlng that leglslatlon - | '

' ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Do you want to ask anything else,
| Ralph? | ' ' ' ’
 ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: No, thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  All right, Tom, thank you very much.
‘MR. HART: " Thank you, Mr. Chairman. ‘
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: - Our next ‘witness will“be Mr. Russell -
Bent , New Jersey Association of Llfe Underwrlters. B

'RUSSELL F. BENT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is Russ Bent. My
testimony this afternoon is being made on behal f of the New Jersey

e "Assoc1at10n of Life Underwriters,. which represents 3, 000 life ‘and

health 1nsurance agents throughout the State.

It is our understanding that this is the first in a series of
hearings that your  Subcommittee w1ll‘be holding, and that“oneaof'the'
purposes of this hearing will be to determine the direction that:
sdbsequent hearings'will take. We would like, Mr. Chairman, to reservei
the‘right to appear at - those subsequentvhearings to offer additional
'.testimony depending upon'the subject matter of any partioular hearing"
Chairman, the position of the life ‘and. health insurance
' agents .on the entrance of depository 1nst1tut10ns into the marketplace
of 1nsurancepls well known to most ‘in thls room, but for the record let
me state it' again. We are totaliy opposed to any depbsitoryn
"1nst1tut10n or financial institution engaglng in the sale of insurance
~either directly or through a wholly-owned subsidiary. Also, for the
record, we are just as opposed to :any, insurance company - owning a
depository or financial institution either directly or through a
~ wholly-owned sub51d1ary. -

It can be argued that banking is different -- possibly on a-"
higher plain  -- than some other - industries. Many feel it is

‘potentially dangerous, not just' for the financial institutions
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themselves, but for. the State as ”well, to ‘allow banks to perhaps
blunder into the cold winds and onto the playlng flelds, level or not,
of marketplace competltlon ‘ :

It is well said that the ultlmate dlsc1p11ne of a deregulatedf
world is bankruptcy. But, dep031tory institutions are the c1rculatory
: system of the economy. They are too 'important to be allowed ﬂto
collapse. = Thus, for decades, public policy has“kept banks from going
too far afield into other businesses, where the risk of failure may be’
high. 'And, public polioy has been to proplbanks up -when they did get

f;linto trouble Economlst Henry Kaufmann of Solomon Brothers argues that

when you encourage the entrepreneurlal drlve of banks, the only way
that drive can be d1801pllned is by allow1ng banks that have behaved
improperly to Fall.v ,

This is a key 1ssue Are ~we‘ willing to allow major
institutions that hold savings and temporary funds to place themselves
’ in a position to fail when the dlsc1pl;ne of the marketplace is exerted
upon them? ‘ o o " |

We believe, Mr. Chairman, that the public has a special
wisdom in matters of broad social change. Members of the New Jersey
legislature -- like all legislators -- must be respon51ve to this
wisdom. ~This Subcommittee would be unwise, indeed, should it fail to
determine public sentiment on the questions posed in the resolution
‘before us today. In attempting to disoern those answers for ourselves,
and reluctant to act without public opinion, we looked for and ‘found
. significant public support. | |

" First, labor: In March, 1984, testifying before the Senate
Finance Committee in Washington, the AFL-CIO stated that: "Banks are
safekeepers of other people's money," and further stated that there is
a correlation between deregulation and bank failures.” They went on to
~ say that the authority for banks to engage‘in more activities would
intensify the scramble for’funds and’ the pressure to place funds in
~high risk investment. As to insurance, the AFL-CIQ said there would be
at least "subtle pressure" exerted by loan officers to give bank
insurance affiliates an‘unfair advantage over competitcors. They added

that expansion into insurance would further the concentration of
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economlc power, and reduce the bargalnlng p031t10n of the consumer. The
union said it was "strongly opposed" to banks 1nvolvement in 1nsurance.'

Second, the opinion of small  business: = The National
Federation of Independent Business, speaking on behalf of its membefs
,nationwide, expressed- the fear that small business will be,Aat a
diSaavantage when asking for a loan from a bank fhét has a cempefing -
bsubsidiary Small business said it is opposed to banks engaglng in
1nsurance, real estate, ‘and securities brokerage.

 Third, the opinion of insurance regulators: Citing

‘long-standing solvencylsafeguards_and the dangers of tie-in sales, the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners acknowledged that the
commissioners' ebligation to the public is very high. They said that’
legislators and regulators must ask whether deregulation and the
~integration of financial service institutions is truly desirable.

FoUrth;‘the‘position of the State insﬁrance legislators: In
February, .1984, the Conference ef Insurance Legislators opposed
“legislation that would let insurers, banks, and securities houses get
into each other's businesses. They stated: "It serves all of us well
to rememter that it is the nest‘egge of our constituents that may be
broken‘ifiwe let deregulation move too far, or at too fast a pace;“
They also added a telling point, fhat not one of the financial services
industries has hanaged its own risks well enough to justify the
eipansion contemplated by deregulation.

All’of these'gfoups have specialized points of wview. But,
what of the: feelings of the most important segment of ‘society to be

sustained or failed by the vital circulatofy system of financial
institutions, the consumer, the poor figure depicted in one magazine

cringing on the 50-yard line of some presumably level playing field, as
" the competing teams run roughshod over him; or the man caricatured in a

New York Times cartoon, as squeezed and struggllng between the two

opposing hands of an apparently titanic arm-wrestling contest.

What is‘ the ~hapless consumer's view of financial
deregulation? The Coneumer Federation .of America, representing 30
million people,istated‘that the most ‘apparent fact of the deregulation.

movement is distinct categories of winners and losers, and among the
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losersiare small business, home-buyers, consumer borrowers, and small
depositors.” As for banks entering anOther buainess, such as insurance,
the Consumer Federation expressed concern about the excessive~economic
power of banks comblned with 1nsurance, and also with the potentlal for
h harmful ty1ng arrangements. . » ,

_ Flnally, what do senior c1tlzens say about deregulation? The
American ,Assoc1at10n of Retlred Persons, representing 15 million
people, has stated that the'aging.population has a’keen interest in the
safety of financial institutions. - The senior citizen group said
~ commercial banks, and Flnanc1al 1nst1tutlons by any other name, have
special powera given to themvby.Statefand Federal authorities and that
their. vactivities , have‘ been carefullyi 01rcumscr1bed by'y‘every'l
gOVernment The senior citizens did not see why advanced computer-
technology and communlcatlons should be allowed to somehow dictate that
commercial banking- should be free to engage in financial and business
,'activities previouslyuprohibited.: They went on to state that they did
~not see how technology coold be construed as ‘obviating the ‘eafety
issues presented by miiing ‘banking with commerce - In fact, citing
computer fraud, they said technology Seems to be creatlng ‘more safety
problems . than it is solving.:- ‘ »

~ So, we have taken a good measure of public opinion. Does the
,publlc embrace the supermarket school of financial services?  Labor
saysv"no " . Small business says "no." State ‘insurance regulators say
~"no." Consumers young and old say "no." , ,
In- much of the nlneteenth century, when banking regulation
~was virtually nonexistent, - financial panic and bank failures were
commonplace. People seem afraid of a retUrn to something akin to
that. Considering that bank failures are on.the’rise; their concern
seems well placed. : o
 Lastly, Mr. ',Chairman, we submit . that the financial
institutions haVe not shown that they have the consumers interest in
',mind, at least when it comes to lnsurance. We would ask that you
include,‘at’some'point'in your hearings, a,discussion.on credit life
and health insurance. It has been ourbexperience'that the- premiums

charged for this coverage are vastly excessive in terms of'the:true .
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*economie‘value of the'inserance coverege being provided.' Moreover, it
- is .our belief that these rates return to the flnan01al 1nst1tut10ns,
_proflts that are unconsc1onable. ‘

, " So, to the v01ces of - the unlon, small bu31ness,>1nsurance
"regulators, 1nsurance legislators, and senlor 01tlzens, we add our "no"
to the -deregulation of financial 1nst1tutlons.v-The Life Underwriters
Association stands ready to assist this ‘Subcommittee in bany way it

. deems appropriatE, and it 1s grateful for ‘the opportunlty to testle~

' .before you here today.

1 w1ll be happy to answer any quest1ons you may have.
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: As we say in the law, issue has been

- joined. ‘ Yoq ‘have 3beeh. VEery clear-cut as to the -position of your

organization. Banks should not sell insurance, and you-sheuld not have
a supermarket approach. At lesst we khow where you stsnd,,and thet -
there is that feeling. That is something we will have to evaluate.
That is the only cbmment I have right now. . What flashes‘acrOSS'hy mind
' along the lines of ‘insurance is, if there lS more competltlon, do you
thlnk the rates would go down? '

"MR. BENT: ‘No. As far as insurance rates are’ concerned I do
not, because they ‘are set, of course, by -- . ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  (interrupting) The process.

MR. ’BENTQV By the process which - includes -inveStmehts;’
expenses, and mortality rates. They are .set, as you ‘know, by
ectusrles. ‘How ‘they ge about determining'those figures is  way above
"me. But;'we'do~not belie{e'there will be increased competition. - Our
- feelingiis that once an individual goes into that financial institution
rand the door closes behind hlm, so closes competltlon
N ~ DR. NADLER If you say there is no way rates can go down,
‘ how come sav1ngs bank life insurance, which is 1llegal in New Jersey,
is so much cheaper than regular life insurance? .

. MR. BENT ~ Well, 1 answered the questlon in the context of
additional‘competition. The rates can go down, I don't know “that
'competition‘weuld drive them down, but I am not an actuary, so I don't
: knew. They should come down in many areas; for example, in credit life
“insurance, eertainly there is an. area Wherev they‘.should come down

substantially.
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DR. NADLER - I.was thlnklng of agents' commissions, which can
‘be over 100% in the first year's premium. If a bank does it on a
non-commission basis, that should cut rates, shouldn't it?i ,

' MR. BENT: Well;-it should, but I don't know that it will.
It very well might. By'the»way; there ere‘very few companies that
 offer 100% commission. We would oppose that. As én egents' group, we

~ believe that is excessive. - Not too long ago, there were 31tuat10ns}
where companies were apparently 1nterested in buying bu31ness. ~We saw
comm1331on rates up to 220m. We made complalnts to the Department of
Insurance that those rates were outrageous.. We do. not belleve in ‘that
~ kind of a commission structure. o
| ‘ If the rates can come down because of competition, by letting
the banks 1n, we certainly wouldn t be opposed to that. It might make
us work a little harder, but that's all right, that is what the
‘marketplace dictates. : R

’v DR.. NADLER: " How could you find that out without having
legislation allowing a tryout? |

MR BENT:  Well, it has been evident through credit life that

_the banks =- because agents do not sell credit life -- have not brought

~rates down.  From what we can determlne, they have gone to the. hlghestv

rates p0331ble, There is no- competltlon in’ credlt life. When you go
in to make a loan, you are before that loan officer and you are given
the opportunity to take out credit’ life or not, as you choose, but

there is no competition. Because there is no competltlon, there is no
;lowerlng of the rates for credlt life, = .
DR. NADLER: So, you're saylngithe benks have given a poor
~example of what they might do in the insurance field?
MR. BENTfi Absolutely. We can document that. N
-~ ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: I think your request is a fair request.
‘I think the request the egents have made should be part of our ongoing
studies. We will have some sort of an 1nvestlgat10n, if you will,
regardlng banks selling insurance. - : o
" DR. MADLER: May I ask you also to look at savings bank life
~insurance in the states where it is legal7
ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: I hope we w1ll look at everythlng that

is available,to us.
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MR. BENT We would certalnly not oppose that elther Yod‘
understand that sav1ngs bank 1nsurance is sold only by savings banks,
“and only in three states.

ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: You sald at the beglnnlng of - your
Ltestlmony that you don't want to. see 1nsurance companles go- 1nto,
banking any more than you want to see banks g0 into 1nsurance What is
your feeling then, as a trade organlzatlon, when you see a company like -
Prudential buy a non-bank bank? '

'MR. BENT: We have made our p081t10n clear to Prudential that

we bbject'to that. “Now, I understand,; in fact I have even read, where

the chairman of Prudential has gone public and said that Prudential - |

would sell its bank if banks would stay out of the insurance bus1ness
I am only repeating what I saw publlcly stated
' ' ASSEMBLYMAN_LOVEYS They are buying non- banks, and they are
buying undercover. S v R
- MR. BENT:: Well, they have one bank in Gaorgia, to the bestb_
of my knowledge. As far as I know, that is basically a:shell. 1 don't’
even think they are working it. -Again, I don't know.
- ASSEMBLYMAN LOVEYS: Joe Will tell us. , ,

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA:  All right, thank-you, Russ. Our next
witness will he Mr. Jeff Klein, American Insurance Association.
JEFFREY M. KLEIN: Before I start, I would just‘like to say if I knew ~
there were going to be so many bankers here, 1 might not haVe worn a
pin stripe suit today, so you wouldn't confuse us | ’

My name is Jeff Klein; 1 am an A88001ate Counsel for
Government Affairs for the American_Insurance A33001at10n. We are a
national trade organization representing 174 property and casualty
companies,.incldding many ddmesticated herevin New Jersey -- Seleeted
Risks, = Crumb and Foster,’ and the Chub Corporation.- We have -a
significant interest in this issue, as you can imagine, and are pleased
‘that you invited us here to testlfy today. I want to emphasize that
our statement is rather ‘lengthy, and I ask only that it be included in
full in the record. I w1ll just summarize it so as not to take up too

much‘of the Subcommittee's time.
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Several years ago, we testlfled before the Department of
Banklng on the credit leverage issue that Russ Bent spoke about. At
that time, we urged the Governor to conduct a wide- ranglng study of the
-financial serv1ces issue here in New Jersey, because thlngs were moving
S0 qu1ckly on all fronts. We are pleased that he has working groups
in both the Baﬂklng Department and the Insurance Department, and‘we'are‘
‘also pleaséd that the Assembly 'saw fit,>by resolution, to establish
this Subcommlttee for a similar study. » | .
’ I am 901ng to echo many of the thlngs that Mr. Bent . said.
Our Association' s‘natlonal p031t10n is very steadfast, and that is,
there are~many problemswassociated with merging the two industries, the
so-called financial services integration. If we oppose it, at best and
at least, we urge everyonebto take a~very close look at the issue to

make sure that you are all apprlsed of the many problems which may take
place.

There are about six major items that I highlight in our
testlmony about why ‘we thlnk the banks request that they get into the
insurance industry is fraught with danger. One of them is the
traditional separation of banks from commerce issue, which you heard
about teday under the Glass-Steagall Act, enacted in the depression
‘days under the Bank Holding Campany Act. More recently, there are
substantialt concerns that because of the nature of the banks'
credit-lending authority, because of their peculiar role in the Federal
System:of helping to shape monetary policy through the Federal Reserve
System, and so forth, that banks having affiliates, actually making
loans, and so forth, in business with commerce-type companies, could
anly' be fraught with danger, be they securities or other types of
_~entities. ‘ . |
‘ Congress has explicitly reaffirmed, in the Garn-St. Germain
Act of 1982, that insurance’is not "closely related to banking, nor . is
it in a similar Vein; We think that traditional separation is well
justified and “should continue, not only . in New Jersey, but in the
couhtry as a whole. v -

As 1 said, banks serve as a stand—by aourcevof liquidity. It~

is a nationwide service that they provide in terms of monetary policy

82



and, as my stétement indicetes, there are a ‘number of con81deratlons‘
that should be looked into: by that commlttee \ C

By the way, I don't know if you folks have copies of the
DeWind Comm1381on Report from New York but if you don't, feel free,
despite our difference of oplnlon on the recommendation ‘of"that‘f
majority report-— We have all of the materlals in- house, and today 1

brought some of them for you.

Another blg issue we have raised, and we think we are ‘[‘

- justified 1n~thls, 1s.the‘questlon of bank solvency. Statistics shOw
that in 1983 and 1984, there were'more‘bank'failures than at any time'
since the dep-ression of the 1930s and 1940s. The basic question must
be raised whether these institutions should be allowed to enter what T
like to call "a new line of work " without hav1ng gotten their own
house in order. | -
5Conmercielv banks " present overeXposure 'in foreign loans,
: particularly in the Third‘ World and ;the‘ Eastern BIOCk nations,'_is

_ staggerlng 4 The. Wall  Street Journal 1tself ‘criticizes the

overexten81on of loans, saylng that in the past they escaped the hard
work‘of banking, that is to say assessing individual risks, by merely
dumping large loads of money on governments for them to use and misuse
as they saw fit. 'The:situation is one that was taken note of in New
York during the DeWindeommission'heerings. Alfred S. HoWes; who is a
member kof that temporery state commission, described some of the
testimony of the banking representatives up  in Albany, Nen York, and
said: "The alarm Warnings should‘have gone oFf»when'everyiwitnees for
the banks indicated the need for insuranceVUnderwriting authority to
help recouo some of the revenue being'“lost to Other finanoial‘
yinstitutions;" We are currently w1tne331ng the traglc consequences of
,‘act1v1tles in the ‘Baldwin- Unlted bankruptcy No corporatlon ‘in thatv‘
conglomerate is escaping the impact of mismanagement and 1nsolvency.

It has been our position that the Baldwin-United problem, and
‘more recently the problem of Contlnental Illinois in Chicago, ralses
very serious questions for legislators, people on this Subcommlttee,
eénd‘people all around the coontry, to take a look at-the dangers which

may result from: allowing these institutions to enter into a new line of
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business."Some_people have asked me} "Well, what about the insurance
indastry?" I'know-this’queStion will be asked, so I might-as well hit
on it now. We have: had very, very bad underwrltlng results. The year

- 1984 was .a .very bad year for the 1ndustry._ We feel that that is just

"~ another argument why both 1ndustr1es have to get thelr own. houses in

order before there is. any con31derat10n whatsoever of a merger. The .
E consequences for' the consUmer,‘ and the people of ‘the State of New
_Jersey in partlcular, are Just too staggerlng to mention. v
Several people here. today have mentloned the next toplc T
“have hlghllghted, that 1s, exce381ve market concentratlon.k Statlstlcs o
“have shown ‘that the banklng 1ndustry is much more concentrated than the_
insurance 1ndustry_1s. A large percentage of deposits in most major
cities is held by a'Qery smallvnumber of banks. ‘In Los Angeles, the
“top three banks have 62% of the deposits, Detr01t has 59%; the top
' three banks. in San Francisco have 79% of the deposits; and, Boston'has
57% ~This increased " concentratlon has led to hlgher prices and fewer
pollcy alternatives and optlons for consumers I think the situation
:1s even belng exacerbated ‘in New Jersey where, unfortUnately, now ‘we |
“have Heritage Bank merglng 1nt0.Mldlantlc, You are gettlng a few big
'flnanc1al glants here as well. v »
So, that problem ex1sts We'think the insurance indcstry,

4'athough we are having. problems, is much mere competitiQe. “There are
thQusands‘cf insurance agents in the State of New Jersey_who compete
with each other. Unfortunately, competition has gotten a little too
much into the commercial; area for my companies, where rates' have
dropped because of the‘competition,’_That has;created some financial
‘problems; but the fact remains that‘there ls sufficient competition.,b
We fear that if you get a few large money center banks enterlng the
, 1nsurance area, buylng up- agenc1es outrlght, ‘or buylng up companles,
you are going to have a sharp reduction in alternatlves for consumers.
S0, we hope that this answers that argument

The credit leverage argument is a Very, very good one, and 1

think the agents assoc1at1ons in this State -- and Russ Bent s .
association -- have been in the forefront of trying to educateteveryones
about how much of a problem that is. It is more a problem of
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perception than anything else. We mentioned the Department of»Banking
before. .Although there have been attempts to regulate explicit tie-in
‘sales, as the Department did in a‘regulation which was adopted -- I
will hand that Outvto the Subcommittee in case you have not seen it --

November 18, l983,fthere is a far more serious problem‘of implicit
tie-in sales, When a coneumer goes into a bank and takes out a.loan:on'
his property, he may be -under the lmpression -- and it may'be only a
~subtle 1mpre331on -~ from 31gnals sent to him by the person sitting
~across the desk, that he has to buy the insurance in order to get the
vloan. Thls has been documented. There was a Federal Reserve study in
February, 1979 -- which I have mentioned on Page 12 of my testimony --
by Eisenbeis and Schweitzer, which indicated that roughly 25% of the
people surveyed by “the Federal ‘Reserve . said that they bought  the
insurance because they believed it was requ1red, or it may have been,

in fact, recommended by the banking institution.

The same study indicated that nearly two-thirds of the bank
borrowers who were surveyed actually purchased the credit 1life or
.credit health insurance, so the actual purchase was in the 66% range.
The actual 1mpre881on was much less, but still at a hlgh level at the
.25m range v

We urge this Subcommittee, in the study you are doing of this
whole issue, to take a neu look at credit'leverage,: As I said, it was
last addressed in 1983, and we think it was inadequately resolved by'
the Banking»‘DepartmEnt ~in  the regulation. There - were very few

safeguards put in and, once again, it dealt only with explicit tie-in

- sales. We think that issue should be raised once more.

There is another problem -- Item 7 in my testimony -- which’.n

you, Mr.- Chalrman, have raised, and that is the questlon of regulatory
conflicts. = We see a severe problem arising with attempts either to
oreate,a super agency on the Federal level, or a similar one on the

State leyel, to attempt to regulate both banks and binsurance
'companies. Right now, banks are regulated by the FDIC, the Federal'
Reserve, the Federal Home Loan Bank Board, the Comptroller of the
Currency, and some other agenoles. The insurance industry continues to
be regulated by State government, ano thank God for thatibecauSe I have
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a . job, as oppOsedvtoluorkihg in Washihgton. But, the qUestipn is,
‘ exactiy how wouid, you deal- with this‘ issue if you merged the two
; agencies? We don't know the answer to that. We can saylthat.someV
recent bankvfailures, ihcluding Pehh Square in OklahomarCity and the:
_Butcher Banks in Tennessee, have shown that bank regulators have their
owpp-hands full trying to detect fraUdi and unsound financial
~conditions. They have, ih fact, stated that theyhhave insufficient
informaticn right now to accUrater assess current banking cperations
‘We think this task would be con51derably complicated if they were
expected to regulate bank activities 1n the insurance industry. Some
people have questioned, "Well, would the.Bank;ng Department regulate
7_ what is,“in effect an insurance company that is owned by a bank?
Would the Insurance Department in New Jersey continue to regulate the
.new insurance unlts‘of.the larger banks?  We just don't know, and God
knOWS'bcth'industries, as I said, are under severe financial strain and
tlght regulation now. We just think that will exaberbate it even more.

) There. is nothing 1 can say more strongly on this issue than
that we. think a piecemeal approach by the states w1ll not do the job. -
There is no level playing fleld right now, by the way. Insurance

companies can be purchased by a bank under some loopholes, the bank can :

immediately . take over ,the agency structure, and with certain

- restrictions, can write insurance.. In that sense, the State problem is
not as much of an pbstaclevto a bank as the cther way around. An
insurance company, pecause of the restrictions on purchases of -
unoh-banks right now, and'because,of the predominance of the Federal
' Bank Holding Company, cannot similarly attempt to purchase a bank and
then operate all around the couhtry as well. There are certain‘
roadblocks. That is one of the things we think-regulators-should take |
a look at. o . o 5 |

We think that Congress has tp look at this situatioh because
it gqes across stateiboundaries;"‘South Dakota attempted to do this in
their own state. The Federal Reserve Board subsequently denied some of
the applicaticns for operations of non-bank banks in that state, as my
testimony will indicate, We:dc not think it will be to the consumers'

interest in any given»state if each state attempts to-write a different
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set of rules for this issue. . We are pleased, by the way, that Governor
Kean has signed the bill for a moratorium to g1ve a Subcommittee such
1as this the opportunity to study this issue. We hope that Congress
will resolve it in 1985. We are not alone in advocating this. In
' testimony before the United States Senate'Banking,Committee invApril,
11983, then Treasury Secretary, Donald Reagan, had the following quote, -
which is on Page 18 of my testimony: "I think that as longbas banks
are‘going to come under the Federal deposit framework,rand as long as
“the Federal government is going to be responsible as the. bank of last .
resort in order to help these banks if they get 1nto trouble through
‘the FDIC the Federal government has a right to state what act1v1t1es
that bank may and may not perform." '

Slmllarly, Paul Voker, the Federal Reserve Board Chairman,
~responded to a letter from the Delaware Insurance Commissioner in
April, 1983, and stated that he was, "seriously concerned about the
possibility of widely divergent and inconsistent laws governing both
bank and thrift poWers,fwith deposit-taking organizations shopping for
~the most permiseive rules, and states competing to pass such lawe."‘
Similar statements have been made by FDIC Chairman, William Isaac. So, -
~we are ‘not alone by any' means in a concern that a state-hy-etate
approach is not-the way to go. » ‘

Flnally, probably the most obvious thing we can say in the
inaurance industry about banks getting into insurance is the problem of
indivioual service.v'I think that -has been touched on here a bit today,
but I want to get a little more into it. We don't know what the -
commercial banks' plans are for consumer services. I can tell you now
that = many of my companiee, if not a large majority of them, work
through the 1ndependent agency system. There are some companies that
iare members of other trades, and others that are direct wrlters in this
1ndustry, but by and large we are an 1ndependent agency set of
‘companies in an association. We don't know what the banks‘ have to -
offer. We can say that the vice chairman of Citibank, who testified at
" the DeWind Commission, admitted before that Commission that  consumers
- might benefit in lower prices for insurance products through the use of
automatic teller machines. We really want to know whether the
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. consumers. of the State of New Jersey would prefer to purchase 1nsurance
policies through an automatlc teller machine or a computer than through'
thelr 1ndependent agency system. - It 1s not perfect, it has beenb
changed over tlme, even by bills through ‘this Commlttee, but by -God,
local agenc1es prov1de personal service. . Many of them are your -
'nelghbors around the State They are someone you can go to- when you_
have an - insurance problem and it is a technlcal problem. ! know 1
would feel more comfortable consultlng with an agent than going to a
- -teller machine after hours. Sometlmes it doesn't even return your
money as properly as you would w1sh :

So, that is a consumer 1ssue. That is probably the key
consumer issue, whether the level of serv1ce you are going to get from
these large banks is going to- be suff1c1ent to provide the serv1ce you
need in insurance, which is a.very complex field, and whlch involves
risk‘assessment. It'is notvjust'a'question‘of taking deposits and
loans. , ' o o |
| That b381cally summarizes the maJor p01nts 1n my testlmony.'
Once agaln, 1 would ask that the full statement be included in the’
record. - 1 am.w1lllng_t0'answer any questions you have. The AIA has
‘tons of material on this from our Washington office and our'regional,:

offlce, and we will prov1de you with anythlng that you. request
ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA You touched on one. subJect that 1 am

~sure the Subcommlttee will c0n31der at future hearings, and that is- the

problem of bank fallures, for example,.Contlnental I1linois. 1 have

. read articles which said there were 70 or 80 banks ‘that failed

throughout the United States. Not many people know that. Does that
o shake them‘up7¥’The FDIC'has'come‘in to bail them out ~1 don't see
anyone paylng hlgher premlums “on the FDIC because of the ballout u
Should that - premlum be spread out” Maybe it .is good that some agency
comes 1n ‘and prevents these banks from falllng, but then there is
~-another underlying question. Why are these banks Falllng'7 A lot of
the articles I have‘readisay that it may be because of mismanagement,
or Third World loansvgoing too far. 1 think that is a subject that I
am going to suggest to the other members of the Subcommittee and the

”staff that we look into at future hearlngs
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Are there any comments or questions from the ‘members of the
Subcomm1ttee7 Lou? . ' .

ASSEMBL YMAN KOSCO' It seems that in the report you refer
‘often to the potential abuse of powers to grant loans and ‘the use of"
this as some type of‘leyerage. The potential for abuse of power is
always prevalent, no matter what we do. That is the purpose of'passing
regulations; ‘Do you have any'ideas along the lines of how we could
prevent this, other than abstlnence? How could we'probably‘prevent '
ithat from happen1ng7-’ o :

MR. KLEIN This questlon has been ralsed *  Some bhave
suggested that one way to go about doing it is to "wall off the i
- subsidiary to ‘make sure that the insurance sales are not being‘
"eonducted'on the premises of the bank." That has been one of the most
commonly suggested-means; Others have suggested' that promlnent notices
inform the consumer of his rights, or that the banks be prohibited'from
having their same name on the insurance sales function that their
subsidiary is performing. But, every time this has been kicked around
‘by experts in our industry, and folks like the agents - who have heard
complalnts about this, barring any real complete prohibition, we have
not been able to come up with any way to prevent it. And, in studies
conducted} of 1t,' as 1 sald, there doesn't seem. to be any adequate
Methodvto prevent it, because the problem is one of appearance, as much
as reality, which turns into reality the mlnute someone feels he or she
has to purchase the 1nsurance on the loan.

S0, to date, those have been a few of the suggestlons made,

'but no one looklng at it from the consumer-- point of .view is yet
convinced that those methods will be sufficient. I can only say that

it continues to be kicked around, but it hasn't been resolved yet.

v Someone here today raised a question about whether insurance
Companies would be willing-- What would they be willing to do under an
act that was imposed retroactively? I can speak for the chief
" executive officers of some of our members. They said they would divest
themselves of these’nonfbank banks. = The reason the industry has, in
."some instances -- verytfew-companies'of mine, but there have been some

instances -- ‘gotten into the non-bank bank business 1is to - stay

89



competitive now under"existing' loopholes, "or laws vifi you 'will
- Everyone else is doing it, Sears and the banks, but that is malnly a
' marketlng strategy for now. They want to remain .in the insurance
' business, primarlly and only in the insurance business, and they would
be w1lling to divest themselves of these non-bank banks 1 challenge
xany Bankers Association representative to say the same. I “am not
speaking for the'Association as a whole, but l am speaking for several
maJor insurance companles that I represent.
~As far as competitive rates are concerned, if banks get 1nto ‘

.insurance, as I said, there is going to be a more concentrated market,
so I fail to see how thatbis going’to lower insurance»rates. On the
subject of -tie-in sales, as‘Mr. Bent indicated, a bank may compete on a
loan itself, but once an individual is inbthere purchasing insurance,
the irates have  been’ very, very. high, very “expensive, and not- very
competitive at all. | We have\ heard the ‘remark that banks buying
insurance companies will lower the price for consumers and make this a
real streamlined direct effort. So far, experience has not borne that
out. : N ' 'v '
’ ASSEMBL YMAN KOSCO: Don't you think it will work the opposite
way, because if an insurance company‘ owns a bank and is selling
insurance, as a by—product-ofiselling insurance‘itvmay be given the
mortgage? | R o . B

MR. ~KLEIN:  As I said, since most if not all of my
COnpanies-- L , » - | '
- ASSEMBLYMAN KOSCO: (interrupting)‘ Wouldn't you tend to-do
the same thing? ; ' ’ '
' - MR. KLEIN: I probably would, and that may be another good
reason for dlvestiture, but they do not want to remain in the banking
: business. As I said, this is being done as a temporary measure because
-of an uncertainty in the law now and the need to remain competitive and
protect their‘own shareholders. But, you are probably right It could
not be done on: an efficient basis where the companies do not have any
expertise in banking. S : » ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Are there any other questions?

DR. NADLER: Mr. Chairman? S

ASSEMBLYMAN LaROCCA: Yes, Dr. Nadler.
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DR. NADLER:. :l'don'tiunderstandfhow you can say that, Mr
klein Letting banks into insurance‘would lead tolmore concentration.
R | thought there would be more competitors in the field. R

MR. KLEIN: = It might look like there would be more
oompetitorsvin terms of the fact that you are having another industry -
‘present, but if the financial institutions Onw‘Wall Street and SO -
forth, start gobbling up insurance agencies, as I said, and if present
practice is any indication, there,Will be an attempt to skim profits
from some aspects of the business to make up for the lower price that
may be imposed on another aspeot of the business, like the credit life
‘and health.‘-The'expense has been very, yery;high, , ” |

DR. NADLER: | You have drawn the assumption 'that bignessy
always means higher prices to the consumer . You said that three banks_
own -three- quarters of the market in California They are crazy numbers
you have, because you are throw1ng in the whole statewide operation
You have assumed that the bigger they get, “the higher the prices are.
I mean, hasn't every study shown that we have giants fighting against
each other?  For example, take airline competition, ’where you have
three or four giants fighting each other. Thero was a oase where the
price to California was $119.00. Yet, when you don't have the giants,\fi
~and you JUSt have the little 9uy; if you go to Little Rock it's .

$300 0. D2 . » -

There is no eyidenoe Which says size means that the consumer
pays more. . Usually, big‘people fighting each other brings competition
and lower prices, as we have seen- in bank service. | : ,

MR.}KLEIN. But, the attempt to get. lower. prices only further
concentrates the‘market. You see, once the foot is in the door, there
w1ll be a “sale on services" in order to get into the business. But,
once they have. established ~a market presence, we contend that this
" Subcommittee should seriously consider-- I am not'saying‘that this
” will happen; I'm saying‘there is 'a good possibility it may .happen.

DR. NADLER: But, are you saying that if the banks get in, it

is going to so weaken the ‘traditional 1life insurance companies “that -

some of them may go out»of_bus1ness, and}there-Will‘be higher prices?
If they are that weak, why do you want to protect them? You're talking

about the banks being weak.
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MR. KLEIN: I am"not saying that banksb'entering into the
“insurance field are 901ng to make any insurance company -- weak or
otherwise -- g0 under, etc. I am just saylng that the insurance

industry, for better or worse -- and we have had prdblems ih auto
’,insurance and other things in this State-- When there are a lot more
'players in the field, the market sharebis a lot more edually divided
hamong all of the companiea;'frbm the’first company to the twentieth.
That is not'the case in the hankihg ihdustry, and I, for one, fail to
see how a consumer is going to be serwed by having to deal with just
“three or four big financial institutions. I do not subscribe to the
“view that blg is necessarlly better. | | '

‘ DR. NADLER: But, you're. saylng that 1f the banks are allowed
ih,ihsurance, the tradltlonal_lnsurance companles are going to go out
of business. ; - | .
| - MR. KLEIN: We'hope;that'will not -happen. We fear it might
: happen in sdme instances, but it is more a question of both industries
getting their own houses in order -at the present time. I am not going
to contend that if Citibank comes. into the State of New Jersey and
purchases some insurance sales that it is going to make any one of my
members'go down  the tubes._ But, what we are saying is, there are too
many dangers from the consumer viewpoint, both on the banking and
-~ ‘insurance sides, tpbpermit,that to happen.’ An adequate Study has to
' be»made.‘ You cannot move headlong into it. ~This thing is happening
around the country, but it:is more  a question of events going faster
than Legislatures can respond to them. That is  why this Subcommittee

"is here today. ‘ - :
ASSEMBLYMAN = LaROCCA: - Are there any questions from the

‘members of the Subcommittee? (hegative response) Thank - you, Mr.
_Klein. Is there anyone else who “would llke to speak before we -
adJourn7 (rno response) , _

I would just llke ‘to- announce that, toward the end of March
- we will be holding another hearing somewhere in North Jersey. Keep  in
touch with: the Subcommittee. I know there are"two other public
interest members here. 1 have discussed this with them, and they will
- wait until the next hearing.  That hearing will be relative to the
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: excessive holding periods and the effects of that on the public,
particulérly the senior citizehs. 1 hdpe that some othef insurance
'cbmpanies will appear before the‘Subcommittee. We will also take.under 
‘consideration bank failures and other matters allied théretd. '
© Since there is nothing else to come before - us today, - the
hearing is,adjourned; » ‘ B

(HEARING CONCLUDED)
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Good afternoon. I'm Jeffrey M. Kleiﬁ, Associate Cqunsel for 60vernment
- Affairs in the New Yofk/New»Jersey Region of the American Insurance
Associdtion. Our‘Association represents 174 insurers thaﬁ write over
one-third of the total>property and casualty.préhiums written in New Jerséy.
| As sucﬁ, our members have a keén interest in the subject of financial services
‘integration and fhe deliberations of this Subcoﬁmittee. ‘We abprgciate the
bpportuﬁity to be hefe toddj and to discuss issues which are of cri;ical

importance to financial services institutions and to consumers alike.
(I)

“Introduction

‘In ;ecent years, there has béen growing pressure from deposit-t;king
financial institutioné, principally 1argé bank holding companies, to énhance
their ability to compete with othef fihancial institutiqns. In addition to
their efforts to obtain greater bank marketing flexibility, banks are seeking
’fto-engage in nonbanking enterprises, which are denied them by federal law gnd‘
many state laws. Among the increased powers sought by these bank holding
companies isAthe authority tovunderwrité and sell insurance, including
-property and casualty lines. 'These banking efforts to acquire inSurance'
authoritf’have been improperly included in the term "deregulation of financial
services}f |

Our Assﬁciation and ‘its members are opposed to the grantfng of new
property-casualty insurance‘authority té.dehosit-taking institutions} This

statement will outline the reasons why banks have a special role in our
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economic system and the rationale for the separation of banking from
vcommercé;i Ve Selieve there are sound reasons for keeping the barriers between
bahking and commerce intact, especially as they dpply to banking and
insuranﬁe.' There are inherent problems in allowing banks to enter the
business of insurance. In pérticular. there are clear dangeré of credit
leverage abuse, multiple regulatory conflicts, and excessive economic
cdncenttation.  These dangers can and should be avoided by continuing'thé
current national policy of not permitting deposit-taking institutions to
underwfite or sell insurance. This policy was most recently reaffitmed by
Congress in Title‘Vi of thé Garn-St. Germéin Depositdry Institutions Act of
1982. |
Congress is the appropriate legislative body to determine whether

financial deregulation is necessary and, if so, how it'shall be»effected.
This important task cannot be left to unilatera1>state action. Finally, any
deregulation of the financial services industr& should be equitable to all
industry participants.

‘The‘members of the American Insurance Association have no fear of fair
competition in insurance’services.‘ Indeed, the public'will benefit if all
- participants pl#y by the same rules with proper safeguards imposed without
unfair advantage. Onkthe other hand, if one type of institution is considered
special, aS‘depbsit—taking institutions are. and receives special advantages
such-as federal deposit insurance, those institutions must expect to be
regulated in a manner befitﬁing their special responsibility to the public and
the national economy. The public responsibilities of deposit-taking
institutions should not be sacrificed merely to further the goal of financial
deregulation. We believe these considerations preclude the granting of new

property-casualty insurance authority to deposit-taking institutions.
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The Separation of Banking and Commerce

The grant of 1nsurance author1ty to depos1t taking 1nst1tut1ons calls into
:‘guestion .a fundamental tenet underlylng the regulat1on of banks the |
separation of bank1ng and commerce. Ihe doctr1ne of the sepatation of banking
from commerce ‘arose out of the need to ensure safety and soundness in the
f’bank1ng system. while guard1ng aga1nst undue concentration of f1nanc1a1 power,»
minimizing conf11cts of 1nterest. and prohibiting act1v1t1es not in keeplng
‘w1th the spec1a1 trusteesh1p 1ncumbent upon institutions that engage in the
o lending'of their depositors' money. The doctrine was established by the
Bénking Act of 1933, often referred to as the “Glass—Steagali Act." In the
“'Glass-Steagell.Act.;Congress sought to preyent the type of abuses that led to
'the massive bank failures of the early‘1900's, Not,only}does the
Gless-Steegail Act ptohibit oanks‘from involvement in securities undeswriting,
it.also sets forth the pubiic policy that member banks of the Federal Reserve
System should not risk theis depositors' funds by investing in equity
.securlties of a commerc1al entetpr1se |

The separation of bank1ng and commerce was extended in the Bank Holdlng
,Company Act of 1956, which restrxcts bank aff:llat1on with a parent company
that engages in commerce dxrectly or. 1nd1rect1y Section 4 of the Bank
Holding Company ACt proh1b1ts a bank holding company from engaging in
nonbanking activities or from own1ng or controll1ng shares of any company that
is not & bank In enacting Sect1on 4 of the Bank Holdzng Company Act,

Congress was concerned that a bank holding‘company’mighthuse its banks to



ailocafe avaiiable credit on bases other than the credit-worthiness of the
.bofrowerf-for exampie. by preferriﬁg customers of the banks' affiliates in the
holding company or by denying credit to competitors of the banks' affiliates.

' There was further concern that a holding‘companj might impair the soundness of
its subsidiary bank by causing the bank to make funds available to nonbanking
affiliates or to their customers. Congress recognized in Section 4 of the
Bank Holding Company Act that the pubiic interest is best protected by
generally p:ohibiting combinations of bankiﬁg and commerce. Traditionally,
this prohibition has extended to insurance activities.

.Exceptions to the sepdaration of banking éné commerce are narrowiy drawn.
Section 4(c)‘of the Bank Holding Company Act specifically enumerates
situations to which the general prohibition againét combining bahking and
nonbanking activities does not apply. Principal among them is the exéeption
that permits bank holding tﬁmpanies to engage in activities that are so
”close1y-related" to banking as to be in the publi; interest. In October
1982, in IitlevVI of the Garn-St. Germain Depoéitory Institutidns Act,
Cohgress explicitly'reaffirmedvthe longstanding policy that insurance is not
“"closely related" to banking. Sectioﬁ 4(c) of the Bank Holding Company Act
was amended expresslj to prohibit bank holding companies from engagiﬁgbas an
insurance underwritef, agent or broker in ali but a few tarefully enumeraﬁed,

exceptions.
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The Special Role and Responsibilities of Banks

Aithough it may appear that banks are Being singled out'unfairly‘by’these
statutdry restrictions. in fact the restrictions are based on a recognitioni
that banks fulfill a ;pecial role.in our economy and have a special responsi-
bility to the public. As was.noted,in a recent essay by the Preéident_of the
Federal Reserve Bani of ﬁinneapolis, banks.perfpfm several imbortant and
unidue functions‘in our economy. First, the& isspe transaction accounts,
which.are liabiiitiés that are payable on demand_at par and are readily
transferrable to third parties. It is such transaction accounts that supply
the day-to-day flexibility tha; keeps ouf econohic and‘financial sjstem |
running smoothly. Second, banké provide a backup sourde of 1i§uidity'and ;
‘credit‘for éll other claSses_and sizes of institutions, both financial and
nonfinancié;. >This role of banks as a standby source Qf liquidity is
especiaily important,in periods of financial stress when other sources of
liquidity may dry up. ‘Third,lthe nationwide network of banks functions as a
ttanémissibn bélt f&r monetary pplicy as set by the central bank. By
adjusting discount rates gnd reserve requireménts, ;he Federal Reserve System
uses its member banks to controi national monetary policy.

Io.carry out successfully the special functions noted above, banks require
public confidence to minimize the likelihood of large, sudden drains of bank
deposits.-vao tools enabling banks to retain public confidence are their
ability to offer depésit insurance as provided.by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation and their access to the lender of last resort in the
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form of the Federal Reserve's discount window. These two devices constitute 8

public safety net generally available only to banks. Although the presence of

' vth1s pub11c safety net reflects a longstand1ng consensus that banklng

~funct1ons are essentlal to a healthy economy, it also 1mpl1es that these

" institutions have unxque respons1b111t1es and should be regulated accord1ng1y

For example, 1n‘order for banks to fu1f111 the1r role as standby-sources
: of 11gu1d1ty and cred:t they must have ready access to a var1ety of domest1c
,and foreign market‘sources-in addxt:on to dep051ts Th;s access depends, 1n
turn, on market judgments as to the quality of banks assets and overall :
financial strength To maintain asset quallty. banks must be able to make.

tlgorous, 1mpart1&1 and obJectzve cred1t decxsxons, partzcularly in times of

C economic stress. R1gorous 1mpart1alxty in credit dec131ons might be d1ff1cult

R if a,bank'were approached for credit by an.aff111ated cqmpany. The bank mlght

‘come under intense pressure from a troubled affiliated‘to brovide it with
cred1t that it m1ght not be able to repay. If the bank made the loan notwith-
‘stand1ng the risk 1nvolved ‘there ‘would be a negat1ve 1mpact on the bank s
‘asset qual1ty. ’Asvthe bank s asset»qualxty deter1orated, its accessjto funds
vffrom market'and deposit sources would be correspbndingly diminished and_the
bank would'be unable to fulfill its rcle as ultimate source of liquidity and
icredit’to borrowers in our ecenpmy.u This;scenarlo esemplifies a majof';eason
for the existence of laws regulating the commingling of banking and other |
r'interests end the ownersh1p and control of banks. " Laws such as the Bank-
'Hold;ng Company Act help ensure not only that banks remain solvent but that
they naintain their special role in our economy. |
‘Ourvhssociatlon does not ebject to the reexamination of the policies and
regulations that make banks special or}to’analysls of whether the unigue‘role’

ofvbanks'in our society needs to be changed. We believe, however, that any
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: reexaminstion,Should take,lnto scconnt the ability ofjbanks'to continue to.
’rlay their‘unique role in‘our economy;'oskwell as the effeCt of any changes‘in
this role on otherbnorticipants ln»thevfinancial‘servicesjindnstry and on thel
) American public. Horeover. we believe_tnere'ore a'number of considerationsf
lthetrreouire‘continnation of‘the;traditionel separation between banking and
commerce end of that doctrine's»derivstive restrictions on‘banks-endbotherv

' deposit—taking institutions engaging‘in'the sale or underﬁriting of insurance.’

o

tBank‘Solcency>
Avsignificant reason‘forﬂthetseparation‘of banking‘from'commerce Qas and
is concern for the solvency of oenks ' Ihe number of recent:bank failures'is'

_unprecedented sznce the Depress1on of the 1930 s and early 1940 s (1n 1983
there were 44 bank fa1lures, at that t1me the worst year for U.S: bank1ng

since 1943 when 43 banks failed) ond,ra;ses the question of whether new and
potentially risky activities should‘oevauthorized for the banking:induStry
bﬁhen,obvions problems enist in the current'banting system. The business of'
insurance‘hasla history of cyclical underﬁriting returns and iS'faced with'

t chang1ng publ1c att1tudes about r1sk and w1th new concepts of legal l1ab1l1ty,
the- combxnat1on of which. results in s1gn1f1cant new and emerglng exposures. |
»Ihe entry of banks into 1nsurance, therefore would involve new risks and
uncerta1nt1es for banks at aet1me when_there are numerous‘1no1cations--'
including the rising number of fgiled‘and tronnled banks and the well-known

‘defeult potential of large'portfolios of shaky international loans to
developing nations;;that banks maj have problens meeting their present banking

obligations.

Q-
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Commercial banks' present overexposﬁre in foreign loans, primarily to

' thi;d world and Eastern bloc nations, is evidence of their vulnerability‘to
spéculative errors which'have threatened small investors in tﬁe past. The
_danger in today's economy is not a widow losiﬁg her life savings, thapks to B
the F.D;I.C.. but there is a continuing danger that a series of banking-

- collapses would lead to severe financial dislocations. These foreign loans/db

not paint a picture of prudent banking, but a profile'of financial

insecurity. The Wall Street Journal has criticized the overextension of
commercial bank loéns to third world nations stating, "In the past they
escaped the hard work of banking, that is to say assessing individual risks,

by merely dumping big loads of money on governments for them to use and misuse

‘as they saw fit" (Wall Street Journal,iHatch 29,'1984,‘p. 28).

 Some proponents of deregulation of financial sefvices,assert that creating
a system of discreet subsidiary operations would éufficiently insulate 8
heélthy banking operation from oﬁher business activities that may‘be
experiehcing financial difficulties and vice-versa. Host‘bank regulators,
howevér, admit.doubtvthat in time of financial peril a bgnk.cap be insulafed
from the problems of its siﬁter organizations. The U.S. General Accounting
Offite in a June 1982 report on the extent and nature of nonbanking activities
of depository institutions noted that “"ancillary aétivities may’adversely
affect the safety and soundness of the depository institutions and their
related holding companiés." In particular, the GAO seid that "bank holding
companies with nonbank subsidiaries had a higher incidence of problems than
companies without subsidiariés." The issue,ofvsolvency shbuld.remain a‘

paramount concern in any consideration of expanded bank activities,
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particularly in light of the fiduciafy duty depositQtaking institutions owe to .-
their depositors. It’Shouid also be retﬁgnizedktha:, because of fedéral
deposit'inéufan;e, the ultimate cost‘bf bank ihaolvency falls on the American

o pubiic.

»bAs Alfred S. Howes, a member of New Xork Statéﬁs Temporary State:
Commission on Banking, Insurance and Financial Services in describing the

testimony of some banking representatives at the Commission's hearings, stated:

“The aia:m warnings should have gone off when every witness
for the banks indicated the need for insurance underwriting
authority to help técoup_some of the revenue being lost to

other financial institutions.

"The‘pattern-of a finanéiaily unﬂealthy member of a corporate
famiiy'draining tﬁe assets of a healthy one is tod familiar -
to be_ighbréd}v We are currentl& witnessing the tragic con-
sequeﬁces 6f:5uch activities in the BaldwinAqutéd bankrﬁptcy.
No corboration in that cpngiomerate.is escaping the impact of
mismﬁnagement and‘in§olven§y.”v (ﬁissent of Alfredls. Howes,
Commiésioner, to the Majority Report of the Temporary State
CﬁmmiSSipn oh Bgnking; Insurance and Financial'Sefvices,

February 15,:1984, at. p. 48).

The Baldwin-United failure demonstrates that a parent's use of a subsidi-
ary ihvites conflicts of interest problems in transactions between

j'affiliates. Banks simply could not be insulated from the problems of an
iﬁsu:anéeiéffiliété;“

T Ny
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'~ The more recent problems suffered by Contxnental Illinois in Chicago 1s
‘the latest ev1dence of severe underlying problems affect1ng the banklng E
1ndustry which warrant attention by 1eg1slat1ve and regulatory off1c1als The
banking ;ndustry must demonstrate that it can get its own house in order |

before attempting to enter other lines of work.
(V)

Excessive Market Concentration

Broad questions of concentratioﬁ within the financial services industry
| emerge fn‘connection'withrthe’expansion of bank powers. »Histerica11y, one
eoncern of Congress in establishing the sepa:ation ofzbanking from commerce
was preventing the eccumulation of too much economic power in the hands of the
nation'e banks. This concern is still relevant today. Deregulation raises
the possibility that banks.uusing the various advantages they possess as a
result of their Speeial status, may make such substantial inroads into other
parts of the financial services industry that concentration in the industry
o will be 1ncreased to a harmful degree

The banklng 1ndustty is typically far more concentrated than the insurance
industry. For example, data available on banking concentration in standard
metropolitan statistical areas, an accurate measure of the market of most
banks, indicates that the top three banks have 62 percent.of depesits in Los
Angeles, 59 perceﬁt in Detroit, 79 percent in San Franeisco—Oakland, and 97

- percent in Beston. The relatively higher level of concentration in the
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’”v~bank1ng 1ndustry suggests that the entry of banks in a concentrated banklng
vmarket into a relat1ve1y unconcentrated 1nsurance market would result in the
‘insurance market becomxng more concentrated This 1ncreased'concentrat1on
. could in turn lead u1t1mate1y to h;gher'pr1ces and tewer policy alternatives»
for insurance’consuners. ’Horeover,ebanks ﬁonld amasa even greater econonic
power than “they currently posSess | ‘ |

On the other hand the 1nsurance 1ndustry is not the protected anti- compet—
ﬂ itive 1ndustry that the banks portray it as.  The ;nsurance industry is a more
compet1t1ve 1ndustry w1th}few barriers to entry.-_Ihousands of insurance |
'agents,,who perform individnal aervice'to the consumer; compete with each

other in New Jersey'as well.

(VI)

‘Credit Lenerage

With respect to the saiejof'insurance by banks.fthere;exists a‘significant
potentialvfor abuses‘of banks' power to grant.credit‘by tying loan trans-
‘actions to the sale of insurance. The ability of banks to use the perr to
grant or deny credlt to compel the purchase of another product or
serv1ce--such as insurance--is- known as "credit leverage." The opportunxty to
‘exploit credit leverage ex1sts because banks are the pr1nc1pa1 prov1ders of
credit services and‘have, or»are perce1ved.by consumers to have, a superior

bargaining position in loan transaction.
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Although Congress saw the poiential for the tie-in sale pfoblem and

prohibited the tying of loans.tq the purchase of insuranc; in‘the Bénk Holding
- Company Act amendments of 1970, that law reaches only explicit tie-ins. Just
as damaging as explicit tie-ins, but by far more difficult to detect,vare
subtle coe:cive methods through which a bank might'imply that prospects for
receiving a loan would bé iméroved if the customer filled his insurance needs
thrbugh the bank. It would not be realistic to expeét that a small

businessman or consumer without the bargéining péwer or access to alternative
sources of credit of a large corporation could igno:e subtle pressures tp pur-
chase insurance when his sole source of crédit was at stake. For all

pfa#tical purposes, & person seeking‘a loan will all that he can fo motivate
ithe lender to grant him credit, including "voluntarily" putchasing the lender's
insurance on a basis otﬁer ﬁhan iﬁs price or service.

Credit leverage is not an illusory protlem. The Federal Reserve Board haé

noted in a stud&' of the issue that nearly two-thirds ofbbank borrowers
Vsurveyed purchased credit life or credit health insurance from the lending
institution even though such insurance is not typically required as a

condition for a lban. "QOver 25 percent of those surveyed did so because they
believed it was "required" or "strongly recommended." In addition, there is

clear evidence that where lenders engage in marketing of credit insurance,

! “Tie-Ins Between the Granting of Credit and Sale of Insurance by Bank Holding

Companies and other Lenders," Robert A. Eisenbeis & Paul R. Schweitzer, Board

of Governors, February, 1979;
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premium ratés are noﬁ reduéed by competition, buf instead are held at
artificially‘high levels so as‘to préduce highér‘comﬁissions for lenders
© acting as agents in the sﬁlévof such insﬁrénéé.‘ This Frevérse competition"
stems lafgeiy.from baqks' superior bargaining pqsitioh in the lending
 transaction. Similarly, in the area of real ésﬁéte title insuranéé; it is
’weli documénted that.the iender can contrdl the'sélectibnbof the title insurer
by a mortgagé'bofrower. | | |

' Céediﬁ‘levefaée in the salg_of‘inﬁnfanCe by banks has déﬁaging ramifi;a—'
tions,,hot only for the iﬁsurance industfy;vbut for the ¢ohsumer; The abiiity
' to tie in the sale of insurance to the granting of credit givgs banké_an |
unfair competi;iVQ ma:keting advantgge over existing insurers. _Ib the bénefit
~of the consumer, thé'insurance industry is currentlyvvery competitive. Tié-iﬁ
"sales; howeQér,‘cou;d deprive consume:s'of the benefits of.this competition
‘ begause'their insurance chdices wduld in reélity be limited to policies
offered by banks ét‘thevprices’the banks set. in addition, the bahks"antiQ
,competitivé tactics could lead,t§ mﬁfe c§ncentration in . the insurance industry
aé traditional insurers unaffiliated with déposit-taking iﬁstitutions are
unable ﬁo cdmﬁetekwith banks. As noted sbove, such concentration almostf

inevitably wiil.lead to higher_priées and fewer options for consumers.

' “In 1983, fhe New Jersey Départment‘of ﬁanking conducted a hearing on
insurancé.sales aﬁd credit leverage (PRNV;113f264) at whiéh we and many .
,représentgtives'of both the banking ghd insurance indutfiéé testified. We
pes;jfied concerning.thé dangersAinherénilin~impiicit tie-in salesvahd‘urged
the Bgﬁking'Departmént not to promuigate ihe‘regulation, which it did in

substantially similar form, because it was too narrow and did not address the

~ problem of implicit tie-ins. A copy of our testimony in that earlier hearing

11«
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‘as well as a copy of the adopted regulation is attached as part ofvah appendix
to our testimonyhhere. We believe that this Committee should be éware of thé
natﬁre of the problem and the fact that, to daté. it has hot been sufficiently |
addressed’in New Jersey. |

(VII)

Reguiatory Cohflicts

, Combining banking.with other c§mmercial activities. such as insurénce,
will lead to regﬁla;ory problems'becguse different financial seryices
activities have traditidnally been related by diverse regulatory agencies with
differing regulatory philosophies and procedures. For example, banks are reg-
ulated by a number of federal and state agencies, including the FDIC, the
Federal Reserve,‘the Federal Home Loan Bank Board, the Comptroller of the
Currency and others. -Insurance regulation has been and is primarily the
responsibility éf stéte government. In énacting the HcCar:an—Ferguson Act in
1945, Congress declared that the business of insurance should continue to be
subject to state jurisdiction.

For & number of reasons, including differing accounting procedures,
resérve requirements, and overall aﬁproach to business, the banking and
insurance industries are very different. Therefore, regulatory techniques ﬁhd
reduifements are different. Regulation aﬁross industry lines of banking and
insurance by different agencies invites regulatory turf battles. The answer
" to the difficult question of whether'divergent regulatory goals and procedures‘
can be reconciled is not merely'to combine all the regulators into one Supef

regulatory agency at the federal level, or for that matter, at the state
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level. Such a solution would create a bureaucracy so monstfouély'complex that
it would undoub;edly‘cause more prOﬁlems than it would solve, besides
>diStupting an effective and.smoothly functioning state insurance regulatory
systeﬁ. ‘A super agenty iS not the answér;' However, allowingiregulators of
-one industry ;o regulate another is dvceftain invitﬁtioh to confusion and
4inefficien¢y |
As recent bank failures 1nvolv1ng, among others, Penn Square Bank of

Oaklahoma C1ty and United Amer1can Bank of Knoxvllle have shown, the ‘numerous
~‘bank regulators hgve,the1r hands full trying to detect fraud and unsound
financial conditions in the bénking system with tespect to banking
activities.  In fact, federal bank regulators have publicly stated that they
have insufficient 1nformat1on»to accurately assess cqrrent operat1qns.‘ Their
task would berconsiderably complicated if they were expected to regulate bénk
activities in the insurance industry, which is subject to diffgrent business
practites. investment policies, guaranty rundvrequiremepts andd consumer
protection mechanisms; Similarly, insurance regulators would have to reorient
completely their regulatory procedures to be able to regulate’banking
activities adequately. |

‘Notwitﬁstanding how difficult it would be for'regulators to readjust to
regulating a new industry, it is neithgr practical nor wise to expéct
regulators of one aspect of the financial sgrvices.industry. such as
insurance, to ighdre the potential impact of a regulated entity's operations
in another area, such as banking. when thére>is sﬁch a high likelihood of =
crossover problems. However, it is exactly this large potent1al for the
spread of f1nanc1a1 difficulties across corporate lines that would undoubtedly

lead to conflicts among regulators. In short, to allow banks into other

reguléted industries invites regulatory chaos.
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(VIII)

Piécemeal Deregulation by States

Although most of the debate concerning financial services deregulation has
focused on Coﬁgress, on federal statutes such as the Bank Holding Company Act,
and on fede:al regulators such as the Federal Reserve Board; certain
proponeﬂts of expanded bank powers have_cdntrived to have legislation

“introduced At tﬁe state level in an attempt to circumvent federal law and
policj régarding'permissible bank actﬁvities. South Dakota has already
enacted a law that, in giving sta;e chartered banks the power to engage in all
facets of the insurance bﬁsiness and blataﬁtly inviting out of state bank
hoiding companies to acquire such banks, directly undercuts Section 4(c)(8) of
the Bank Holding Company Act and thus attempts to usurb the ability of the
federal government t§ regulate the nation's banking system.

The South Dakota lﬁw was pas#ed with the avowed purpose of attracting
large money center bank holding‘companies to the state so that they can

~ conduct insu:ance'activities through South Dakota state banks, despite the.
fact that bank holding companies are explicitly prohibited from engaging in
insurénce activities under federal law. Promoted asia revenue producing jobs
bill that would benefit South Dakota, the statute is structured to encourage
bankﬁ tb offer their inSurﬁncé'products and services only outside the.state.
Thé South Dakota legislation was-passed in totally self-interested fashion

without concern for its impact on other states or on the natiénal banking
system. Similar legislation was recently discussed but not introduced in

Delaware. Other states, including New Jersey, are currently coming under

17x
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.pressure ffon banking,interests to‘coneidef legisletion e;panding the power of;'
.stete-ohartered‘oenks to offefvinsuranceISetvices.‘ Bills have been introduced
vat Governor Cuomo‘s’behest in‘New York to.direotly pernit the sales and undef-
'Qriting_of insurance‘sefviCes'by'benks; theSekbills afe outgrowths of the
o DeWind Commiséion's report which fecommended adootion of soch proposals. In

New Jersey, b1lls are st111 under cons1derat1on by the Governor's off1ce which

= fwould author1ze the sale and underwr1t1ng of insutance by lenders. The

proposal would prov:de a complete WISh 11st of new and expanded powers sought
‘by lenders coupled with provisions that would subject bank holding oompan1es
toistate,reguiation,by New:Jersey, for the first time. We oelieve;that consi-
'deration'of these issues properly feéides with Congress. |
The issue involoed‘here'should not be confused,with, of disguieed as,‘a

ouestion;of tne-authority of states to'regolete,their statevchartéred banks.
It is clear that the intent'of the South Dekote legislature was not internai
regulat1on of. South Dakota state banks, but rather the creation of a vehicle
for out of state bank hold1ng companies to offer insurance products and
gervices outside South Dakote_in contravention of the federal Bank Holding
Company Act., The real issue is whether New York and other,stetes.should
attempt to deregulate’the financial‘sefvices industry'fOr the rest of the
coontry on e.unilatetal and piecemeal basis. Clearly, the actions of
individual otates should not be allowed to»threaten the stablility of’the
‘nationel benking syStem. The determination of public polioy with respect to
’tne enpansion of the‘powers of oenk holding compenies and federally chartered
banks and thrift institutions should reside with Congressf i.

| Deregulation'of finenciel inetitutions; integration of financial services,

and expansion of bank powers are issues with national implications that should

18x
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be decided on a national levél._ Congressiohal’authotity in this area should
hbt be thwarted by state laws that até»désigned merely té shdrt—ci:cuit
fedgral'law and creéte loopholes in longﬁtanding federal restrictions on bank
‘activities.
Ve are not alone in advocating such an approéché In testimony‘befote thé
United States Senate Banking Commiﬁtee'on April 6, 1983. then Treasury

- Secretary Donald Regan, presently White House Chief of Staff, stated:

"I‘think that as long as banks are going to come under the
federalldeposit framework and as long asvthé Federal govern-
ment is going io be‘responsible as the bank of last resort

in order tb help these banks if they get into trouble through
the Federal Depésit Insurance Corporation, that thé Federal
gdvernment"has ﬁ‘right to state what activities that bank may

or may not perform."

‘During the debates in Delaware concerning the bill to permit Delaware
state banks to engage in insurance activities, Péul Volcker, Federal Reserve
Board Chairman, responding to a letter from the Delaware Insurance
VC§mmissicner requesting his views as a federal official, indicated §niAprilv

12, 1983, that he was:

", ..seriously concerned about the possibility of widely diver-
- gent and inconsistent laws governing both bank and thrift powers,
with deposit-taking orsénizations shopping for the most permissive

rules, and states competing to pass such laws.... The Secretary of
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thé Tféasury has,stdted ihat“this kihd of de?égﬁlﬁtion-fhaphazérd
and without consistency or>aﬁ uﬁderlying'concept of what is appro-.
priate forvan_insufed inStitutionf-is,obvioﬁsly unsaﬁisfaﬁto;y,'/and.
I>agreé with him’fully; in such a process tﬁe pﬁblié interest may. 
well be lost in assuring thét:the ﬁtructure of banking.législation'

» approp;iafely refletts'éontinuing ancern,abouﬁ the safqty and>,- |
Vsoﬁndness of our<deposit6ryiinstitutibns and the appropriate bordér- 

line between banking and other activities.”

These concerns may have contributed to a decision by the Deléwgre Gpvérnor not
to introduce the legiSIatidn. | o

'FDiC Chai;man William Issac considered overlapﬁing and contradictory
federal and state regulations as a contfibuting factor in the collapse of the
fﬁni;ed Améritaanank’ownéd by thé Butcher brothefs in Tennessee and eisewhere

in the South. He stated:

"This made identification and asseSSment'of the_problems'extra-

ordinarily difficult. The present system'with its overlapping
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lines of gutﬁdrity ié not conducive»to effegtivelsﬁpe:visory
coordination of affiliated banking enterpri#es in a dereguleted,
rapidly changing environment. (Cited in Howes' dissent before

New York Temporary State Commission, supra p. 50).

(IX)

Individual Sefvice

A final point ;hich must be made ié one which is ﬁerhaps'the most obvious
~ and cogent reason why banké' entry into insurance must be examined-closely:v

~ personal service. What are the commercial banks' plans for consumer sérviceé?
Hans Angermueller, Vice-Chairman of‘Citibénk admitted befofe the New York
DeWind Commission:thatbEonsumers might benefit in lower,priéeé for‘insﬁrance
products through saleé of insurance by banks; through the use of automatic

teller machines. Will consumers really prefer tovpurchase insurance policies

through automatic teller machines than through the independent insurance
agency system in place now? By éontrast. local agents provide personai
fserviCes to all éoﬁﬁunities of each state. People look to agents as advisers
as well as sellers of_insurance; they are in many instances neighbors as well
as friénds 6f the insured who‘;an be'called upon at any time for assistance.
If banks enter into the insuranpe‘field. not only will many4of the jobsv
associated with these agéncies be lost but the consumer would loéevthe

personal service that simply cannot be accomplished by & computer or automatic

machine.

21~
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Conclusion

-In our testlmony beforevthe'New Jersey,Banking.Department at the hearing
on credit leverage in August, 1983 and since that time, we have urged the
’Governorpto guide State agencies and-financial services institutions toward a
rcomprehensire solution to’the many problems that have arisen inbrecent years
from the blurring-of;distinctions in the financial services industry. We have
called-for a broad, multifaceted study of financial serrices deregulation in
the State; This is all thekmore important‘as we await'resolution,of this
issue at the level at which lt:should ‘be resoluedi' the federal level. We are
pleased that under the Governor's d1rect1on both the Insurance Department and
the Bank1ng Department have convened work1ng groups to examine the scope of
the issue and to recommend possible solutions. We are also pleased that the
State Assembly has, th?ough Resolution 89 of 1984, authorized'the creation of
this Subcommittee which has undertakenéto:solicit uiews and make its own
determination concerning financial services integration in this State. Ther
Legislature once'before has attempted to.address the question of whether

'lend1ng instxtut1ons should be permitted to sell insurance (P.L. 1975.;c 346,

gsee N.J.S.A. 17:22- 6 6(a)) when it responded no', but the law was 1nval1dated'

by the courts due to constitutional infirmities. See ADA Financial Services

Corporation et al. v. State of New Jersey et al., 174 N.J. Super. 337
(Appellate D1v151on, 1979). Thé subject warrants further attention and we.

belleve that the current study process undertaken in both the execut1ve and
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legislative branches will prove valuable and provide 8 wide-ranging forum for
exgmination of the issuesf We ﬁlso beliéve that the many’tisks which are
assoéiated with banks' entry into insurance which havé been addressed in our
statement here today‘should give sufficient pause to those ad#ocating

financial services "integration" or "deregulation." -

On behalf of our Association and its members, I thank you for the
oppoftunity to be present here today to convey our views. I would be pleased
to answer ény questions you may have. Our Association stands ready to provide
you with any additional information you might request.

k - Respectfully submitted,
AMERICAN INSURANCE ASSOCIAIION
3 g)i‘ ¥lein
Asdecidte Lounsel
Government Affairs
New York/New Jersey Region
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